

SENATE BILL NO. 163—SENATOR CARLTON

MARCH 4, 2005

Referred to Committee on Commerce and Labor

SUMMARY—Makes changes relating to certain regulatory bodies which administer occupational licensing. (BDR 54-22)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.
Effect on the State: No.

~

EXPLANATION – Matter in *bolded italics* is new; matter between brackets [omitted-material] is material to be omitted.

AN ACT relating to regulatory bodies; prohibiting certain regulatory bodies which administer occupational licensing from holding a meeting outside this State under certain circumstances; requiring such regulatory bodies to indicate in their notices under the Open Meeting Law whether a meeting will be conducted by an audio or video teleconference at one or more locations; prohibiting such regulatory bodies from issuing, renewing or reinstating a license to an applicant who has not qualified for the issuance, renewal or reinstatement of the license under certain circumstances; extending the date on which certain provisions relating to occupational licensing expire by limitation; making technical revisions to certain provisions relating to occupational licensing; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel's Digest:

Existing law defines a regulatory body as an agency, board or commission that has the authority to regulate an occupation or profession under Title 54 of NRS. (NRS 622.060)

This bill requires meetings of a regulatory body to be held in Nevada if the meeting is subject to the Open Meeting Law and the regulatory body conducts business during the meeting. This bill does not prohibit a member of a regulatory body from attending an educational seminar, retreat for professional development or similar activity conducted outside the State.

Under the Open Meeting Law, a regulatory body must provide written notice indicating the time, location and agenda of each meeting. (NRS 241.020)



11 This bill requires the written notice issued by a regulatory body to indicate
12 whether the meeting will be conducted by audio or video teleconference and to
13 specify the teleconference locations. This bill also requires a regulatory body to
14 allow participation during the meeting by people attending at the teleconference
15 locations.

16 Under existing law, certain regulatory bodies are required to conduct
17 background investigations of an applicant who seeks issuance, renewal or
18 reinstatement of a license. (Title 54 of NRS)

19 This bill prohibits a regulatory body which is required to conduct a background
20 investigation from issuing, renewing or reinstating a license if the applicant has not
21 passed the required background investigation. This bill also prohibits a regulatory
22 body from issuing, renewing or reinstating a license if the applicant has not
23 complied with any other licensing requirements. These prohibitions do not apply if
24 a specific statute provides otherwise.

25 Existing law contains provisions that were added to comply with the federal
26 Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996. First,
27 existing law requires an applicant for the issuance of an occupational license to
28 submit his social security number with his application. Second, existing law
29 requires an applicant for the issuance or renewal of an occupational license to
30 submit a statement indicating whether the applicant is subject to a court order for
31 child support. Third, existing law requires a regulatory body to suspend an
32 occupational license if it receives a copy of a court order determining that the
33 holder of the license has failed to pay child support or has failed to comply with a
34 subpoena or warrant relating to a child support or paternity proceeding. These
35 provisions expire by limitation on the date of the repeal of the federal Act.

36 This bill changes the date on which certain provisions required by the federal
37 Act expire by limitation. Specifically, under this bill, the provisions in Title 54 of
38 NRS which relate to the submission of a child support statement and the suspension
39 of an occupational license for the failure to pay child support expire 2 years after
40 the date of the repeal of the federal Act. However, the provisions in Title 54 of
41 NRS which relate to the submission of a social security number still expire on the
42 date of the repeal of the federal Act.

43 Finally, this bill makes technical revisions to the provisions in Title 54 of NRS
44 which relate to the submission of a social security number and the submission of a
45 child support statement.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

1 **Section 1.** Chapter 622 of NRS is hereby amended by adding
2 thereto the provisions set forth as sections 2, 3 and 4 of this act.

3 **Sec. 2. 1. A regulatory body shall not hold a meeting at a**
4 **location that is outside this State if:**

5 **(a) The meeting is subject to the provisions of chapter 241 of**
6 **NRS; and**

7 **(b) During the meeting or any portion of the meeting, the**
8 **regulatory body conducts any business relating to this title.**

9 **2. The provisions of subsection 1 do not prohibit a member of**
10 **a regulatory body from attending an educational seminar, retreat**



1 *for professional development or similar activity that is conducted*
2 *outside this State.*

3 **Sec. 3.** 1. *Except as otherwise provided in NRS 622.330,*
4 *notice of a meeting of a regulatory body, as required pursuant to*
5 *NRS 241.020, must indicate whether the meeting will be*
6 *conducted by an audio or video teleconference at one or more*
7 *locations.*

8 2. *If a regulatory body conducts a meeting by an audio or*
9 *video teleconference at a location specified in the notice pursuant*
10 *to subsection 1, the regulatory body shall allow any person present*
11 *at that location to participate in the meeting.*

12 3. *The provisions of this section do not prohibit a regulatory*
13 *body from holding a closed meeting or preventing a person from*
14 *participating in a meeting in accordance with chapter 241 of NRS.*

15 **Sec. 4.** *Except as otherwise provided by a specific statute, a*
16 *regulatory body shall not issue, renew or reinstate a license,*
17 *including, but not limited to, a temporary license, to an applicant*
18 *who has not passed a background investigation that is required*
19 *pursuant to this title or has not complied with any other*
20 *requirement to qualify for the issuance, renewal or reinstatement*
21 *of the license.*

22 **Sec. 5.** NRS 623.192 is hereby amended to read as follows:

23 623.192 1. An applicant for a certificate of registration to
24 practice as a registered interior designer must be of good moral
25 character and submit to the Board:

26 (a) An application on a form provided by the Board;

27 (b) The fees required pursuant to NRS 623.310;

28 (c) ~~[(The statement required pursuant to NRS 623.225;~~

29 ~~—(d)]~~ Proof which is satisfactory to the Board that he has:

30 (1) At least 2 years of experience in interior design; and

31 (2) Successfully completed a program of interior design
32 accredited by the Foundation for Interior Design Education
33 Research or a substantially equivalent program approved by the
34 Board; ~~and~~

35 ~~—(e)]~~ (d) A certificate issued by the National Council for Interior
36 Design Qualification as proof that he has passed the examination
37 prepared and administered by that organization ~~[(; and~~

38 (e) *All information required to complete the application.*

39 2. The Board shall, by regulation, adopt the standards of the
40 National Council for Interior Design Qualification for the
41 experience required pursuant to the provisions of subsection 1 as
42 those standards exist on the date of the adoption of the regulation.



3. Before being issued a certificate of registration to practice as a registered interior designer, each applicant must personally appear before the Board to take an oath prescribed by the Board.

4. Any application submitted to the Board may be denied for any violation of the provisions of this chapter.

Sec. 6. NRS 623.200 is hereby amended to read as follows:

623.200 1. Upon complying with the requirements set forth in NRS 623.190, ~~and 623.225,~~ and before receiving a certificate or being registered as an architect, the applicant must pass an examination adopted or otherwise prescribed by the Board, unless the applicant has applied for the certificate and registration without examination as provided in this chapter.

2. Upon complying with the applicable requirements of this chapter and passing the examination, an applicant is entitled to be registered as a residential designer and receive a certificate of registration. A person may not be simultaneously registered as an architect and residential designer.

3. Upon complying with the requirements set forth in NRS 623.192, ~~and 623.225,~~ and before receiving a certificate or being registered as a registered interior designer, the applicant must pass an examination in such technical and professional courses as may be established by the Board.

4. The Board shall give or provide for examinations at least once each year, unless no applications for examinations are pending with the Board.

Sec. 7. NRS 623.215 is hereby amended to read as follows:

623.215 The Board may accept satisfactory evidence of registration as an interior designer in another jurisdiction where the qualifications required are equal to those required in paragraphs (c) ~~and~~ (d) ~~and (e)~~ of subsection 1 of NRS 623.192 at the date of application. Before the Board may accept that evidence, the applicant must pass the examination required pursuant to the provisions of subsection 3 of NRS 623.200.

Sec. 8. NRS 623.220 is hereby amended to read as follows:

623.220 1. The Board shall issue a certificate of registration as an architect or a residential designer, upon payment of a registration fee pursuant to the provisions of subsection 2 of NRS 623.180 or NRS 623.310, to any applicant who ~~complies~~ :

(a) *Complies* with the provisions of NRS 623.190 ~~and 623.225~~ and passes the examinations, or in lieu thereof, brings himself within the provisions of NRS 623.210 ~~and~~ ; and

(b) *Submits all information required to complete an application for a certificate of registration.*

2. The Board shall issue a certificate of registration to practice as a registered interior designer, upon payment of a registration fee



pursuant to the provisions of NRS 623.180 or 623.310, to any applicant who ~~complies~~:

(a) *Complies* with the provisions of NRS 623.192 ~~[- 623.200 and 623.225.]~~ *and 623.200*, or in lieu thereof, brings himself within the provisions of NRS 623.215 ~~[-]~~; *and*

(b) *Submits all information required to complete an application for a certificate of registration.*

3. Certificates of registration must include the full name of the registrant, have a serial number and be signed by the Chairman and the Secretary of the Board under seal of the Board. The issuance of a certificate of registration by the Board is evidence that the person named therein is entitled to all the rights and privileges of an architect, registered interior designer or residential designer while the certificate remains unsuspended, unrevoked and unexpired.

Sec. 9. NRS 623.225 is hereby amended to read as follows:

623.225 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) *An applicant for the issuance of a certificate of registration to practice architecture or residential design or to practice as a registered interior designer shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a certificate of registration to practice architecture or residential design or to practice as a registered interior designer shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the certificate of registration; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A certificate of registration may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for



1 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
2 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
3 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
4 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

5 **Sec. 10.** NRS 623.225 is hereby amended to read as follows:

6 623.225 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
7 this chapter ~~f:~~

8 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a certificate of registration to~~
9 ~~practice architecture or residential design or to practice as a~~
10 ~~registered interior designer shall include the social security number~~
11 ~~of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

12 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a certificate
13 of registration to practice architecture or residential design or to
14 practice as a registered interior designer shall submit to the Board
15 the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department
16 of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must
17 be completed and signed by the applicant.

18 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
19 subsection 1 in:

20 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
21 for the issuance or renewal of the certificate of registration; or

22 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

23 3. A certificate of registration may not be issued or renewed by
24 the Board if the applicant:

25 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
26 1; or

27 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
28 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
29 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
30 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
31 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

32 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
33 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
34 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
35 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
36 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
37 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
38 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
39 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

40 **Sec. 11.** NRS 623.250 is hereby amended to read as follows:

41 623.250 1. Each architect, registered interior designer or
42 residential designer who wishes to renew a certificate of registration
43 issued to him pursuant to the provisions of this chapter must submit
44 to the Board:



(a) The fees required for renewal pursuant to the provisions of this chapter;

(b) Proof of compliance with all of the requirements established by the Board for continuing education for the renewal of the certificate of registration; and

(c) ~~[The statement required pursuant to the provisions of NRS 623.225.]~~ *All information required to complete the renewal.*

2. Upon receipt of the fees required for renewal, proof satisfactory to the Board of compliance with all of the requirements established by the Board for continuing education and ~~[the statement.]~~ *all information required to complete the renewal,* the Secretary of the Board shall execute and issue a certificate renewal card to the applicant, certifying that his certificate of registration is renewed for 1 year after its date of expiration. The certificate renewal card must bear a serial number and the signature or a facsimile thereof of the Secretary of the Board or the Executive Director and must bear the seal of the Board.

3. The renewal must be recorded, together with its serial number, by the Secretary of the Board in the official register of the Board pursuant to the provisions of NRS 623.230.

Sec. 12. NRS 623A.170 is hereby amended to read as follows:

623A.170 1. Any person who:

(a) Is at least 21 years of age;

(b) Is of good moral character;

(c) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States; and

(d) Has satisfied the requirements for education and experience in landscape architecture, in any combination deemed suitable by the Board,

➡ may submit an application for a certificate of registration to the Board upon a form and in a manner prescribed by the Board. The application must ~~[include the social security number of the applicant and]~~ be accompanied by the application fee prescribed by the Board pursuant to the provisions of NRS 623A.240 ~~[.]~~ *and all information required to complete the application.*

2. Each year of study, not exceeding 5 years of study, satisfactorily completed in a program of landscape architecture accredited by the Landscape Architectural Accrediting Board or a similar national board approved by the Board, or a program of landscape architecture in this State approved by the Board, is considered equivalent to 1 year of experience in landscape architectural work for the purpose of registration as a landscape architect.

3. The Board shall, by regulation, establish standards for examinations which may be consistent with standards employed by



1 other states. The Board may adopt the standards of a national
2 association of registered boards approved by the Board, and the
3 examination and grading procedure of that organization, as they
4 exist on the date of adoption. Examinations may include tests in
5 such technical, professional and ethical subjects as are prescribed by
6 the Board.

7 4. If the Board administers or causes to be administered an
8 examination during:

9 (a) June of any year, an application to take that examination
10 must be postmarked not later than March 1 of that year; or

11 (b) December of any year, an application to take that
12 examination must be postmarked not later than September 1 of that
13 year.

14 **Sec. 13.** NRS 623A.180 is hereby amended to read as follows:

15 623A.180 1. The Board shall approve or disapprove each
16 application. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, *the*
17 *Board shall approve the application* if the Board is satisfied that
18 ~~{the}~~ ;

19 (a) *The* information set forth in the application is true ~~{, and that~~
20 ~~the}~~ ;

21 (b) *The* applicant is qualified to take the examination ~~{, has~~
22 ~~submitted the statement required pursuant to the provisions of NRS~~
23 ~~623A.185 and}~~ ;

24 (c) *The applicant* has paid the examination fee ~~{, it shall~~
25 ~~approve}~~ ; and

26 (d) *The applicant has submitted all information required to*
27 *complete* the application.

28 2. If the Board approves an application, the Executive Director
29 shall promptly notify the applicant in writing of the approval and of
30 the time and place of the examination, if required.

31 3. If the Board disapproves an application, the Executive
32 Director shall promptly notify the applicant of the disapproval,
33 stating the reasons therefor.

34 4. The Board may disapprove an application for any violation
35 of the provisions of this chapter.

36 **Sec. 14.** NRS 623A.185 is hereby amended to read as follows:

37 623A.185 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
38 *in this chapter:*

39 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a certificate of registration*
40 *or certificate to practice as a landscape architect intern shall*
41 *include the social security number of the applicant in the*
42 *application submitted to the Board.*

43 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a certificate of
44 registration or certificate to practice as a landscape architect intern
45 shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare



1 Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to the
2 provisions of NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and
3 signed by the applicant.

4 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
5 the provisions of subsection 1 in:

6 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
7 for the issuance or renewal of the certificate of registration or
8 certificate to practice as a landscape architect intern; or

9 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

10 3. A certificate of registration or certificate to practice as a
11 landscape architect intern may not be issued or renewed by the
12 Board if the applicant:

13 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to the
14 provisions of subsection 1; or

15 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to the
16 provisions of subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the
17 support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan
18 approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing
19 the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the
20 order.

21 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
22 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
23 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
24 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
25 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
26 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
27 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
28 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

29 **Sec. 15.** NRS 623A.185 is hereby amended to read as follows:

30 623A.185 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
31 this chapter ~~1~~:

32 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a certificate of registration~~
33 ~~or certificate to practice as a landscape architect intern shall include~~
34 ~~the social security number of the applicant in the application~~
35 ~~submitted to the Board.~~

36 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a certificate
37 of registration or certificate to practice as a landscape architect
38 intern shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
39 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
40 to the provisions of NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed
41 and signed by the applicant.

42 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
43 the provisions of subsection 1 in:



1 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
2 for the issuance or renewal of the certificate of registration or
3 certificate to practice as a landscape architect intern; or

4 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

5 3. A certificate of registration or certificate to practice as a
6 landscape architect intern may not be issued or renewed by the
7 Board if the applicant:

8 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to the
9 provisions of subsection 1; or

10 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to the
11 provisions of subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the
12 support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan
13 approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing
14 the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the
15 order.

16 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
17 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
18 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
19 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
20 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
21 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
22 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
23 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

24 **Sec. 16.** NRS 623A.200 is hereby amended to read as follows:

25 623A.200 1. Each certificate of registration expires on
26 June 30 next following the date of issuance.

27 2. A certificate of registration may be renewed for 1 year from
28 each succeeding July 1, upon submission of:

29 (a) ~~[(The statement required pursuant to the provisions of~~
30 ~~NRS 623A.185;~~

31 ~~—(b)]~~ The annual renewal fee prescribed by the Board pursuant to
32 the provisions of NRS 623A.240; ~~[and~~

33 ~~—(e)]~~ (b) Proof of compliance with the requirements established
34 by the Board for continuing education for the renewal of the
35 certificate of registration ~~[() ; and~~

36 (c) *All information required to complete the renewal.*

37 3. A certificate of registration that has expired through failure
38 to be renewed may be renewed at any time within 1 year after the
39 date of its expiration upon application to and with the approval of
40 the Board and upon payment of the annual renewal fee and the
41 delinquency fee prescribed by the Board pursuant to the provisions
42 of NRS 623A.240.

43 4. A certificate of registration that has expired for failure to be
44 renewed within 1 year after the date of its expiration may be
45 reinstated by the Board without examination within 3 years after the



1 date the certificate of registration expires upon application to and
2 with the approval of the Board and upon payment of:

3 (a) The annual renewal fee for each year, or part thereof, the
4 certificate of registration is not renewed;

5 (b) The delinquency fee; and

6 (c) The reinstatement fee.

7 5. If a holder of a certificate of registration submits to the
8 Board ~~[a statement,]~~ *the* annual renewal fee , ~~[and]~~ proof *and*
9 *information* required pursuant to the provisions of subsection 2, or
10 if the Board approves the renewal or reinstatement of a certificate of
11 registration pursuant to the provisions of subsection 3 or 4, the
12 Executive Director of the Board shall, upon receipt of the
13 ~~[statement,]~~ applicable fees , ~~[and]~~ proof *and information* or upon
14 receipt of the approval of the Board, issue a renewal card to the
15 applicant, indicating that his certificate of registration is renewed for
16 1 year. The renewal card must bear the seal of the Board and
17 include:

18 (a) The number of the certificate of registration; and

19 (b) The signature of the President or Executive Director of the
20 Board or a facsimile of that signature.

21 6. The renewal of a certificate of registration and the number of
22 the certificate of registration must be recorded by the Executive
23 Director of the Board in accordance with the provisions of
24 NRS 623A.135.

25 7. The unauthorized use or display of a certificate of
26 registration or renewal card for that certificate of registration, or the
27 seal of a holder of a certificate of registration, is unlawful.

28 **Sec. 17.** NRS 623A.263 is hereby amended to read as follows:

29 623A.263 1. Any person who:

30 (a) Is at least 21 years of age;

31 (b) Is of good moral character;

32 (c) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to
33 remain and work in the United States; and

34 (d) Has graduated from a school approved by the Board or has
35 completed at least 4 years of work experience in the practice of
36 landscape architecture in accordance with regulations adopted by
37 the Board,

38 ➡ may submit an application to the Board for a certificate to
39 practice as a landscape architect intern.

40 2. The application must be submitted on a form furnished by
41 the Board and include:

42 (a) ~~[The statement required by NRS 623A.185;~~

43 ~~—(b) The social security number of the applicant; and~~

44 ~~—(c)]~~ The applicable fees prescribed by the Board pursuant to the
45 provisions of NRS 623A.240 ~~[]~~ ; *and*



(b) All information required to complete the application.

Sec. 18. NRS 624.250 is hereby amended to read as follows:

624.250 1. To obtain or renew a license, an applicant must submit to the Board an application in writing containing:

(a) The statement that the applicant desires the issuance of a license under the terms of this chapter.

(b) The street address or other physical location of the applicant's place of business.

(c) The name of a person physically located in this State for service of process on the applicant.

(d) The street address or other physical location in this State and, if different, the mailing address, for service of process on the applicant.

(e) The names and physical and mailing addresses of any owners, partners, officers, directors, members and managerial personnel of the applicant.

(f) Any information requested by the Board to ascertain the background, financial responsibility, experience, knowledge and qualifications of the applicant.

(g) All information required to complete the application.

2. The application must be:

(a) Made on a form prescribed by the Board in accordance with the rules and regulations adopted by the Board.

(b) Accompanied by the fee fixed by this chapter.

3. The Board shall include on an application form for the issuance or renewal of a license, a method for allowing an applicant to make a monetary contribution to the Construction Education Account created pursuant to NRS 624.580. The application form must state in a clear and conspicuous manner that a contribution to the Construction Education Account is voluntary and is in addition to any fees required for licensure. If the Board receives a contribution from an applicant, the Board shall deposit the contribution with the State Treasurer for credit to the Construction Education Account.

~~[4. If the applicant is a natural person, the application must include the social security number of the applicant.]~~

Sec. 19. NRS 624.268 is hereby amended to read as follows:

624.268 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a contractor's license shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.

(b) A natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a contractor's license shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human



1 Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
2 completed and signed by the applicant.

3 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
4 subsection 1 in:

5 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
6 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

7 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

8 3. A contractor's license may not be issued or renewed by the
9 Board if the applicant is a natural person who:

10 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
11 1; or

12 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
13 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
14 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
15 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
16 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

17 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
18 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
19 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
20 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
21 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
22 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
23 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
24 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

25 **Sec. 20.** NRS 624.268 is hereby amended to read as follows:

26 624.268 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
27 this chapter ~~f:~~

28 ~~—(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a~~
29 ~~contractor's license shall include the social security number of the~~
30 ~~applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

31 ~~—(b) A~~, a natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal
32 of a contractor's license shall submit to the Board the statement
33 prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human
34 Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
35 completed and signed by the applicant.

36 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
37 subsection 1 in:

38 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
39 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

40 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

41 3. A contractor's license may not be issued or renewed by the
42 Board if the applicant is a natural person who:

43 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
44 1; or



(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 21. NRS 624.283 is hereby amended to read as follows:

624.283 1. Each license issued under the provisions of this chapter expires 1 year after the date on which it is issued, except that the Board may by regulation prescribe shorter or longer periods and prorated fees to establish a system of staggered renewals. Any license which is not renewed on or before the date for renewal is automatically suspended.

2. A license may be renewed by submitting to the Board:

(a) An application for renewal;

(b) ~~[The statement required pursuant to NRS 624.268 if the holder of the license is a natural person;~~

~~—(c)—~~ The fee for renewal fixed by the Board; ~~[and~~

~~—(d)—~~ (c) Any assessment required pursuant to NRS 624.470 if the holder of the license is a residential contractor as defined in NRS 624.450 ~~]; and~~

(d) *All information required to complete the renewal.*

3. The Board may require a licensee to demonstrate his financial responsibility at any time through the submission of:

(a) A financial statement that is prepared by an independent certified public accountant; and

(b) If the licensee performs residential construction, such additional documentation as the Board deems appropriate.

4. If a license is automatically suspended pursuant to subsection 1, the licensee may have his license reinstated upon filing an application for renewal within 6 months after the date of suspension and paying, in addition to the fee for renewal, a fee for reinstatement fixed by the Board, if he is otherwise in good standing and there are no complaints pending against him. If he is otherwise not in good standing or there is a complaint pending, the Board shall require him to provide a current financial statement prepared by an independent certified public accountant or establish other conditions for reinstatement. ~~[If the licensee is a natural person, his]~~ *An*



1 application for renewal must be accompanied by ~~the statement~~
2 ~~required pursuant to NRS 624.268.]~~ *all information required to*
3 *complete the renewal.* A license which is not reinstated within 6
4 months after it is automatically suspended may be cancelled by the
5 Board, and a new license may be issued only upon application for an
6 original contractor's license.

7 **Sec. 22.** NRS 625.387 is hereby amended to read as follows:

8 625.387 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
9 *in this chapter:*

10 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license as a professional*
11 *engineer or professional land surveyor or a certificate as an*
12 *engineer intern or land surveyor intern shall include the social*
13 *security number of the applicant in the application submitted to*
14 *the Board.*

15 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a
16 professional engineer or professional land surveyor or a certificate
17 as an engineer intern or land surveyor intern shall submit to the
18 Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the
19 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
20 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

21 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
22 subsection 1 in:

23 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
24 for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

25 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

26 3. A license as a professional engineer or a professional land
27 surveyor or a certificate as an engineer intern or land surveyor intern
28 may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

29 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
30 1; or

31 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
32 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
33 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
34 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
35 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

36 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
37 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
38 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
39 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
40 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
41 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
42 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
43 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



Sec. 23. NRS 625.387 is hereby amended to read as follows:

625.387 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~f:~~

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as a professional engineer or professional land surveyor or a certificate as an engineer intern or land surveyor intern shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, **an** applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a professional engineer or professional land surveyor or a certificate as an engineer intern or land surveyor intern shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license as a professional engineer or a professional land surveyor or a certificate as an engineer intern or land surveyor intern may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 24. NRS 625.390 is hereby amended to read as follows:

625.390 1. An applicant for licensure as a professional engineer or professional land surveyor or for certification as an engineer intern or land surveyor intern must:

(a) Complete a form furnished and prescribed by the Board;

(b) Answer all questions on the form under oath;

(c) Provide a detailed summary of his technical training and education;

(d) Pay the fee established by the Board; and



(e) Submit ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 625.387.~~
~~2. The applicant must include his social security number on the~~
~~form furnished and prescribed by the Board pursuant to~~
~~subsection 1.~~

~~3.] all information required to complete an application for~~
~~licensure or certification.~~

2. Unless the requirement is waived by the Board, an applicant for licensure must provide the names of not less than four references who have knowledge of the background, character and technical competence of the applicant. None of the persons named as references may be members of the Board. If the applicant is:

(a) Applying for licensure as a professional engineer, the persons named as references must be professional engineers licensed in this State or any other state, three of whom must be licensed in the same discipline of engineering for which the applicant is applying for licensure.

(b) Applying for licensure as a professional land surveyor, the persons named as references must be professional land surveyors licensed in this State or any other state.

~~[4.] 3.~~ The Board shall, by regulation, establish the fee for licensure as a professional engineer and professional land surveyor in an amount not to exceed \$200. The fee is nonrefundable and must accompany the application.

~~[5.] 4.~~ The Board shall charge and collect from each applicant for certification as an engineer intern or land surveyor intern a fee fixed by the Board of not more than \$100, which includes the cost of examination and the issuance of a certificate.

~~[6.] 5.~~ A nonresident applying for licensure as a professional engineer or professional land surveyor is subject to the same fees as a resident.

~~[7.] 6.~~ An applicant must furnish proof that he is a citizen of the United States or that he is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States.

~~[8.] 7.~~ The Board shall require the biennial renewal of each license of a professional engineer or professional land surveyor and collect a fee for renewal of not more than \$100, prescribed by regulation of the Board, except that the Board may prescribe shorter periods and prorated fees in setting up a system of staggered renewals.

~~[9.] 8.~~ An applicant for the renewal of his license must submit with his fee for renewal ~~[the statement required pursuant to~~
~~NRS 625.387.~~

~~10.] all information required to complete the renewal.~~



1 **9.** In addition to the fee for renewal, the Board shall require a
2 holder of an expired license to pay, as a condition of renewal, a
3 penalty in an amount established by regulation of the Board.

4 **Sec. 25.** NRS 625.395 is hereby amended to read as follows:

5 625.395 Each licensee must renew his license and pay the fee
6 for renewal. Any licensee who fails to renew his license may do so
7 within 6 months after the date of its expiration, upon application to
8 and with the approval of the Board, ~~[and upon submission of the~~
9 ~~statement required pursuant to NRS 625.387 and]~~ payment of all
10 required fees and penalties ~~[.]~~, *and submission of all information*
11 *required to complete the renewal.* The Board may extend the time
12 for renewal of the expired license.

13 **Sec. 26.** NRS 625A.100 is hereby amended to read as follows:

14 625A.100 1. An applicant for registration as an
15 environmental health specialist must submit to the Board, through
16 its Secretary:

17 (a) A completed application on a form prescribed and furnished
18 by the Board;

19 (b) The required fee; ~~[and]~~

20 (c) Proof of his educational qualifications, practical training and
21 experience ~~[.]~~

22 ~~—2. The application must include the social security number of~~
23 ~~the applicant.~~

24 ~~—3.] ; and~~

25 (d) *All information required to complete the application.*

26 2. The fee is not refundable.

27 **Sec. 27.** NRS 625A.105 is hereby amended to read as follows:

28 625A.105 1. ~~[An]~~ *In addition to any other requirements set*
29 *forth in this chapter, an* applicant for the issuance of a certificate of
30 registration as an environmental health specialist shall ~~[submit]~~ :

31 (a) *Include the social security number of the applicant in the*
32 *application submitted to the Board.*

33 (b) *Submit* to the Board annually, through its Secretary, the
34 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
35 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
36 completed and signed by the applicant.

37 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
38 subsection 1 in:

39 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
40 for the issuance of the certificate of registration; or

41 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

42 3. A certificate of registration as an environmental health
43 specialist may not be issued by the Board if the applicant:

44 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
45 1; or



(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 28. NRS 625A.105 is hereby amended to read as follows:

625A.105 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter, an applicant for the issuance of a certificate of registration as an environmental health specialist shall ~~f:~~

~~—(a) Include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) Submit~~ *submit* to the Board annually, through its Secretary, the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance of the certificate of registration; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A certificate of registration as an environmental health specialist may not be issued by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



1 **Sec. 29.** NRS 625A.130 is hereby amended to read as follows:

2 625A.130 1. Each applicant for registration as an
3 environmental health specialist must pay a fee set by the Board not
4 to exceed \$250.

5 2. Each applicant who fails an examination and who desires to
6 be reexamined must pay a fee set by the Board not to exceed \$200
7 for each reexamination.

8 3. Each registered environmental health specialist must pay to
9 the Secretary of the Board on or before the date fixed by the Board
10 an annual fee for registration to be set by the Board not to exceed
11 \$100. The annual fee for registration must be collected for the year
12 in which an environmental health specialist is initially registered.

13 4. The certificate of any environmental health specialist who
14 fails to ~~submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 625A.105~~
15 ~~or~~ pay the annual fee for registration within 60 days after it is due
16 *or submit all information required to complete the annual*
17 *registration* is automatically suspended. The Board must notify the
18 environmental health specialist that his certificate has been
19 suspended pursuant to this subsection. It may be reinstated pursuant
20 to regulations adopted by the Board.

21 **Sec. 30.** NRS 628.0345 is hereby amended to read as follows:

22 628.0345 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
23 *in this chapter:*

24 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a certificate issued*
25 *pursuant to NRS 628.190 to 628.310, inclusive, any registration or*
26 *license granted to a registered public accountant pursuant to NRS*
27 *628.350 or a permit issued pursuant to NRS 628.380 shall include*
28 *the social security number of the applicant in the application*
29 *submitted to the Board.*

30 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a certificate
31 issued pursuant to NRS 628.190 to 628.310, inclusive, any
32 registration or license granted to a registered public accountant
33 pursuant to NRS 628.350 or a permit issued pursuant to NRS
34 628.380 shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
35 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
36 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
37 the applicant.

38 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
39 subsection 1 in:

40 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
41 for the issuance or renewal of the certificate, registration, license or
42 permit; or

43 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.



3. A certificate, registration, license or permit described in subsection 1 may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 31. NRS 628.0345 is hereby amended to read as follows:

628.0345 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter f:

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a certificate issued pursuant to NRS 628.190 to 628.310, inclusive, any registration or license granted to a registered public accountant pursuant to NRS 628.350 or a permit issued pursuant to NRS 628.380 shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a certificate issued pursuant to NRS 628.190 to 628.310, inclusive, any registration or license granted to a registered public accountant pursuant to NRS 628.350 or a permit issued pursuant to NRS 628.380 shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the certificate, registration, license or permit; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A certificate, registration, license or permit described in subsection 1 may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:



(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 32. NRS 630.165 is hereby amended to read as follows:

630.165 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, an applicant for a license to practice medicine must submit to the Board, on a form provided by the Board, an application in writing, accompanied by an affidavit stating that:

(a) The applicant is the person named in the proof of graduation and that it was obtained without fraud or misrepresentation or any mistake of which the applicant is aware; and

(b) The information contained in the application and any accompanying material is complete and correct.

2. An applicant for a license by endorsement to practice medicine pursuant to NRS 630.1605 must submit to the Board, on a form provided by the Board, an application in writing, accompanied by an affidavit stating that:

(a) The applicant is the person named in the license to practice medicine issued by the District of Columbia or any state or territory of the United States and that the license was obtained without fraud or misrepresentation or any mistake of which the applicant is aware; and

(b) The information contained in the application and any accompanying material is complete and correct.

3. An application submitted pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 must include ~~the social security number of the applicant.~~ *all information required to complete the application.*

4. In addition to the other requirements for licensure, the Board may require such further evidence of the mental, physical, medical or other qualifications of the applicant as it considers necessary.

5. The applicant bears the burden of proving and documenting his qualifications for licensure.



1 **Sec. 33.** NRS 630.197 is hereby amended to read as follows:

2 630.197 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
3 *in this chapter:*

4 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice*
5 *medicine, to practice as a physician assistant or to practice as a*
6 *practitioner of respiratory care shall include the social security*
7 *number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

8 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
9 practice medicine, to practice as a physician assistant or to practice
10 as a practitioner of respiratory care shall submit to the Board the
11 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
12 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
13 completed and signed by the applicant.

14 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
15 subsection 1 in:

16 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
17 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

18 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

19 3. A license to practice medicine, to practice as a physician
20 assistant or to practice as a practitioner of respiratory care may not
21 be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

22 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
23 1; or

24 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
25 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
26 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
27 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
28 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

29 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
30 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
31 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
32 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
33 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
34 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
35 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
36 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

37 **Sec. 34.** NRS 630.197 is hereby amended to read as follows:

38 630.197 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
39 this chapter f:

40 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice~~
41 ~~medicine, to practice as a physician assistant or to practice as a~~
42 ~~practitioner of respiratory care shall include the social security~~
43 ~~number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

44 ~~—(b) An~~, an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
45 practice medicine, to practice as a physician assistant or to practice



1 as a practitioner of respiratory care shall submit to the Board the
2 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
3 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
4 completed and signed by the applicant.

5 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
6 subsection 1 in:

7 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
8 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

9 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

10 3. A license to practice medicine, to practice as a physician
11 assistant or to practice as a practitioner of respiratory care may not
12 be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

13 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
14 1; or

15 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
16 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
17 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
18 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
19 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

20 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
21 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
22 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
23 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
24 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
25 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
26 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
27 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

28 **Sec. 35.** NRS 630.267 is hereby amended to read as follows:

29 630.267 1. Each holder of a license to practice medicine
30 must, on or before July 1 of each alternate year:

31 (a) ~~Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 630.197;~~
32 ~~—(b)—~~ Submit a list of all actions filed or claims submitted to
33 arbitration or mediation for malpractice or negligence against him
34 during the previous 2 years. ~~—(c)—~~ ~~and~~

35 ~~—(e)—~~ (b) Pay to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Board the
36 applicable fee for biennial registration. This fee must be collected
37 for the period for which a physician is licensed.

38 (c) *Submit all information required to complete the biennial*
39 *registration.*

40 2. When a holder of a license fails to pay the fee for biennial
41 registration and submit ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
42 ~~630.197~~ *all information required to complete the biennial*
43 *registration* after they become due, his license to practice medicine
44 in this State is automatically suspended. The holder may, within 2
45 years after the date his license is suspended, upon payment of twice



1 the amount of the current fee for biennial registration to the
2 Secretary-Treasurer and submission of ~~{the statement required~~
3 ~~pursuant to NRS 630.197}~~ *all information required to complete the*
4 *biennial registration* and after he is found to be in good standing
5 and qualified under the provisions of this chapter, be reinstated to
6 practice.

7 3. The Board shall make such reasonable attempts as are
8 practicable to notify a licensee:

9 (a) At least once that his fee for biennial registration and ~~{the~~
10 ~~statement required pursuant to NRS 630.197}~~ *all information*
11 *required to complete the biennial registration* are due; and

12 (b) That his license is suspended.

13 ↪ A copy of this notice must be sent to the Drug Enforcement
14 Administration of the United States Department of Justice or its
15 successor agency.

16 **Sec. 36.** NRS 630.273 is hereby amended to read as follows:

17 630.273 The Board may issue a license to an applicant who is
18 qualified under the regulations of the Board to perform medical
19 services under the supervision of a supervising physician. The
20 application for a license as a physician assistant must include ~~{the~~
21 ~~social security number of the applicant.}~~ *all information required to*
22 *complete the application.*

23 **Sec. 37.** NRS 630A.246 is hereby amended to read as follows:

24 630A.246 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
25 *in this chapter:*

26 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice*
27 *homeopathic medicine, a certificate as an advanced practitioner of*
28 *homeopathy or a certificate as a homeopathic assistant shall*
29 *include the social security number of the applicant in the*
30 *application submitted to the Board.*

31 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
32 practice homeopathic medicine, a certificate as an advanced
33 practitioner of homeopathy or a certificate as a homeopathic
34 assistant shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
35 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
36 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
37 the applicant.

38 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
39 subsection 1 in:

40 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
41 for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

42 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

43 3. A license to practice homeopathic medicine, a certificate as
44 an advanced practitioner of homeopathy or a certificate as a



1 homeopathic assistant may not be issued or renewed by the Board if
2 the applicant:

3 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
4 1; or

5 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
6 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
7 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
8 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
9 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

10 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
11 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
12 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
13 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
14 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
15 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
16 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
17 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

18 **Sec. 38.** NRS 630A.246 is hereby amended to read as follows:

19 630A.246 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
20 this chapter ~~f~~:

21 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice~~
22 ~~homeopathic medicine, a certificate as an advanced practitioner of~~
23 ~~homeopathy or a certificate as a homeopathic assistant shall include~~
24 ~~the social security number of the applicant in the application~~
25 ~~submitted to the Board.~~

26 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
27 practice homeopathic medicine, a certificate as an advanced
28 practitioner of homeopathy or a certificate as a homeopathic
29 assistant shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
30 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
31 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
32 the applicant.

33 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
34 subsection 1 in:

35 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
36 for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

37 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

38 3. A license to practice homeopathic medicine, a certificate as
39 an advanced practitioner of homeopathy or a certificate as a
40 homeopathic assistant may not be issued or renewed by the Board if
41 the applicant:

42 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
43 1; or

44 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
45 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is



1 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
2 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
3 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
5 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
6 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
7 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
8 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
9 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
10 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
11 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

12 **Sec. 39.** NRS 630A.325 is hereby amended to read as follows:

13 630A.325 1. To renew a license other than a temporary,
14 special or limited license issued pursuant to this chapter, each
15 person must, on or before January 1 of each year:

16 (a) Apply to the Board for renewal;

17 (b) ~~Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 630A.246;~~

18 ~~—(c)—~~ Pay the annual fee for renewal set by the Board; ~~and~~

19 ~~—(d)—~~ (c) Submit evidence to the Board of his completion of the
20 requirements for continuing education ~~[-]~~; and

21 (d) *Submit all information required to complete the renewal.*

22 2. The Board shall, as a prerequisite for the renewal or
23 restoration of a license other than a temporary, special or limited
24 license, require each holder of a license to comply with the
25 requirements for continuing education adopted by the Board.

26 3. Any holder who fails to pay the annual fee for renewal and
27 submit ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 630A.246~~ *all*
28 *information required to complete the renewal* after they become
29 due must be given a period of 60 days in which to pay the fee and
30 submit ~~the statement~~ *all required information* and, failing to do
31 so, automatically forfeits his right to practice homeopathic
32 medicine, and his license to practice homeopathic medicine in this
33 State is automatically suspended. The holder may, within 2 years
34 after the date his license is suspended, apply for the restoration of
35 his license.

36 4. The Board shall notify any holder whose license is
37 automatically suspended pursuant to subsection 3 and send a copy
38 of the notice to the Drug Enforcement Administration of the United
39 States Department of Justice or its successor agency.

40 **Sec. 40.** NRS 631.220 is hereby amended to read as follows:

41 631.220 1. Every applicant for a license to practice dental
42 hygiene or dentistry, or any of its special branches, shall:

43 (a) File an application with the Board 45 days before the date on
44 which the examination is to be given.



(b) Accompany the application with a recent photograph of himself together with the required examination fee and such other documentation as the Board may require by regulation.

(c) Submit with the application a complete set of fingerprints and written permission authorizing the Board to forward the fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for its report.

2. An application must include ~~[the social security number of the applicant.]~~ *all information required to complete the application.*

Sec. 41. NRS 631.225 is hereby amended to read as follows:

631.225 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.

(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



Sec. 42. NRS 631.225 is hereby amended to read as follows:

631.225 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~f:~~

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 43. NRS 631.255 is hereby amended to read as follows:

631.255 1. The Board may, without a clinical demonstration required by NRS 631.240, issue a specialist's license to a person who:

(a) Presents a current certification as a diplomate from a certifying board approved by the Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association;

(b) Has an active license to practice dentistry pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(c) Is a specialist as identified by the Board;



(d) Pays the application, examination and renewal fees in the same manner as a person licensed pursuant to NRS 631.240; and

(e) Submits ~~{the statement required by NRS 631.225.}~~ *all information required to complete an application for a license.*

2. The Board shall not issue a specialist's license to a person:

(a) Whose license to practice dentistry has been revoked or suspended;

(b) Who has been refused a license to practice dentistry; or

(c) Who is involved in or has pending a disciplinary action concerning his license to practice dentistry,

↳ in this State, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia.

3. The Board shall examine each applicant in writing on the contents and interpretation of this chapter and the regulations of the Board.

4. A person to whom a specialist's license is issued pursuant to this section shall limit his practice to the specialty.

5. The Board shall revoke a specialist's license at any time upon proof satisfactory to the Board that the holder of the license violated any provision of this section or the regulations of the Board.

Sec. 44. NRS 631.272 is hereby amended to read as follows:

631.272 1. The Board shall, without a clinical demonstration required by NRS 631.240, issue a temporary license to practice dentistry to a person who:

(a) Has a license to practice dentistry issued pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(b) Has practiced dentistry pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia, for a minimum of 5 years;

(c) Has not had his license to practice dentistry revoked or suspended in this State, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(d) Has not been refused a license to practice dentistry in this State, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(e) Is not involved in or does not have pending a disciplinary action concerning his license to practice dentistry in this State, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(f) Pays the application, examination and renewal fees in the same manner as a person licensed pursuant to NRS 631.240; and

(g) Submits ~~{the statement required by NRS 631.225.}~~ *all information required to complete an application for a license.*



2. A person to whom a temporary license is issued pursuant to subsection 1 may:

(a) Practice dentistry for the duration of the temporary license; and

(b) Apply for a permanent license to practice dentistry without a clinical demonstration required by NRS 631.240 if:

(1) The person has held a temporary license to practice dentistry pursuant to subsection 1 for a minimum of 2 years; and

(2) The person has not been involved in any disciplinary action during the time he has held a temporary license pursuant to subsection 1.

3. The Board shall examine each applicant in writing on the contents and interpretation of this chapter and the regulations of the Board.

Sec. 45. NRS 631.273 is hereby amended to read as follows:

631.273 1. The Board shall, without a practical examination required by NRS 631.300, issue a temporary license to practice dental hygiene to a person who:

(a) Has a license to practice dental hygiene issued pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(b) Satisfies the requirements of NRS 631.290;

(c) Has practiced dental hygiene pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia, for at least 5 years immediately preceding the date that he applies for a temporary license;

(d) Has not had his license to practice dental hygiene revoked or suspended in this State, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(e) Has not been denied a license to practice dental hygiene in this State, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(f) Is not involved in or does not have pending a disciplinary action concerning his license to practice dental hygiene in this State, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(g) Pays the application, examination and renewal fees in the same manner as a person licensed pursuant to NRS 631.300; and

(h) Submits ~~{the statement required by NRS 631.225.}~~ *all information required to complete an application for a license.*

2. A person to whom a temporary license is issued pursuant to this section may:

(a) Practice dental hygiene for the duration of the temporary license; and



(b) Apply for a permanent license to practice dental hygiene without a practical examination required by NRS 631.300 if:

(1) The person has held a temporary license to practice dental hygiene issued pursuant to this section for at least 2 years; and

(2) The person has not been involved in any disciplinary action during the time he has held a temporary license issued pursuant to this section.

3. The Board shall examine each applicant in writing concerning the contents and interpretation of this chapter and the regulations of the Board.

Sec. 46. NRS 631.274 is hereby amended to read as follows:

631.274 1. The Board shall, without a clinical demonstration required by NRS 631.240 or a practical examination required by NRS 631.300, issue a restricted geographical license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene to a person if he meets the requirements of subsection 2 and:

(a) A board of county commissioners submits a request that the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada waive the requirements of NRS 631.240 or 631.300 for any applicant intending to practice dentistry or dental hygiene in a rural area of a county in which dental or dental hygiene needs are underserved as that term is defined by the officer of rural health of the University of Nevada School of Medicine; or

(b) The director of a federally qualified health center or a nonprofit clinic submits a request that the Board waive the requirements of NRS 631.240 or 631.300 for any applicant who has entered into a contract with a federally qualified health center or nonprofit clinic which treats underserved populations in Washoe County or Clark County.

2. A person may apply for a restricted geographical license if he:

(a) Has a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene issued pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(b) Is otherwise qualified for a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene in this State;

(c) Pays the application, examination and renewal fees in the same manner as a person licensed pursuant to NRS 631.240 or 631.300; and

(d) Submits ~~the statement required by NRS 631.225.~~ *all information required to complete an application for a license.*

3. The Board shall not issue a restricted geographical license to a person:



1 (a) Whose license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene has
2 been revoked or suspended;

3 (b) Who has been refused a license to practice dentistry or dental
4 hygiene; or

5 (c) Who is involved in or has pending a disciplinary action
6 concerning his license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene,
7 in this State, another state or territory of the United States, or the
8 District of Columbia.

9 4. The Board shall examine each applicant in writing on the
10 contents and interpretation of this chapter and the regulations of the
11 Board.

12 5. A person to whom a restricted geographical license is issued
13 pursuant to this section:

14 (a) May practice dentistry or dental hygiene only in the county
15 which has requested the restricted geographical licensure pursuant
16 to paragraph (a) of subsection 1.

17 (b) Shall not, for the duration of the restricted geographical
18 license, engage in the private practice of dentistry or dental hygiene
19 in this State or accept compensation for the practice of dentistry or
20 dental hygiene except such compensation as may be paid to him by
21 a federally qualified health center or nonprofit clinic pursuant to
22 paragraph (b) of subsection 1.

23 6. Within 7 days after the termination of his contract pursuant
24 to paragraph (b) of subsection 1, the holder of a restricted
25 geographical license shall notify the Board of the termination, in
26 writing, and surrender the restricted geographical license.

27 7. A person to whom a restricted geographical license was
28 issued pursuant to this section may petition the Board for an
29 unrestricted license without a clinical demonstration required by
30 NRS 631.240 or a practical examination required by NRS 631.300 if
31 the person:

32 (a) Has not had his license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene
33 revoked or suspended in this State, another state or territory of the
34 United States, or the District of Columbia;

35 (b) Has not been refused a license to practice dentistry or dental
36 hygiene in this State, another state or territory of the United States,
37 or the District of Columbia;

38 (c) Is not involved in or does not have pending a disciplinary
39 action concerning his license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene
40 in this State, another state or territory of the United States, or the
41 District of Columbia; and

42 (d) Has:

43 (1) Actively practiced dentistry or dental hygiene for 3 years
44 at a minimum of 30 hours per week in the restricted geographical
45 area; or



(2) Been under contract with a federally qualified health center or nonprofit clinic for a minimum of 3 years.

8. The Board shall revoke a restricted geographical license at any time upon proof satisfactory to the Board that the holder of the license violated any provision of this section or the regulations of the Board.

Sec. 47. NRS 631.330 is hereby amended to read as follows:

631.330 1. Licenses must be renewed annually.

2. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.271:

(a) Each holder of a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene must, upon:

(1) ~~Submission of the statement required pursuant to NRS 631.225;~~

~~(2)~~ Payment of the required fee; ~~and~~

~~(3)~~ (2) Submission of proof of completion of the required continuing education ~~[-]~~; and

(3) *Submission of all information required to complete the renewal,*

➡ be granted a renewal certificate which will authorize continuation of the practice for 1 year.

(b) A licensee must comply with the provisions of this subsection and subsection 1 on or before June 30. Failure to comply with those provisions by June 30 of each year automatically suspends the license, and it may be reinstated only upon payment of the fee for reinstatement and compliance with the requirements of this subsection.

3. If a license suspended pursuant to this section is not reinstated within 12 months after suspension, it is automatically revoked.

Sec. 48. NRS 632.341 is hereby amended to read as follows:

632.341 1. Every nurse licensed under the provisions of this chapter must renew his license biennially on a date or according to a schedule of dates prescribed by regulation of the Board. If the date or schedule is changed, the Board may prorate the required fee.

2. A licensee who fails to renew his license may have his license reinstated by completing an application for renewal, submitting ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 632.3446 and]~~ payment of the reinstatement fee in addition to the renewal fee ~~[-]~~ *and submitting all information required to complete the reinstatement.*

3. Upon written request to the Board, a licensee in good standing may cause his name and license to be transferred to an inactive list, and the licensee may not practice nursing during the time the license is inactive and no renewal fee accrues. If an inactive licensee desires to resume the practice of nursing, the Board, except



as otherwise provided in subsection 4, shall renew the license upon demonstration, if deemed necessary by the Board, that the licensee is then qualified and competent to practice, and upon completion of an application and payment of the current fee for biennial renewal of the license.

4. The Board may:

(a) Issue a temporary license to an applicant for the renewal or reinstatement of his license pending final action by the Board upon the application.

(b) After a hearing, refuse to renew or reinstate the license of any person who, at any time since the most recent renewal of his license or the issuance of his original license if it has not been renewed, has been out of compliance with the requirements of this chapter.

Sec. 49. NRS 632.342 is hereby amended to read as follows:

632.342 1. The certificate of a nursing assistant must be renewed biennially on the date of the certificate holder's birthday.

2. The Board shall renew a certificate if the applicant:

(a) Submits a completed written application and the fee required by this chapter;

(b) Submits documentation of completion of continuing training, as required by the Board, in the previous 24 months;

~~(c) [Submits the statement required pursuant to NRS 632.3446;~~

~~(d)]~~ Has not committed any acts which are grounds for disciplinary action, unless the Board determines that sufficient restitution has been made or the act was not substantially related to nursing; ~~and~~

~~(e)]~~ (d) Submits documentation of employment as a nursing assistant during the 2 years immediately preceding the date of the renewal ~~[]~~; *and*

(e) Submits all information required to complete the renewal.

➔ The training program completed pursuant to paragraph (b) must be approved by the Board.

3. Failure to renew the certificate results in forfeiture of the right to practice unless the nursing assistant qualifies for the issuance of a new certificate.

4. Renewal of a certificate becomes effective on the date on which:

(a) The application is filed;

~~(b) [The statement required pursuant to NRS 632.3446 is submitted; or~~

~~(c) The date on which the] The~~ renewal fee is paid ~~[]~~; *or*

(c) All information required to complete the renewal is submitted,

➔ whichever occurs latest.



1 **Sec. 50.** NRS 632.3446 is hereby amended to read as follows:
2 632.3446 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
3 *in this chapter:*

4 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license or certificate*
5 *pursuant to this chapter shall include the social security number*
6 *of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

7 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license or
8 certificate pursuant to this chapter shall submit to the Board the
9 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
10 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
11 completed and signed by the applicant.

12 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
13 subsection 1 in:

14 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
15 for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

16 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

17 3. A license or certificate may not be issued or renewed by the
18 Board pursuant to this chapter if the applicant:

19 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
20 1; or

21 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
22 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
23 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
24 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
25 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

26 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
27 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
28 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
29 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
30 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
31 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
32 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
33 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

34 **Sec. 51.** NRS 632.3446 is hereby amended to read as follows:

35 632.3446 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
36 this chapter {:

37 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license or certificate~~
38 ~~pursuant to this chapter shall include the social security number of~~
39 ~~the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

40 ~~—(b) An~~, an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license or
41 certificate pursuant to this chapter shall submit to the Board the
42 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
43 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
44 completed and signed by the applicant.



2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license or certificate may not be issued or renewed by the Board pursuant to this chapter if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 52. NRS 633.311 is hereby amended to read as follows:

633.311 Except as otherwise provided in NRS 633.315, an applicant for a license to practice osteopathic medicine may be issued a license by the Board if:

1. He is 21 years of age or older;

2. He is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;

3. He is a graduate of a school of osteopathic medicine;

4. He:

(a) Has graduated from a school of osteopathic medicine before 1995 and has completed:

(1) A hospital internship; or

(2) One year of postgraduate training that complies with the standards of intern training established by the American Osteopathic Association;

(b) Has completed 3 years of postgraduate medical education as a resident in the United States or Canada in a program approved by the Board, the Bureau of Professional Education of the American Osteopathic Association or the Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education; or

(c) Is a resident who is enrolled in a postgraduate training program in this State, has completed 24 months of the program and has committed, in writing, that he will complete the program;



- 1 5. He applies for the license as provided by law;
- 2 6. He passes:
- 3 (a) All parts of the licensing examination of the National Board
- 4 of Osteopathic Medical Examiners;
- 5 (b) All parts of the licensing examination of the Federation of
- 6 State Medical Boards of the United States, Inc.;
- 7 (c) All parts of the licensing examination of the Board, a state,
- 8 territory or possession of the United States, or the District of
- 9 Columbia, and he is certified by a specialty board of the American
- 10 Osteopathic Association or by the American Board of Medical
- 11 Specialties; or
- 12 (d) A combination of the parts of the licensing examinations
- 13 specified in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) of this subsection that is
- 14 approved by the Board;

15 7. ~~He submits the statement required pursuant to the~~

16 ~~provisions of NRS 633.326; and~~

17 ~~—8.]~~ He pays the fees provided for in this chapter ~~[.]~~; and

18 8. *He submits all information required to complete an*

19 *application for a license.*

20 **Sec. 53.** NRS 633.321 is hereby amended to read as follows:

21 633.321 1. Every applicant for a license shall:

22 (a) File an application with the Board in the manner prescribed

23 by regulations of the Board;

24 (b) Submit verified proof satisfactory to the Board that he meets

25 the age, citizenship and educational requirements prescribed by this

26 chapter; and

27 (c) Pay in advance to the Board the application and initial

28 license fee specified in this chapter.

29 2. An application filed with the Board pursuant to subsection 1

30 must include ~~[the social security number of the applicant.]~~ *all*

31 *information required to complete the application.*

32 3. The Board may hold hearings and conduct investigations

33 into any matter related to the application and, in addition to the

34 proofs required by subsection 1, may take such further evidence and

35 require such other documents or proof of qualifications as it deems

36 proper.

37 4. The Board may reject an application if it appears that any

38 credential submitted is false.

39 **Sec. 54.** NRS 633.326 is hereby amended to read as follows:

40 633.326 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*

41 *in this chapter:*

42 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice*

43 *osteopathic medicine shall include the social security number of*

44 *the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*



1 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
2 practice osteopathic medicine shall submit to the Board the
3 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
4 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
5 completed and signed by the applicant.

6 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
7 subsection 1 in:

8 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
9 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

10 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

11 3. A license to practice osteopathic medicine may not be issued
12 or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

13 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
14 1; or

15 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
16 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
17 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
18 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
19 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

20 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
21 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
22 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
23 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
24 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
25 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
26 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
27 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

28 **Sec. 55.** NRS 633.326 is hereby amended to read as follows:

29 633.326 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
30 this chapter {:

31 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice~~
32 ~~osteopathic medicine shall include the social security number of the~~
33 ~~applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

34 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
35 practice osteopathic medicine shall submit to the Board the
36 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
37 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
38 completed and signed by the applicant.

39 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
40 subsection 1 in:

41 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
42 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

43 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

44 3. A license to practice osteopathic medicine may not be issued
45 or renewed by the Board if the applicant:



1 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
2 1; or

3 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
4 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
5 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
6 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
7 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

8 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
9 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
10 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
11 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
12 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
13 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
14 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
15 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

16 **Sec. 56.** NRS 633.471 is hereby amended to read as follows:

17 633.471 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3 and
18 in NRS 633.491, every holder of a license issued under this chapter,
19 except a temporary or a special license, may renew his license on or
20 before January 1 of each calendar year after its issuance by:

21 (a) Applying for renewal on forms provided by the Board;

22 (b) ~~Submitting the statement required pursuant to~~
23 ~~NRS 633.326;~~

24 ~~—(e)—~~ Paying the annual license renewal fee specified in this
25 chapter;

26 ~~—(d)—~~ (c) Submitting a list of all actions filed or claims submitted
27 to arbitration or mediation for malpractice or negligence against him
28 during the previous year; ~~and~~

29 ~~—(e)—~~ (d) Submitting verified evidence satisfactory to the Board
30 that in the year preceding the application for renewal he has
31 attended courses or programs of continuing education approved by
32 the Board totaling a number of hours established by the Board
33 which must not be less than 35 hours nor more than that set in the
34 requirements for continuing medical education of the American
35 Osteopathic Association ~~—~~; and

36 (e) *Submitting all information required to complete the*
37 *renewal.*

38 2. The Secretary of the Board shall notify each licensee of the
39 requirements for renewal not less than 30 days before the date of
40 renewal.

41 3. Members of the Armed Forces of the United States and the
42 United States Public Health Service are exempt from payment of the
43 annual license renewal fee during their active duty status.



Sec. 57. NRS 633.481 is hereby amended to read as follows:

633.481 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, if a licensee fails to comply with the requirements of NRS 633.471 within 30 days after the renewal date, the Board shall give 30 days' notice of failure to renew and of revocation of license by certified mail to the licensee at his last address registered with the Board. If the license is not renewed before the expiration of the 30 days' notice, the license is automatically revoked without any further notice or a hearing and the Board shall file a copy of the notice with the Drug Enforcement Administration of the United States Department of Justice or its successor agency.

2. A licensee who fails to meet the continuing education requirements for license renewal may apply to the Board for a waiver of the requirements. The Board may grant a waiver for that year only if it finds that the failure is due to the licensee's disability, military service or absence from the United States, or to circumstances beyond the control of the licensee which are deemed by the Board to excuse the failure.

3. A person whose license is revoked under this section may apply to the Board for restoration of his license upon:

(a) Payment of all past due renewal fees and the late payment fee specified in this chapter;

(b) ~~Submission of the statement required pursuant to NRS 633.326;~~

~~(c)~~ Producing verified evidence satisfactory to the Board of completion of the total number of hours of continuing education required for the year preceding the renewal date and for each year succeeding the date of revocation; ~~and~~

~~(d)~~ (c) Stating under oath in writing that he has not withheld information from the Board which if disclosed would furnish grounds for disciplinary action under this chapter ~~H~~; and

(d) *Submitting all information required to complete the restoration of his license.*

Sec. 58. NRS 634.080 is hereby amended to read as follows:

634.080 1. An applicant for examination must file an application not less than 60 days before the date of the examination.

2. An application must be filed with the Secretary of the Board on a form to be furnished by the Secretary.

3. An application must be verified and must state:

(a) When and where the applicant was born, the various places of his residence during the 5 years immediately preceding the making of the application and the address to which he wishes the ~~department~~ Board to mail his license.

(b) The name, age ~~[, social security number]~~ and sex of the applicant.



(c) The names and post office addresses of all persons by whom the applicant has been employed for a period of 5 years immediately preceding the making of the application.

(d) Whether or not the applicant has ever applied for a license to practice chiropractic in any other state and, if so, when and where and the results of the application.

(e) Whether the applicant is a citizen of the United States or lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States.

(f) Whether or not the applicant has ever been admitted to the practice of chiropractic in any other state and, if so, whether any discharge, dismissal, disciplinary or other similar proceedings have ever been instituted against him. Such an applicant must also attach a certificate of the Secretary of the chiropractic board of the state in which the applicant was last licensed, certifying that the applicant is a member in good standing of the chiropractic profession in that state, and that no proceedings affecting his standing as a chiropractor are undisposed of and pending.

(g) The applicant's general and chiropractic education, including the schools attended and the time of attendance at each school, and whether he is a graduate of any school or schools.

(h) The names of:

(1) Two persons who have known the applicant for at least 3 years; and

(2) A person who is a chiropractor licensed pursuant to the provisions of this chapter or a professor at a school of chiropractic.

(i) All other information required to complete the application.

Sec. 59. NRS 634.095 is hereby amended to read as follows:

634.095 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice chiropractic or a certificate to practice as a chiropractor's assistant shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.

(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to practice chiropractic or a certificate to practice as a chiropractor's assistant shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.



3. A license to practice chiropractic or a certificate to practice as a chiropractor's assistant may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 60. NRS 634.095 is hereby amended to read as follows:

634.095 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~f:~~

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice chiropractic or a certificate to practice as a chiropractor's assistant shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, **an** applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to practice chiropractic or a certificate to practice as a chiropractor's assistant shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license to practice chiropractic or a certificate to practice as a chiropractor's assistant may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district



1 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
2 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

3 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
4 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
5 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
6 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
7 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
8 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
9 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
10 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

11 **Sec. 61.** NRS 634.123 is hereby amended to read as follows:

12 634.123 1. The Board may issue a certificate to a properly
13 qualified applicant to perform ancillary services relating to
14 chiropractic, other than chiropractic adjustment, under the
15 supervision of a chiropractor. The Board shall specify the formal
16 training, including at least 12 months of study or the equivalent,
17 which such an applicant must have completed before the Board
18 awards him a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant.

19 2. An application for the issuance of a certificate as a
20 chiropractor's assistant must include ~~[the social security number of~~
21 ~~the applicant.]~~ *all information required to complete the*
22 *application.*

23 **Sec. 62.** NRS 634.130 is hereby amended to read as follows:

24 634.130 1. Licenses and certificates must be renewed
25 annually. Each person who is licensed pursuant to the provisions of
26 this chapter must, upon the payment of the required renewal fee and
27 the submission of ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
28 ~~634.095.]~~ *all information required to complete the renewal,* be
29 granted a renewal certificate which authorizes him to continue to
30 practice for 1 year.

31 2. The renewal fee must be paid and ~~[the statement]~~ *all*
32 *information required to complete the renewal* must be submitted to
33 the Board on or before January 1 of the year to which it applies.

34 3. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, a licensee in
35 active practice within this State must submit satisfactory proof to the
36 Board that he has attended at least 12 hours of continuing education
37 which is approved or endorsed by the Board. The educational
38 requirement of this section may be waived by the Board if the
39 licensee files with the Board a statement of a chiropractic physician,
40 osteopathic physician or doctor of medicine certifying that the
41 licensee is suffering from a serious or disabling illness or physical
42 disability which prevented him from completing the requirements
43 for continuing education during the 12 months immediately
44 preceding the renewal date of his license.



4. A licensee is not required to comply with the requirements of subsection 3 until the calendar year after the year the Board issues to him an initial license to practice as a chiropractor in this State.

5. If a licensee fails to:

(a) Pay his renewal fee by January 1;

~~(b) [Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 634.095 by January 1;~~

~~—(c)]~~ Submit proof of continuing education pursuant to subsection 3; ~~for~~

~~—(d)]~~ (c) Notify the Board of a change in the location of his office pursuant to NRS 634.129 ~~[]~~; or

(d) Submit all information required to complete the renewal,

➔ his license is automatically suspended and may be reinstated only upon the payment of the required fee for reinstatement in addition to the renewal fee.

6. If a holder of a certificate as a chiropractor's assistant fails to:

(a) Pay his renewal fee by January 1;

~~(b) [Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 634.095 by January 1; or~~

~~—(c)]~~ Notify the Board of a change in the location of his office pursuant to NRS 634.129 ~~[]~~; or

(c) Submit all information required to complete the renewal,

➔ his certificate is automatically suspended and may be reinstated only upon the payment of the required fee for reinstatement in addition to the renewal fee.

Sec. 63. NRS 634A.110 is hereby amended to read as follows:

634A.110 1. An applicant for examination for a license to practice Oriental medicine, or any branch thereof, shall:

(a) Submit an application to the Board on forms provided by the Board;

(b) Submit satisfactory evidence that he is 21 years or older and meets the appropriate educational requirements;

(c) Submit with the application a complete set of his fingerprints which the Board may forward to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for its report;

(d) Pay a fee established by the Board of not more than \$1,000; and

(e) Pay any fees required by the Board for an investigation of the applicant or for the services of a translator, if the translator is required to enable the applicant to take the examination.



2. An application submitted to the Board pursuant to subsection 1 must include ~~[the social security number of the applicant.]~~ *all information required to complete the application.*

Sec. 64. NRS 634A.115 is hereby amended to read as follows:

634A.115 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license issued pursuant to this chapter shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.

(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license issued pursuant to this chapter shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license may not be issued or renewed by the Board pursuant to this chapter if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 65. NRS 634A.115 is hereby amended to read as follows:

634A.115 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~f:~~

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license issued pursuant to this chapter shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license issued pursuant to this chapter shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of



1 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
2 completed and signed by the applicant.

3 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
4 subsection 1 in:

5 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
6 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

7 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

8 3. A license may not be issued or renewed by the Board
9 pursuant to this chapter if the applicant:

10 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
11 1; or

12 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
13 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
14 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
15 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
16 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

17 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
18 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
19 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
20 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
21 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
22 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
23 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
24 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

25 **Sec. 66.** NRS 634A.160 is hereby amended to read as follows:

26 634A.160 1. Every license must be displayed in the office,
27 place of business or place of employment of the holder thereof.

28 2. Every person holding a license shall pay to the Board on or
29 before February 1 of each year, the annual fee for a license required
30 pursuant to subsection 4. The holder of a license shall submit with
31 the fee ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 634A.115.]~~ *all*
32 *information required to complete the renewal of the license.* If the
33 holder of a license fails to pay the fee or submit ~~[the statement.]~~ *all*
34 *required information,* his license must be suspended. The license
35 may be reinstated by payment of the required fee and submission of
36 ~~[the statement]~~ *all required information* within 90 days after
37 February 1.

38 3. A license which is suspended for more than 3 months under
39 the provisions of subsection 2 may be cancelled by the Board after
40 30 days' notice to the holder of the license.

41 4. The annual fee for a license must be prescribed annually by
42 the Board and must not exceed \$1,000.

43 **Sec. 67.** NRS 634A.167 is hereby amended to read as follows:

44 634A.167 1. To renew a license issued pursuant to this
45 chapter, each person must, on or before February 1 of each year:



- 1 (a) Apply to the Board for renewal;
- 2 (b) ~~Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 634A.115;~~
- 3 ~~(c)~~ Pay the annual fee for a license prescribed by the Board;
- 4 ~~and~~
- 5 ~~(d)~~ (c) Submit evidence to the Board of his completion of the
- 6 requirements for continuing education ~~[]~~ ; and
- 7 (d) *Submit all information required to complete the renewal.*
- 8 2. The Board shall, as a prerequisite for the renewal or
- 9 reinstatement of a license, require each holder of a license to comply
- 10 with the requirements for continuing education adopted by the
- 11 Board.

12 **Sec. 68.** NRS 635.050 is hereby amended to read as follows:

13 635.050 1. Any person desiring to practice podiatry in this

14 State must furnish the Board with satisfactory proof that he:

- 15 (a) Is of good moral character.
- 16 (b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to
- 17 remain and work in the United States.
- 18 (c) Has received the degree of D.P.M., Doctor of Podiatric
- 19 Medicine, from an accredited school of podiatry.
- 20 (d) Has completed a residency approved by the Board.
- 21 (e) Has passed the examination given by the National Board of
- 22 Podiatric Medical Examiners.
- 23 (f) Has not committed any act described in subsection 2 of NRS
- 24 635.130. For the purposes of this paragraph, an affidavit signed by
- 25 the applicant stating that he has not committed any act described in
- 26 subsection 2 of NRS 635.130 constitutes satisfactory proof.

27 2. An applicant is entitled to be examined by the Board or a

28 committee thereof pursuant to such regulations as the Board may

29 adopt if he:

- 30 (a) Pays the fee for an application for a license of not more than
- 31 \$600;
- 32 (b) Pays the fee for the examination for a license of not more
- 33 than \$200;
- 34 (c) ~~Submits the statement required pursuant to NRS 635.056;~~
- 35 ~~and~~
- 36 ~~(d)~~ Submits proof satisfactory to the Board as required by
- 37 subsection 1 ~~[]~~ ; and
- 38 (d) *Submits all information required to complete an*
- 39 *application for a license.*

40 ➔ The Board shall, by regulation, establish the fees required to be

41 paid pursuant to this subsection.

42 3. The Board may reject an application if it appears that the

43 applicant's credentials are fraudulent or the applicant has practiced

44 podiatry without a license or committed any act described in

45 subsection 2 of NRS 635.130.



1 4. The Board may require such further documentation or proof
2 of qualification as it may deem proper.

3 5. The provisions of this section do not apply to a person who
4 applies for a limited license to practice podiatry pursuant to
5 NRS 635.075.

6 **Sec. 69.** NRS 635.056 is hereby amended to read as follows:

7 635.056 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
8 *in this chapter:*

9 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice*
10 *podiatry or to practice as a podiatry hygienist shall include the*
11 *social security number of the applicant in the application*
12 *submitted to the Board.*

13 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
14 practice podiatry or to practice as a podiatry hygienist shall submit
15 to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the
16 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
17 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

18 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
19 subsection 1 in:

20 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
21 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

22 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.


23 3. A license to practice podiatry or to practice as a podiatry
24 hygienist may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the
25 applicant:

26 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
27 1; or

28 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
29 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
30 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
31 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
32 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

33 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
34 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
35 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
36 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
37 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
38 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
39 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
40 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

41 **Sec. 70.** NRS 635.056 is hereby amended to read as follows:

42 635.056 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
43 this chapter 



~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice podiatry or to practice as a podiatry hygienist shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to practice podiatry or to practice as a podiatry hygienist shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license to practice podiatry or to practice as a podiatry hygienist may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 71. NRS 635.093 is hereby amended to read as follows:

635.093 1. Any person desiring to be licensed as a podiatry hygienist in this State must furnish the Board with satisfactory proof that he:

(a) Is of good moral character.

(b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States.

(c) Has satisfactorily completed a course for podiatry hygienists approved by the Board or has had 6 months or more of training in a podiatric physician's office as approved by the Board.

2. Upon payment of a fee, not exceeding \$100, which must be established by regulation of the Board, ~~[submitting the statement required pursuant to NRS 635.056 and]~~ presenting satisfactory proof as required by subsection 1 ~~[]~~ *and submitting all information*



1 *required to complete an application for a license*, an applicant, not
2 exempted under subsection 3, must be examined by the Board or a
3 committee thereof under such regulations as the Board may adopt.

4 3. The Board may, without examination, admit to practice as a
5 podiatry hygienist a person who is employed by a podiatric
6 physician and is:

7 (a) A registered nurse; or

8 (b) A licensed practical nurse whom the Board or any of its
9 members have interviewed and observed in the use of practical
10 skills.

11 **Sec. 72.** NRS 635.110 is hereby amended to read as follows:

12 635.110 1. A license issued under the provisions of this
13 chapter expires on October 31 of each year. A license may be
14 renewed before its expiration upon presentation of proof of:

15 (a) Completion of the hours of continuing education required
16 pursuant to NRS 635.115;

17 (b) Current certification in the techniques of administering
18 cardiopulmonary resuscitation;

19 (c) Submission of ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
20 ~~635.056;~~ *all information required to complete the renewal;* and

21 (d) Payment of a renewal fee in an amount not to exceed \$600
22 for a podiatric physician and not to exceed \$100 for a podiatry
23 hygienist. The Board shall, by regulation, establish the amount of
24 each fee.

25 2. A license which is not renewed by October 31 of each year
26 is delinquent. A delinquent license may be reinstated, at the
27 discretion of the Board, upon payment of the appropriate annual
28 renewal fee and an additional annual fee for delinquency in an
29 amount established by the Board.

30 **Sec. 73.** NRS 636.159 is hereby amended to read as follows:

31 636.159 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
32 *in this chapter:*

33 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice*
34 *optometry shall include the social security number of the applicant*
35 *in the application submitted to the Board.*

36 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
37 practice optometry shall submit to the Board the statement
38 prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human
39 Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
40 completed and signed by the applicant.

41 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
42 subsection 1 in:

43 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
44 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

45 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.



3. A license to practice optometry may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 74. NRS 636.159 is hereby amended to read as follows:

636.159 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter f:

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice optometry shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to practice optometry shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license to practice optometry may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by



1 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
2 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
3 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
4 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
5 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

6 **Sec. 75.** NRS 636.215 is hereby amended to read as follows:

7 636.215 The Board shall execute a license for each person who
8 has satisfied the requirements of NRS 636.150 and ~~[636.159.]~~
9 *submitted all information required to complete an application for*
10 *a license.* A license must:

11 1. Certify that the licensee has been examined and found
12 qualified to practice optometry in this State; and

13 2. Be signed by each member of the Board.

14 **Sec. 76.** NRS 636.265 is hereby amended to read as follows:

15 636.265 Upon ~~[submission of the statement required pursuant~~
16 ~~to NRS 636.159.]~~ payment of the renewal fee, ~~[and]~~ submission of
17 evidence of completion of the required number of hours of
18 continuing education ~~[;]~~ *and submission of all information*
19 *required to complete the renewal,* the Executive Director shall
20 execute and issue a renewal card for the license to the licensee,
21 certifying that his license has been renewed for a 12-month period
22 beginning March 1 of each year. The renewal card must indicate the
23 address of the place of the licensee's practice for which the card is
24 issued and be displayed prominently at that location. The renewal
25 card must be signed by the Executive Director and sealed with the
26 seal of the Board.

27 **Sec. 77.** NRS 636.275 is hereby amended to read as follows:

28 636.275 1. A license which has been suspended for failure of
29 the licensee to pay the annual renewal fee or to submit ~~[the~~
30 ~~statement required pursuant to NRS 636.159]~~ *all information*
31 *required to complete the renewal* may be restored at any time
32 during the calendar year upon the licensee:

33 (a) ~~[Submitting the statement required pursuant to~~
34 ~~NRS 636.159;~~

35 ~~—(b)]~~ Paying the annual fee; ~~[and]~~

36 ~~—(e)]~~ (b) Paying the Executive Director a nonrenewal penalty in
37 the amount prescribed by NRS 636.285 ~~[;]~~ *and*

38 (c) *Submitting all required information.*

39 2. A license which has been suspended for failure of the
40 licensee to submit evidence of completion of the required number of
41 hours of continuing education may be restored upon the licensee
42 completing the continuing education, if such completion occurs
43 during the calendar year in which the suspension has occurred.

44 3. Any license suspended pursuant to the provisions of NRS
45 636.270 must be revoked at the end of the calendar year during



1 which it was suspended unless the license is restored pursuant to
2 subsection 1 or 2.

3 **Sec. 78.** NRS 637.113 is hereby amended to read as follows:

4 637.113 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
5 this chapter ~~[, an]~~ :

6 *(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as a dispensing*
7 *optician or apprentice dispensing optician shall include the social*
8 *security number of the applicant in the application submitted to*
9 *the Board.*

10 *(b) An* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a
11 dispensing optician or apprentice dispensing optician shall submit to
12 the Board ~~[-~~:

13 ~~—(a) In any application for issuance of a license, the social~~
14 ~~security number of the applicant and]~~ the statement prescribed by
15 the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources
16 pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and
17 signed by the applicant.

18 ~~[(b) In any application for renewal of a license, the statement~~
19 ~~prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human~~
20 ~~Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be~~
21 ~~completed and signed by the applicant.]~~

22 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
23 subsection 1 in:

24 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
25 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

26 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

27 3. A license as a dispensing optician or apprentice dispensing
28 optician may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

29 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
30 1; or

31 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
32 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
33 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
34 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
35 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

36 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
37 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
38 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
39 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
40 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
41 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
42 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
43 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



Sec. 79. NRS 637.113 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637.113 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~[-~~:

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as a dispensing optician or apprentice dispensing optician shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a dispensing optician or apprentice dispensing optician shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license as a dispensing optician or apprentice dispensing optician may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 80. NRS 637A.130 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637A.130 1. An application for an examination must be filed in writing with the Board at least 60 days before the meeting of the Board immediately preceding the examination, and be accompanied by the application fee prescribed in NRS 637A.210.

2. The application must include ~~[the social security number of the applicant.]~~ *all information required to complete the application.*



1 **Sec. 81.** NRS 637A.160 is hereby amended to read as follows:

2 637A.160 1. Subject to the provisions of NRS 637A.170, any
3 person who intends to commence business as a hearing aid specialist
4 must comply with the following requirements:

5 (a) Make application for examination.

6 (b) Take and pass the examination.

7 (c) ~~[Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 637A.163.~~

8 —(d) Pay the prescribed fees, including the annual license fee and
9 the initial license fee prescribed in NRS 637A.210.

10 (d) *Submit all information required to complete the*
11 *application.*

12 2. The license must be issued and delivered by the Secretary to
13 the licensee therein named upon compliance by the licensee with the
14 requirements prescribed in subsection 1.

15 **Sec. 82.** NRS 637A.163 is hereby amended to read as follows:

16 637A.163 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
17 *in this chapter:*

18 (a) *An applicant for an examination as a hearing aid specialist*
19 *or an applicant for the issuance of a license as an apprentice to a*
20 *hearing aid specialist shall include the social security number of*
21 *the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

22 (b) An applicant for an examination as a hearing aid specialist,
23 the renewal of a license as a hearing aid specialist or the issuance or
24 renewal of a license as an apprentice to a hearing aid specialist shall
25 submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare
26 Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS
27 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the
28 applicant.

29 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
30 subsection 1 in:

31 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
32 for the examination for or the issuance or renewal of the license; or

33 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

34 3. A license as a hearing aid specialist or an apprentice to a
35 hearing aid specialist may not be issued or renewed by the Board if
36 the applicant:

37 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
38 1; or

39 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
40 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
41 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
42 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
43 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

44 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
45 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a



1 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
2 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
3 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
4 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
5 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
6 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

7 **Sec. 83.** NRS 637A.163 is hereby amended to read as follows:

8 637A.163 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
9 this chapter ~~[-~~:

10 ~~—(a) An applicant for an examination as a hearing aid specialist or~~
11 ~~an applicant for the issuance of a license as an apprentice to a~~
12 ~~hearing aid specialist shall include the social security number of the~~
13 ~~applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

14 ~~—(b) An~~ , *an* applicant for an examination as a hearing aid
15 specialist, the renewal of a license as a hearing aid specialist or the
16 issuance or renewal of a license as an apprentice to a hearing aid
17 specialist shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
18 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
19 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
20 the applicant.

21 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
22 subsection 1 in:

23 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
24 for the examination for or the issuance or renewal of the license; or

25 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

26 3. A license as a hearing aid specialist or an apprentice to a
27 hearing aid specialist may not be issued or renewed by the Board if
28 the applicant:

29 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
30 1; or

31 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
32 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
33 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
34 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
35 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

36 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
37 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of
38 a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
39 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
40 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
41 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
42 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
43 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



Sec. 84. NRS 637A.200 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637A.200 1. Licenses expire on June 30 next following the date of issuance.

2. A licensee may have his license renewed for 1 year beginning on July 1, by:

(a) ~~Submitting the statement required pursuant to NRS 637A.163;~~

~~(b)}~~ Showing that he has fulfilled any requirements established by the Board for continuing education; ~~and~~

~~(c)}~~ (b) Paying the annual license fee ~~[-]~~; and

(c) *Submitting all information required to complete the renewal.*

3. A licensee who fails to pay the annual license fee or submit ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 637A.163~~ *all information required to complete the renewal* may have his license renewed without examination within 5 years after the date of expiration by:

(a) Complying with the requirements of subsection 2; and

(b) Paying the lapsed renewal fee in addition to the annual license fee.

Sec. 85. NRS 637A.220 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637A.220 1. A licensed hearing aid specialist who:

(a) Has engaged in the practice of fitting and dispensing hearing aids for at least 3 years; and

(b) Has obtained the approval of the Board,

➤ may employ any person 21 years of age or over to assist him in the business of a hearing aid specialist if the person is licensed by the Board as an apprentice to a hearing aid specialist.

2. An applicant for licensure as an apprentice must submit to the Board ~~an~~:

(a) *An* application in the form adopted by the Board ~~and the~~;

(b) *The* applicable fees ~~[- The application must include the social security number of the applicant.]; and~~

(c) *All information required to complete the application.*

Sec. 86. NRS 637B.160 is hereby amended to read as follows:

637B.160 1. An applicant for a license to engage in the practice of audiology or speech pathology must be issued a license by the Board if he:

(a) Is over the age of 21 years;

(b) Is a citizen of the United States, or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;

(c) Is of good moral character;

(d) Meets the requirements for education or training and experience provided by subsection 2;

(e) Has completed at least 300 clock hours of supervised clinical experience in audiology or speech pathology, or both;



- 1 (f) Applies for the license in the manner provided by the Board;
2 (g) ~~[(Submits the statement required pursuant to NRS 637B.166;~~
3 ~~—(h)]~~ Passes any examination required by this chapter; ~~[and~~
4 ~~—(i)]~~ (h) Pays the fees provided for in this chapter ~~[.]; and~~
5 (i) *Submits all information required to complete an application*
6 *for a license.*

7 2. An applicant must possess a master's degree in audiology or
8 in speech pathology from an accredited educational institution or
9 possess equivalent training and experience. If he seeks to qualify on
10 the basis of equivalent training and experience, the applicant must
11 submit to the Board satisfactory evidence that he has obtained at
12 least 60 semester credits, or equivalent quarter credits, in courses
13 related to the normal development, function and use of speech and
14 language or hearing, including, but not limited to, the management
15 of disorders of speech or hearing and the legal, professional and
16 ethical practices of audiology or speech pathology. At least 24 of the
17 60 credits, excluding any credits obtained for a thesis or dissertation,
18 must have been obtained for courses directly relating to audiology
19 or speech pathology.

20 **Sec. 87.** NRS 637B.166 is hereby amended to read as follows:
21 637B.166 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
22 *in this chapter:*

23 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license to engage in the*
24 *practice of audiology or speech pathology shall include the social*
25 *security number of the applicant in the application submitted to*
26 *the Board.*

27 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
28 engage in the practice of audiology or speech pathology shall submit
29 to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the
30 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
31 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

32 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
33 subsection 1 in:

34 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
35 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

36 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

37 3. A license to engage in the practice of audiology or speech
38 pathology may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the
39 applicant:

40 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
41 1; or

42 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
43 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
44 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district



1 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
2 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

3 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
4 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
5 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
6 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
7 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
8 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
9 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
10 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

11 **Sec. 88.** NRS 637B.166 is hereby amended to read as follows:

12 637B.166 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
13 this chapter ~~f~~:

14 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to engage in the~~
15 ~~practice of audiology or speech pathology shall include the social~~
16 ~~security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the~~
17 ~~Board.~~

18 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
19 engage in the practice of audiology or speech pathology shall submit
20 to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the
21 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
22 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

23 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
24 subsection 1 in:

25 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
26 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

27 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

28 3. A license to engage in the practice of audiology or speech
29 pathology may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the
30 applicant:

31 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
32 1; or

33 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
34 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
35 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
36 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
37 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

38 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
39 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
40 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
41 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
42 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
43 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
44 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
45 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



1 **Sec. 89.** NRS 637B.210 is hereby amended to read as follows:

2 637B.210 1. All licenses issued pursuant to this chapter,
3 except a temporary license, expire on December 31 of each year.

4 2. Each holder of a license to practice audiology or speech
5 pathology, except a temporary license, who meets the requirements
6 for continuing education prescribed by the Board may renew his
7 license before its expiration upon ~~{submission of the statement~~
8 ~~required pursuant to NRS 637B.166 and}~~ payment of the fee for
9 annual renewal of a license ~~{}~~ *and submission of all information*
10 *required to complete the annual renewal of a license.*

11 3. If a licensee fails to ~~{submit the statement required pursuant~~
12 ~~to NRS 637B.166 or}~~ pay the fee *or submit all required*
13 *information* for annual renewal of his license before its expiration,
14 his license may be renewed only upon the payment of the
15 reinstatement fee in addition to the renewal fee. A license may be
16 renewed pursuant to this subsection only if all fees are paid and ~~{the~~
17 ~~statement required pursuant to NRS 637B.166}~~ *all required*
18 *information* is submitted within 3 years after the license has
19 expired.

20 4. A licensee who wishes to have his license reinstated must
21 prove to the satisfaction of the Board that he has met the
22 requirements for continuing education prescribed by the Board for
23 the period during which his license was expired.

24 **Sec. 90.** NRS 638.100 is hereby amended to read as follows:

25 638.100 1. Any person who desires to secure a license to
26 practice veterinary medicine, surgery, obstetrics or dentistry in the
27 State of Nevada must make written application to the Executive
28 Director of the Board.

29 2. The application must include ~~{the social security number of~~
30 ~~the applicant}~~ *all information required to complete the application*
31 and any other information required by the Board and must be
32 accompanied by satisfactory proof that the applicant:

33 (a) Is of good moral character;

34 (b) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, has received a
35 diploma conferring the degree of doctor of veterinary medicine or
36 its equivalent from a school of veterinary medicine that is accredited
37 by the Council on Education of the American Veterinary Medical
38 Association or, if the applicant is a graduate of a school of
39 veterinary medicine that is not accredited by the Council on
40 Education of the American Veterinary Medical Association, that he
41 has received an educational certificate issued by the Educational
42 Commission for Foreign Veterinary Graduates of the American
43 Veterinary Medical Association or, if the Educational Commission
44 for Foreign Veterinary Graduates of the American Veterinary
45 Medical Association ceases to exist, by an organization approved by



1 the Board that certifies that the holder of the certificate has
2 demonstrated knowledge and skill of veterinary medicine that is
3 equivalent to the knowledge and skill of veterinary medicine of a
4 graduate of a college of veterinary medicine that is accredited by the
5 Council on Education of the American Veterinary Medical
6 Association;

7 (c) Has passed each examination required by the Board pursuant
8 to NRS 638.110; and

9 (d) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to
10 remain and work in the United States.

11 3. A veterinary student in his final year at a school accredited
12 by the American Veterinary Medical Association may submit an
13 application to the Board and take the state examination administered
14 by the Board, but the Board may not issue him a license until he has
15 complied with the requirements of subsection 2.

16 4. The application must be signed by the applicant, notarized
17 and accompanied by a fee set by the Board, not to exceed \$500.

18 5. The Board may refuse to issue a license if the Board
19 determines that an applicant has committed an act which would be a
20 ground for disciplinary action if the applicant were a licensee.

21 **Sec. 91.** NRS 638.103 is hereby amended to read as follows:

22 638.103 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
23 *in this chapter:*

24 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice as a*
25 *veterinarian, euthanasia technician or veterinary technician shall*
26 *include the social security number of the applicant in the*
27 *application submitted to the Board.*

28 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
29 practice as a veterinarian, euthanasia technician or veterinary
30 technician shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
31 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
32 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
33 the applicant.

34 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
35 subsection 1 in:

36 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
37 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

38 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

39 3. A license to practice as a veterinarian, euthanasia technician
40 or veterinary technician may not be issued or renewed by the Board
41 if the applicant:

42 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
43 1; or

44 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
45 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is



1 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
2 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
3 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
5 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
6 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
7 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
8 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
9 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
10 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
11 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

12 **Sec. 92.** NRS 638.103 is hereby amended to read as follows:

13 638.103 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
14 this chapter ~~f:~~

15 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice as a~~
16 ~~veterinarian, euthanasia technician or veterinary technician shall~~
17 ~~include the social security number of the applicant in the application~~
18 ~~submitted to the Board.~~

19 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
20 practice as a veterinarian, euthanasia technician or veterinary
21 technician shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
22 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
23 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
24 the applicant.

25 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
26 subsection 1 in:

27 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
28 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

29 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

30 3. A license to practice as a veterinarian, euthanasia technician
31 or veterinary technician may not be issued or renewed by the Board
32 if the applicant:

33 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
34 1; or

35 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
36 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
37 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
38 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
39 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

40 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
41 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
42 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
43 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
44 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
45 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other



1 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
2 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

3 **Sec. 93.** NRS 638.116 is hereby amended to read as follows:

4 638.116 1. Any person who desires to secure a license as a
5 euthanasia technician must make written application to the
6 Executive Director of the Board.

7 2. The application must be accompanied by satisfactory proof
8 that the applicant:

9 (a) Is of good moral character.

10 (b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to
11 remain and work in the United States.

12 (c) Is employed by a law enforcement agency, an animal control
13 agency, or by a society for the prevention of cruelty to animals that
14 is in compliance with the provisions of chapter 574 of NRS.

15 (d) Has not been convicted of a felony.

16 (e) Has furnished any other information required by the Board.

17 3. The application must ~~include the social security number of~~
18 ~~the applicant and~~ be accompanied by [a]:

19 (a) A fee to be set by the Board in an amount not to exceed \$500
20 [f]; and

21 (b) *All information required to complete the application.*

22 **Sec. 94.** NRS 638.122 is hereby amended to read as follows:

23 638.122 1. Any person who desires to secure a license as a
24 veterinary technician must make written application to the
25 Executive Director of the Board.

26 2. The application must be accompanied by satisfactory proof
27 that the applicant:

28 (a) Is of good moral character.

29 (b) Has received a diploma conferring the degree of veterinary
30 technician or its equivalent after having completed a college level
31 course at a school approved by the Board.

32 (c) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to
33 remain and work in the United States.

34 (d) Has furnished any other information required by the Board.

35 3. The application must ~~include the social security number of~~
36 ~~the applicant and~~ be accompanied by [a]:

37 (a) A fee to be set by the Board in an amount not to exceed \$500
38 [f]; and

39 (b) *All information required to complete the application.*

40 **Sec. 95.** NRS 638.127 is hereby amended to read as follows:

41 638.127 1. On or before November 15 of each year, the
42 Executive Director shall mail to each person licensed under the
43 provisions of this chapter an application form for the renewal of his
44 license.



2. Each applicant for renewal must complete the form and return it to the Executive Director, accompanied by ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 638.103,~~ *all information required to complete the renewal*, the renewal fee and full payment of all fines which he owes to the Board, on or before January 1 of each year. Each application for renewal must be signed by the applicant. The renewal fee for licensees and persons on inactive status must be in an amount determined by the Board.

3. Upon receipt of the application and ~~statement~~ *all required information* and payment of the renewal fee and all fines owed, the Board shall issue to that person a certificate of renewal.

4. Any person who fails to renew his license on or before March 1 of each year forfeits his license.

5. When a person has forfeited his license in the manner provided in subsection 4, the Board may reinstate the license and issue a certificate of renewal upon receipt of ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 638.103~~ *all information required to complete the renewal* and payment of:

(a) The renewal fee;

(b) All fines owed; and

(c) A delinquency penalty of \$50 for each month or fraction thereof the license was not renewed after January 1.

6. If a licensee does not practice for more than 12 consecutive months, the Board may require him to take an examination to determine his competency before renewing his license.

7. If a licensee does not renew his license and he is licensed to practice in another state or territory of the United States, the Board may not issue him a license to practice in the State by reciprocity. Such a licensee must reinstate his license in the manner prescribed by the Board.

Sec. 96. NRS 639.129 is hereby amended to read as follows:

639.129 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) *A natural person who applies for the issuance of a certificate of registration as a pharmacist, intern pharmacist, pharmaceutical technician or pharmaceutical technician in training or a license issued pursuant to NRS 639.233 shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

(b) *A natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a certificate of registration as a pharmacist, intern pharmacist, pharmaceutical technician or pharmaceutical technician in training or a license issued pursuant to NRS 639.233 shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the*



1 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
2 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

3 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
4 subsection 1 in:

5 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
6 for the issuance or renewal of the certificate or license; or

7 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

8 3. A certificate of registration as a pharmacist, intern
9 pharmacist, pharmaceutical technician or pharmaceutical technician
10 in training or a license issued pursuant to NRS 639.233 may not be
11 issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant is a natural person
12 who:

13 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
14 1; or

15 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
16 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
17 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
18 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
19 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

20 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
21 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
22 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
23 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
24 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
25 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
26 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
27 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

28 **Sec. 97.** NRS 639.129 is hereby amended to read as follows:

29 639.129 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
30 this chapter ~~f~~:

31 ~~—(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a certificate~~
32 ~~of registration as a pharmacist, intern pharmacist, pharmaceutical~~
33 ~~technician or pharmaceutical technician in training or a license~~
34 ~~issued pursuant to NRS 639.233 shall include the social security~~
35 ~~number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

36 ~~—(b) A~~, a natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal
37 of a certificate of registration as a pharmacist, intern pharmacist,
38 pharmaceutical technician or pharmaceutical technician in training
39 or a license issued pursuant to NRS 639.233 shall submit to the
40 Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the
41 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
42 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

43 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
44 subsection 1 in:



1 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
2 for the issuance or renewal of the certificate or license; or

3 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

4 3. A certificate of registration as a pharmacist, intern
5 pharmacist, pharmaceutical technician or pharmaceutical technician
6 in training or a license issued pursuant to NRS 639.233 may not be
7 issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant is a natural person
8 who:

9 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
10 1; or

11 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
12 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
13 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
14 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
15 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

16 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
17 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
18 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
19 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
20 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
21 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
22 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
23 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

24 **Sec. 98.** NRS 639.180 is hereby amended to read as follows:

25 639.180 1. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, a
26 certificate, license or permit issued by the Board pursuant to this
27 chapter expires on October 31 of each even-numbered year. A
28 certificate of registration as a pharmacist expires on October 31 of
29 each odd-numbered year.

30 2. Except as otherwise provided by NRS 639.137, 639.230 and
31 639.2328, each person to whom a certificate, license or permit has
32 been issued may, if the certificate, license or permit has not been
33 revoked, renew the certificate, license or permit biennially by:

34 (a) Filing an application for renewal;

35 (b) Paying the fee for renewal;

36 (c) Complying with the requirement of continuing professional
37 education, if applicable; and

38 (d) ~~If the applicant is a natural person who is applying for the~~
39 ~~renewal of a certificate of registration as a pharmacist, intern~~
40 ~~pharmacist, pharmaceutical technician or pharmaceutical technician~~
41 ~~in training or a license issued pursuant to NRS 639.233, submitting~~
42 ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 639.129.]~~ *Submitting all*
43 *information required to complete the renewal.*

44 3. The application for renewal, together with the fee for
45 renewal and ~~[, if applicable, the statement,]~~ *all required*



1 *information*, must be delivered to the Executive Secretary of the
2 Board on or before the expiration date of the certificate, license or
3 permit, or the current renewal receipt thereof.

4 4. If a certificate, license or permit is renewed, it must be
5 delivered to the applicant within a reasonable time after receipt of
6 the application for renewal and the fee for renewal.

7 5. The Board may refuse to renew a certificate, license or
8 permit if the applicant has committed any act proscribed by
9 NRS 639.210.

10 6. If the application for renewal, ~~[and]~~ the fee for renewal and
11 ~~[, if applicable, the statement]~~ *all required information* are not
12 postmarked on or before the expiration date of the certificate,
13 license or permit, or the current renewal receipt thereof, the
14 registration is automatically forfeited.

15 **Sec. 99.** NRS 640.090 is hereby amended to read as follows:

16 640.090 Unless he is entitled to licensure under NRS 640.120
17 or 640.140, a person who desires to be licensed as a physical
18 therapist must:

19 1. Apply to the Board, in writing, on a form furnished by the
20 Board;

21 2. Include in the application ~~[his social security number and]~~
22 evidence, under oath, satisfactory to the Board, that he possesses the
23 qualifications required by NRS 640.080 other than having passed
24 the examination;

25 3. Pay to the Board at the time of filing his application a fee set
26 by a regulation of the Board in an amount not to exceed \$300;

27 4. Submit to the Board with his application a complete set of
28 his fingerprints which the Board may forward to the Central
29 Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History for submission
30 to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for its report; ~~[and]~~

31 5. Submit other documentation and proof the Board may
32 require ~~[; and]~~

33 6. *Submit all other information required to complete the*
34 *application.*

35 **Sec. 100.** NRS 640.095 is hereby amended to read as follows:

36 640.095 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
37 *in this chapter:*

38 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license as a physical*
39 *therapist or physical therapist's assistant shall include the social*
40 *security number of the applicant in the application submitted to*
41 *the Board.*

42 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a
43 physical therapist or physical therapist's assistant shall submit to the
44 Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the



1 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
2 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

3 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
4 subsection 1 in:

5 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
6 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

7 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

8 3. A license as a physical therapist or physical therapist's
9 assistant may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

10 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
11 1; or

12 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
13 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
14 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
15 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
16 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

17 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
18 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
19 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
20 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
21 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
22 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
23 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
24 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

25 **Sec. 101.** NRS 640.095 is hereby amended to read as follows:

26 640.095 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
27 this chapter ~~f~~:

28 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as a physical~~
29 ~~therapist or physical therapist's assistant shall include the social~~
30 ~~security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the~~
31 ~~Board.~~

32 ~~—(b) An~~, **an** applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as
33 a physical therapist or physical therapist's assistant shall submit to
34 the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the
35 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
36 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

37 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
38 subsection 1 in:

39 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
40 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

41 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

42 3. A license as a physical therapist or physical therapist's
43 assistant may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

44 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
45 1; or



(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 102. NRS 640.150 is hereby amended to read as follows:

640.150 1. A license to practice physical therapy expires on July 31 of each year. A physical therapist may renew his license before its expiration upon:

(a) Presentation of proof of completion of a program of continuing education as required by subsection 3;

(b) ~~Submission of the statement required pursuant to NRS 640.095; and~~

~~—(c)—~~ Payment of a renewal fee established by the Board ~~[-]~~; and

(c) *Submission of all information required to complete the renewal.*

2. A license that is not renewed before July 31 of each year expires. An expired license may be reinstated, at the discretion of the Board, upon ~~submission of the statement required pursuant to NRS 640.095 and payment~~ :

(a) *Payment* of the annual renewal fee and the annual expiration fee established by the Board for each year the license is expired ~~[-]~~; and

(b) *Submission of all information required to complete the renewal.*

3. The Board shall require licensed physical therapists to complete a program of continuing education as a requirement for the renewal of licenses. The Board shall, by regulation:

(a) Prescribe the curriculum;

(b) Approve the courses of study or training; and

(c) Establish the fees,

➔ for the program.

Sec. 103. NRS 640.250 is hereby amended to read as follows:

640.250 Unless he is entitled to a license under NRS 640.270, a person who desires to be licensed as a physical therapist's assistant must:



1 1. Apply to the Board, in writing, on a form furnished by the
2 Board. The application for licensure as a physical therapist's
3 assistant must also be signed by the supervising physical therapist of
4 the applicant.

5 2. Include in the application ~~this social security number and~~
6 evidence, under oath, satisfactory to the Board, that he possesses the
7 qualifications required by NRS 640.230 other than having passed
8 the examination.

9 3. Pay to the Board at the time of filing his application a fee set
10 by a regulation of the Board in an amount not to exceed \$200.

11 4. Submit to the Board with his application a complete set of
12 his fingerprints which the Board may forward to the Central
13 Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History for submission
14 to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for its report.

15 5. Submit such documentation and proof as the Board may
16 require.

17 6. Pay the fee for examination of the applicant as the Board
18 may establish.

19 *7. Submit all other information required to complete the*
20 *application.*

21 **Sec. 104.** NRS 640.280 is hereby amended to read as follows:

22 640.280 1. The license of a physical therapist's assistant
23 expires on July 31 of each year. A physical therapist's assistant may
24 renew his license before its expiration upon:

25 (a) Presentation of proof of completion of a program of
26 continuing education as required by subsection 3;

27 (b) ~~Submission of the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
28 ~~640.095; and~~

29 ~~—(c)—~~ Payment of the renewal fee established by the Board ~~{} ;~~
30 *and*

31 *(c) Submission of all information required to complete the*
32 *renewal.*

33 2. A license that is not renewed before July 31 of each year
34 expires. The Board may reinstate an expired license upon payment
35 of the annual renewal fee and the annual expiration fee established
36 by the Board for each year the license is expired.

37 3. The Board shall require each physical therapist's assistant to
38 complete a program of continuing education as a prerequisite for the
39 renewal of his license. The Board shall prescribe the curriculum and
40 approve the courses of study or training for that program.

41 **Sec. 105.** NRS 640A.140 is hereby amended to read as
42 follows:

43 640A.140 1. A person who desires to be licensed by the
44 Board as an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant
45 must:



(a) Submit an application to the Board on a form furnished by the Board; and

(b) Provide evidence satisfactory to the Board that he possesses the qualifications required pursuant to subsections 1, 2 and 3 of NRS 640A.120.

2. The application must include ~~[the social security number of the applicant.]~~ *all information required to complete the application.*

Sec. 106. NRS 640A.145 is hereby amended to read as follows:

640A.145 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.

(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license as an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



Sec. 107. NRS 640A.145 is hereby amended to read as follows:

640A.145 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~[-~~:

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license as an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 108. NRS 640B.340 is hereby amended to read as follows:

640B.340 1. In addition to any other requirements ~~for the issuance or renewal of a license~~ set forth in this chapter ~~[-, an]~~:

(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to engage in the practice of athletic training shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.



(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to engage in the practice of athletic training ~~[must]~~ shall submit to the Board ~~[-~~:

~~—(a) The social security number of the applicant; and~~

~~—(b) The~~ the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the ~~[person's social security number and the]~~ statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license to *engage in the* practice *of* athletic training may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) ~~[Fails to submit his social security number required pursuant to subsection 1;~~

~~—(b)]~~ Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

~~[(c)]~~ (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 109. NRS 640B.340 is hereby amended to read as follows:

640B.340 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~[-~~:

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to engage in the practice of athletic training shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An]~~, an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to engage in the practice of athletic training shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:



1 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
2 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

3 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

4 3. A license to engage in the practice of athletic training may
5 not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

6 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
7 1; or

8 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
9 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
10 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
11 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
12 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

13 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
14 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
15 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
16 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
17 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
18 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
19 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
20 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

21 **Sec. 110.** NRS 641.160 is hereby amended to read as follows:

22 641.160 Each person desiring a license must make application
23 to the Board upon a form, and in a manner, prescribed by the Board.
24 The application must ~~[include the social security number of the~~
25 ~~applicant and]~~ be accompanied by the application fee prescribed by
26 the Board ~~[.]~~ *and include all information required to complete the*
27 *application.*

28 **Sec. 111.** NRS 641.175 is hereby amended to read as follows:

29 641.175 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
30 *in this chapter:*

31 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license shall include the*
32 *social security number of the applicant in the application*
33 *submitted to the Board.*

34 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license shall
35 submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare
36 Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS
37 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the
38 applicant.

39 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
40 subsection 1 in:

41 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
42 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

43 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

44 3. A license may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the
45 applicant:



(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 112. NRS 641.175 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641.175 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter {:

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board



1 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
2 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
3 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

4 **Sec. 113.** NRS 641.220 is hereby amended to read as follows:

5 641.220 1. To renew a license issued pursuant to this chapter,
6 each person must, on or before the first day of January of each odd-
7 numbered year:

8 (a) Apply to the Board for renewal;

9 (b) ~~Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 641.175;~~

10 ~~—(c)—~~ Pay the biennial fee for the renewal of a license; ~~and~~

11 ~~—(d)—~~ (c) Submit evidence to the Board of his completion of the
12 requirements for continuing education ~~[-]~~; and

13 (d) *Submit all information required to complete the renewal.*

14 2. Upon renewing his license, the holder of the license shall
15 declare his areas of competence, as determined in accordance with
16 NRS 641.112.

17 3. The Board shall, as a prerequisite for the renewal of a
18 license, require each holder to comply with the requirements for
19 continuing education adopted by the Board.

20 **Sec. 114.** NRS 641A.210 is hereby amended to read as
21 follows:

22 641A.210 Each person desiring a license must apply to the
23 Board upon a form, and in a manner, prescribed by the Board. The
24 application must ~~include the social security number of the applicant~~
25 ~~and~~ be accompanied by the application fee prescribed by the Board
26 ~~[-]~~ *and all information required to complete the application.*

27 **Sec. 115.** NRS 641A.215 is hereby amended to read as
28 follows:

29 641A.215 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
30 *in this chapter:*

31 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license as a marriage*
32 *and family therapist shall include the social security number of*
33 *the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

34 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a
35 marriage and family therapist shall submit to the Board the
36 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
37 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
38 completed and signed by the applicant.

39 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
40 subsection 1 in:

41 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
42 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

43 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

44 3. A license as a marriage and family therapist may not be
45 issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:



(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 116. NRS 641A.215 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641A.215 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~1:~~

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as a marriage and family therapist shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a marriage and family therapist shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license as a marriage and family therapist may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for



1 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
2 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
3 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
4 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

5 **Sec. 117.** NRS 641A.260 is hereby amended to read as
6 follows:

7 641A.260 1. To renew a license issued pursuant to this
8 chapter, each person must, on or before the date of expiration of the
9 current license:

10 (a) Apply to the Board for renewal;

11 (b) ~~Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 641A.215;~~

12 ~~—(c)—~~ Pay the fee for renewal set by the Board; ~~and~~

13 ~~—(d)—~~ (c) Submit evidence to the Board of his completion of the
14 requirements for continuing education ~~and~~; and

15 (d) *Submit all information required to complete the renewal.*

16 2. The Board shall, as a prerequisite for the renewal of a
17 license, require each holder to comply with the requirements for
18 continuing education adopted by the Board.

19 **Sec. 118.** NRS 641B.206 is hereby amended to read as
20 follows:

21 641B.206 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
22 *in this chapter:*

23 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license to engage in*
24 *social work as an associate in social work, a social worker, an*
25 *independent social worker or a clinical social worker shall include*
26 *the social security number of the applicant in the application*
27 *submitted to the Board.*

28 (b) An applicant for the renewal of a license to engage in social
29 work as an associate in social work or the issuance or renewal of a
30 license to engage in social work as a social worker, an independent
31 social worker or a clinical social worker shall submit to the Board
32 the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department
33 of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must
34 be completed and signed by the applicant.

35 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
36 subsection 1 in:

37 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
38 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

39 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

40 3. A license to engage in social work as an associate in social
41 work, a social worker, an independent social worker or a clinical
42 social worker may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the
43 applicant:

44 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
45 1; or



(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 119. NRS 641B.206 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641B.206 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~f~~:

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to engage in social work as an associate in social work, a social worker, an independent social worker or a clinical social worker shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, ~~an~~ applicant for the renewal of a license to engage in social work as an associate in social work or the issuance or renewal of a license to engage in social work as a social worker, an independent social worker or a clinical social worker shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license to engage in social work as an associate in social work, a social worker, an independent social worker or a clinical social worker may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.



4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 120. NRS 641B.280 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641B.280 1. Every holder of a license issued pursuant to this chapter may renew his license annually by:

(a) Applying to the Board for renewal;

(b) ~~Submitting the statement required pursuant to NRS 641B.206;~~

~~—(c)—~~ Paying the annual renewal fee set by the Board; ~~and~~

~~—(d)—~~ (c) Submitting evidence to the Board of his completion of the required continuing education ~~[-]; and~~

(d) *Submitting all information required to complete the renewal.*

2. The Board shall, as a prerequisite for the renewal of a license, require the holder to comply with the requirements for continuing education adopted by the Board.

Sec. 121. NRS 641B.290 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641B.290 1. If a licensee fails to comply with the requirements of NRS 641B.280, the license becomes delinquent and the Board shall, within 30 days after the license becomes delinquent, send a notice to that effect by certified mail, return receipt requested, to his last known address according to the records of the Board.

2. A licensee may renew his license within 60 days after the license becomes delinquent if he complies with the requirements of NRS 641B.280 and pays, in addition to the fee for the annual renewal of a license, the fee for the renewal of a delinquent license.

3. If the license is not renewed within 60 days after the license becomes delinquent, the license expires without any further notice or a hearing.

4. A person whose license expires pursuant to subsection 3 may apply to the Board for restoration of his license by:

(a) Submitting a written application for restoration;

(b) Submitting ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 641B.206;]~~ *all information required to complete the restoration;*

(c) Paying all past due renewal fees and the fee for restoration prescribed by the Board; and



(d) Passing the examination deemed necessary by the Board.

Sec. 122. NRS 641C.280 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641C.280 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license or certificate shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

(b) An applicant for the issuance, renewal, reinstatement or restoration of a license or certificate shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance, renewal, reinstatement or restoration of the license or certificate; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license or certificate may not be issued, renewed, reinstated or restored by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to notify the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 123. NRS 641C.280 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641C.280 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~f~~:

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license or certificate shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, an applicant for the issuance, renewal, reinstatement or restoration of a license or certificate shall submit to the Board the



1 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
2 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
3 completed and signed by the applicant.

4 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
5 subsection 1 in:

6 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
7 for the issuance, renewal, reinstatement or restoration of the license
8 or certificate; or

9 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

10 3. A license or certificate may not be issued, renewed,
11 reinstated or restored by the Board if the applicant:

12 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
13 1; or

14 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
15 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
16 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
17 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
18 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

19 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
20 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
21 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
22 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
23 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
24 shall advise the applicant to notify the district attorney or other
25 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
26 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

27 **Sec. 124.** NRS 641C.350 is hereby amended to read as
28 follows:

29 641C.350 The Board shall issue a license as an alcohol and
30 drug abuse counselor to:

31 1. A person who:

32 (a) Is not less than 21 years of age;

33 (b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to
34 remain and work in the United States;

35 (c) Has received a master's degree or a doctoral degree from an
36 accredited college or university in a field of social science approved
37 by the Board;

38 (d) Has completed 4,000 hours of supervised counseling of
39 alcohol and drug abusers;

40 (e) Passes the written and oral examinations prescribed by the
41 Board pursuant to NRS 641C.290;

42 (f) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470; and

43 (g) Submits ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 641C.280.]~~
44 *all information required to complete an application for a license.*

45 2. A person who:



- 1 (a) Is not less than 21 years of age;
- 2 (b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to
- 3 remain and work in the United States;
- 4 (c) Is:
- 5 (1) Licensed as a clinical social worker pursuant to chapter
- 6 641B of NRS;
- 7 (2) Licensed as a marriage and family therapist pursuant to
- 8 chapter 641A of NRS; or
- 9 (3) A nurse who is licensed pursuant to chapter 632 of NRS
- 10 and has received a master's degree or a doctoral degree from an
- 11 accredited college or university;
- 12 (d) Has completed at least 6 months of supervised counseling of
- 13 alcohol and drug abusers approved by the Board;
- 14 (e) Passes the written and oral examinations prescribed by the
- 15 Board pursuant to NRS 641C.290;
- 16 (f) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470; and
- 17 (g) Submits ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 641C.280.]~~

18 *all information required to complete an application for a license.*

19 **Sec. 125.** NRS 641C.390 is hereby amended to read as

20 follows:

21 641C.390 1. The Board shall issue a certificate as an alcohol

22 and drug abuse counselor to a person who:

- 23 (a) Is not less than 21 years of age;
- 24 (b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to
- 25 remain and work in the United States;
- 26 (c) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, has received a
- 27 bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university in a field
- 28 of social science approved by the Board;
- 29 (d) Has completed 4,000 hours of supervised counseling of
- 30 alcohol and drug abusers;
- 31 (e) Passes the written and oral examinations prescribed by the
- 32 Board pursuant to NRS 641C.290;
- 33 (f) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470; and
- 34 (g) Submits ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 641C.280.]~~

35 *all information required to complete an application for a*

36 *certificate.*

37 2. The Board may waive the educational requirement set forth

38 in paragraph (c) of subsection 1 if an applicant for a certificate has

39 contracted with or receives a grant from the Federal Government to

40 provide services as an alcohol and drug abuse counselor to persons

41 who are authorized to receive those services pursuant to 25 U.S.C.

42 §§ 450 et seq. or 25 U.S.C. §§ 1601 et seq. An alcohol and drug

43 abuse counselor certified pursuant to this section for whom the

44 educational requirement set forth in paragraph (c) of subsection 1 is

45 waived may provide services as an alcohol and drug abuse



1 counselor only to those persons who are authorized to receive those
2 services pursuant to 25 U.S.C. §§ 450 et seq. or 25 U.S.C. §§ 1601
3 et seq.

4 3. A certificate as an alcohol and drug abuse counselor is valid
5 for 2 years and may be renewed.

6 4. A certified alcohol and drug abuse counselor may:

7 (a) Engage in the practice of counseling alcohol and drug
8 abusers; and

9 (b) Diagnose or classify a person as an alcoholic or abuser of
10 drugs.

11 **Sec. 126.** NRS 641C.420 is hereby amended to read as
12 follows:

13 641C.420 1. The Board shall issue a certificate as an alcohol
14 and drug abuse counselor intern to a person who:

15 (a) Is not less than 21 years of age;

16 (b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to
17 remain and work in the United States;

18 (c) Has a high school diploma or a general equivalency diploma;

19 (d) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470;

20 (e) Submits proof to the Board that he:

21 (1) Is enrolled in a program from which he will receive an
22 associate's degree, bachelor's degree, master's degree or doctoral
23 degree in a field of social science approved by the Board; or

24 (2) Has received an associate's degree, bachelor's degree,
25 master's degree or doctoral degree in a field of social science
26 approved by the Board; and

27 (f) Submits ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 641C.280.]~~
28 *all information required to complete an application for a*
29 *certificate.*

30 2. A certificate as an alcohol and drug abuse counselor intern is
31 valid for 1 year and may be renewed. The Board may waive any
32 requirement for the renewal of a certificate upon good cause shown
33 by the holder of the certificate.

34 3. A certified intern may, under the supervision of a licensed
35 counselor:

36 (a) Engage in the practice of counseling alcohol and drug
37 abusers; and

38 (b) Diagnose or classify a person as an alcoholic or drug abuser.

39 **Sec. 127.** NRS 641C.430 is hereby amended to read as
40 follows:

41 641C.430 The Board may issue a certificate as a problem
42 gambling counselor to:

43 1. A person who:

44 (a) Is not less than 21 years of age;



(b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;

(c) Has received a bachelor's degree, master's degree or a doctoral degree from an accredited college or university in a field of social science approved by the Board;

(d) Has completed not less than 60 hours of training specific to problem gambling approved by the Board;

(e) Has completed at least 2,000 hours of supervised counseling of problem gamblers in a setting approved by the Board;

(f) Passes the written examination prescribed by the Board pursuant to NRS 641C.290;

(g) Presents himself when scheduled for an interview at a meeting of the Board;

(h) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470; and

(i) Submits ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 641C.280.]~~
all information required to complete an application for a certificate.

2. A person who:

(a) Is not less than 21 years of age;

(b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;

(c) Is licensed as:

(1) A clinical social worker pursuant to chapter 641B of NRS;

(2) A marriage and family therapist pursuant to chapter 641A of NRS;

(3) A physician pursuant to chapter 630 of NRS;

(4) A nurse pursuant to chapter 632 of NRS and has received a master's degree or a doctoral degree from an accredited college or university;

(5) A psychologist pursuant to chapter 641 of NRS; or

(6) An alcohol and drug abuse counselor pursuant to this chapter;

(d) Has completed not less than 60 hours of training specific to problem gambling approved by the Board;

(e) Has completed at least 1,000 hours of supervised counseling of problem gamblers in a setting approved by the Board;

(f) Passes the written examination prescribed by the Board pursuant to NRS 641C.290;

(g) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470; and

(h) Submits ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 641C.280.]~~
all information required to complete an application for a certificate.



Sec. 128. NRS 641C.440 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641C.440 1. The Board may issue a certificate as a problem gambling counselor intern to a person who:

(a) Is not less than 21 years of age;

(b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;

(c) Submits proof to the Board that he:

(1) Has received a bachelor's degree, master's degree or a doctoral degree from an accredited college or university in a field of social science approved by the Board; or

(2) Is enrolled in a program at an accredited college or university from which he will receive a bachelor's degree, master's degree or a doctoral degree in a field of social science approved by the Board;

(d) Has completed not less than 30 hours of training specific to problem gambling approved by the Board;

(e) Demonstrates that a certified problem gambling counselor approved by the Board has agreed to supervise him in a setting approved by the Board;

(f) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470; and

(g) Submits ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 641C.280.]~~
all information required to complete an application for a certificate.

2. A certificate as a problem gambling counselor intern is valid for 1 year and, except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, may be renewed.

3. A certificate as a problem gambling counselor intern issued to a person on the basis that he is enrolled in a program at an accredited college or university from which he will receive a bachelor's degree, master's degree or a doctoral degree in a field of social science approved by the Board may be renewed not more than nine times.

4. A certified problem gambling counselor intern may, under the supervision of a certified problem gambling counselor:

(a) Engage in the practice of counseling problem gamblers; and

(b) Assess and evaluate a person as a problem gambler.

Sec. 129. NRS 641C.450 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641C.450 Except as otherwise provided in NRS 641C.320, 641C.440 and 641C.530, a person may renew his license or certificate by submitting to the Board:

1. An application for the renewal of his license or certificate;

2. The fee for the renewal of a license or certificate prescribed in NRS 641C.470;



3. Evidence of his completion of the continuing education required by the Board;

4. If the applicant is a certified intern, the name of the licensed or certified counselor who supervises him; and

5. ~~[The statement required pursuant to NRS 641C.280.]~~ *All information required to complete the renewal.*

Sec. 130. NRS 641C.460 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641C.460 1. A license or certificate that is not renewed on or before the date on which it expires is delinquent. The Board shall, within 30 days after the license or certificate becomes delinquent, send a notice to the licensed or certified counselor or certified intern by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address of the counselor or intern as indicated in the records of the Board.

2. A licensed or certified counselor or certified intern may renew a delinquent license or certificate within 60 days after the license or certificate becomes delinquent by complying with the requirements of NRS 641C.450 and paying, in addition to the fee for the renewal of the license or certificate, the fee for the renewal of a delinquent license or certificate prescribed in NRS 641C.470.

3. A license or certificate expires 60 days after it becomes delinquent if it is not renewed within that period.

4. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 641C.530, a license or certificate that has expired may be restored if the applicant:

(a) Submits to the Board an application to restore the license or certificate;

(b) ~~[Submits to the Board the statement required pursuant to NRS 641C.280;~~

~~—(e)]~~ Pays the renewal fees for the period during which the license or certificate was expired and the fee for the restoration of a license or certificate prescribed in NRS 641C.470;

~~[(d)]~~ (c) Passes the oral and written examinations prescribed by the Board; ~~and~~

~~—(e)]~~ (d) Submits to the Board evidence of his completion of the continuing education required by the Board ~~[]~~; and

(e) *Submits all information required to complete the application.*

Sec. 131. NRS 641C.500 is hereby amended to read as follows:

641C.500 1. The Board may, by regulation, provide for the certification of a person as a detoxification technician.

2. Any regulation adopted pursuant to subsection 1 must include, without limitation, provisions relating to:



1 (a) The requirements for submitting an application for a
2 certificate, including, without limitation, the submission of a
3 complete set of fingerprints pursuant to NRS 641C.260;

4 (b) The scope of practice for a person who is issued a certificate;

5 (c) The conduct of any investigation or hearing relating to an
6 application for a certificate;

7 (d) The examination of an applicant for a certificate or a waiver
8 of examination for an applicant;

9 (e) The requirements for issuing a certificate or provisional
10 certificate;

11 (f) The duration, expiration, renewal, restoration, suspension,
12 revocation and reinstatement of a certificate;

13 (g) The grounds for refusing the issuance, renewal, restoration
14 or reinstatement of a certificate;

15 (h) The conduct of any disciplinary or other administrative
16 proceeding relating to a person who is issued a certificate;

17 (i) The filing of a complaint against a person who is issued a
18 certificate;

19 (j) The issuance of a subpoena for the attendance of witnesses
20 and the production of books, papers and records;

21 (k) The payment of fees for:

22 (1) Witnesses, mileage and attendance at a hearing or
23 deposition; and

24 (2) The issuance, renewal, restoration or reinstatement of a
25 certificate;

26 (l) The imposition of a penalty for a violation of any provision
27 of the regulations; and

28 (m) The confidentiality of any record or other information
29 maintained by the Board relating to an applicant or the holder of a
30 certificate.

31 3. A person shall not engage in any activity for which the
32 Board requires a certificate as a detoxification technician pursuant to
33 this section unless the person is the holder of such a certificate.

34 4. In addition to the provisions of subsection 2, a regulation
35 adopted pursuant to this section must include provisions that are
36 substantially similar to the requirements set forth in NRS
37 ~~641C.270,~~ 641C.280 and 641C.710. Any provision included in a
38 regulation pursuant to this subsection remains effective until the
39 provisions of NRS ~~641C.270,~~ 641C.280 and 641C.710 expire by
40 limitation.

41 5. Except as otherwise provided in this section and NRS
42 641C.900, 641C.910 and 641C.950, the provisions of this chapter
43 do not apply to the holder of a certificate that is issued in accordance
44 with a regulation adopted pursuant to this section.



6. As used in this section, "detoxification technician" means a person who is certified by the Board to provide screening for the safe withdrawal from alcohol and other drugs.

Sec. 132. NRS 642.0195 is hereby amended to read as follows:

642.0195 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice the profession of embalming, a funeral director's license, a license to conduct direct cremations or immediate burials or a certificate of registration as an apprentice embalmer shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.

(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to practice the profession of embalming, a funeral director's license, a license to conduct direct cremations or immediate burials or a certificate of registration as an apprentice embalmer shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate of registration; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license or certificate of registration described in subsection 1 may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



1 **Sec. 133.** NRS 642.0195 is hereby amended to read as
2 follows:

3 642.0195 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
4 this chapter {:

5 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license to practice the~~
6 ~~profession of embalming, a funeral director's license, a license to~~
7 ~~conduct direct cremations or immediate burials or a certificate of~~
8 ~~registration as an apprentice embalmer shall include the social~~
9 ~~security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the~~
10 ~~Board.~~

11 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license to
12 practice the profession of embalming, a funeral director's license, a
13 license to conduct direct cremations or immediate burials or a
14 certificate of registration as an apprentice embalmer shall submit to
15 the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the
16 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
17 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

18 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
19 subsection 1 in:

20 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
21 for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate of
22 registration; or

23 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

24 3. A license or certificate of registration described in
25 subsection 1 may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the
26 applicant:

27 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
28 1; or

29 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
30 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
31 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
32 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
33 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

34 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
35 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
36 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
37 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
38 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
39 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
40 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
41 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

42 **Sec. 134.** NRS 642.120 is hereby amended to read as follows:

43 642.120 1. If a licensee wishes to renew his license, the
44 Board shall renew his license, except for cause, if the licensee
45 complies with the provisions of this section.



2. The renewal fee prescribed in NRS 642.0696 and ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 642.0195~~ *all information required to complete the renewal* are due on January 1 of each year. If ~~the statement is not submitted or~~ the renewal fee is not paid *or all required information is not submitted* by February 1, a fee for the late renewal of the license will be added to the renewal fee, and in no case will the fee *for late renewal* be waived.

3. Upon receipt of ~~the statement,~~ the renewal fee , *all required information* and any fee for late renewal imposed pursuant to subsection 2, the Board shall issue a renewal certificate to the licensee.

Sec. 135. NRS 642.430 is hereby amended to read as follows:

642.430 1. The Board shall mail, on or before January 1 of each year, to each licensed funeral director and each person licensed to conduct direct cremations or immediate burials, addressed to him at his last known address, a notice that his renewal fee is due and that if the renewal fee is not paid by February 1, a fee for the late renewal of the license will be added to the renewal fee, and in no case will the fee *for late renewal* be waived.

2. Upon receipt of the renewal fee, ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 642.0195~~ *all information required to complete the renewal* and any fee for late renewal imposed pursuant to subsection 1, the Board shall issue a renewal certificate to the licensee.

Sec. 136. NRS 642.440 is hereby amended to read as follows:

642.440 When a licensed funeral director has for any reason allowed his license to lapse, the Board may reinstate such license if application therefor is made within a period of 3 years from the time of the lapse and is accompanied by ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 642.0195 and all~~ :

1. *All* fees, including penalties, from the time of the lapse to date of reinstatement ~~;~~ *and*

2. *All information required to complete the reinstatement.*

Sec. 137. NRS 643.090 is hereby amended to read as follows:

643.090 1. Each applicant for a license as a barber or an apprentice must file an application verified by him for an examination before the Board.

2. The application must be in a form prescribed by the Board . ~~[and include the social security number of the applicant.]~~

3. Each application must be accompanied by the fees prescribed by subsection 4.

4. The Board shall annually fix the examination fees, which must not be more than \$100.

5. Each applicant must, at the time of filing the application, file a certificate signed by a licensed physician certifying that the



applicant is free from tuberculosis and other communicable diseases.

6. Each applicant must submit all information required to complete the application.

Sec. 138. NRS 643.095 is hereby amended to read as follows:

643.095 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as a barber, an apprentice or an instructor shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.

(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a barber, an apprentice or an instructor must submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license as a barber, an apprentice or an instructor may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 139. NRS 643.095 is hereby amended to read as follows:

643.095 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~f~~:

~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as a barber, an apprentice or an instructor shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a barber, an apprentice or an instructor must submit to the Board the



1 statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of
2 Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be
3 completed and signed by the applicant.

4 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
5 subsection 1 in:

6 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
7 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

8 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

9 3. A license as a barber, an apprentice or an instructor may not
10 be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

11 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
12 1; or

13 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
14 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
15 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
16 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
17 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

18 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
19 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
20 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
21 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
22 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
23 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
24 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
25 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

26 **Sec. 140.** NRS 643.130 is hereby amended to read as follows:

27 643.130 A license as a barber or an apprentice must be issued
28 by the Board to any applicant who:

29 1. Passes an examination as provided for in NRS 643.070 and
30 643.080;

31 2. Possesses the other qualifications required by the provisions
32 of this chapter;

33 3. ~~{Submits the statement required pursuant to NRS 643.095;~~
34 ~~and~~

35 ~~—4.}~~ Complies with the requirements set forth in the regulations
36 of the Board ~~{.}~~; and

37 *4. Submits all information required to complete an*
38 *application for a license.*

39 **Sec. 141.** NRS 643.140 is hereby amended to read as follows:

40 643.140 1. Each licensed barber and each licensed apprentice
41 who continues in active practice or service shall biennially, on or
42 before April 1 of each even-numbered year, renew his license and
43 pay the required fee. The Board shall fix the fee for renewal of a
44 license, which must not be more than \$60. ~~{The statement required~~
45 ~~pursuant to NRS 643.095}~~ *All information required to complete the*



1 *renewal* must be submitted with the fee. Every license which has
2 not been renewed before May 1 of an even-numbered year expires
3 on that date.

4 2. A licensed barber or a licensed apprentice whose license has
5 expired may have his license restored immediately upon
6 ~~[submission of the statement required pursuant to NRS 643.095 and]~~
7 payment of the required restoration fee *and submission of all*
8 *required information* at any time within 2 years after the expiration
9 of his license. The Board shall fix the restoration fee, which must
10 not be more than \$120.

11 **Sec. 142.** NRS 643.1775 is hereby amended to read as
12 follows:

13 643.1775 The Board shall license any person as an instructor
14 who:

15 1. Has applied to the Board in writing on the form prescribed
16 by the Board;

17 2. Holds a high school diploma or its equivalent;

18 3. Has paid the applicable fees;

19 4. Holds a license as a barber issued by the Board;

20 5. Submits ~~[the statement required pursuant to NRS 643.095;]~~
21 *all information required to complete the application;*

22 6. Has practiced not less than 5 years as a full-time licensed
23 barber in this State, the District of Columbia or in any other state or
24 country whose requirements for licensing barbers are substantially
25 equivalent to those in this State;

26 7. Has successfully completed a training program for
27 instructors conducted by a licensed barber school which consists of
28 not less than 600 hours of instruction within a 6-month period; and

29 8. Has passed an examination for instructors administered by
30 the Board.

31 **Sec. 143.** NRS 644.214 is hereby amended to read as follows:

32 644.214 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
33 *in this chapter:*

34 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license or evidence of*
35 *registration issued pursuant to NRS 644.190 to 644.330, inclusive,*
36 *shall include the social security number of the applicant in the*
37 *application submitted to the Board.*

38 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license or
39 evidence of registration issued pursuant to NRS 644.190 to 644.330,
40 inclusive, shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
41 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
42 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
43 the applicant.

44 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
45 subsection 1 in:



1 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
2 for the issuance or renewal of the license or evidence of registration;
3 or

4 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

5 3. A license or evidence of registration may not be issued or
6 renewed by the Board pursuant to NRS 644.190 to 644.330,
7 inclusive, if the applicant:

8 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
9 1; or

10 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
11 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
12 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
13 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
14 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

15 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
16 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
17 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
18 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
19 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
20 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
21 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
22 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

23 **Sec. 144.** NRS 644.214 is hereby amended to read as follows:

24 644.214 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
25 this chapter ~~1~~:

26 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license or evidence of~~
27 ~~registration issued pursuant to NRS 644.190 to 644.330, inclusive,~~
28 ~~shall include the social security number of the applicant in the~~
29 ~~application submitted to the Board.~~

30 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license or
31 evidence of registration issued pursuant to NRS 644.190 to 644.330,
32 inclusive, shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
33 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
34 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
35 the applicant.

36 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
37 subsection 1 in:

38 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
39 for the issuance or renewal of the license or evidence of registration;
40 or

41 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

42 3. A license or evidence of registration may not be issued or
43 renewed by the Board pursuant to NRS 644.190 to 644.330,
44 inclusive, if the applicant:



1 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
2 1; or

3 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
4 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
5 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
6 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
7 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

8 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
9 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
10 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
11 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
12 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
13 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
14 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
15 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

16 **Sec. 145.** NRS 644.325 is hereby amended to read as follows:

17 644.325 1. An application for renewal of any license issued
18 pursuant to this chapter must be:

19 (a) Made on a form prescribed and furnished by the Board at
20 any time during the month of June of the year in which the license
21 expires;

22 (b) ~~Accompanied by the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
23 ~~644.214; and~~

24 ~~—(e)] Accompanied by the fee for renewal [1]; and~~

25 *(c) Accompanied by all information required to complete the*
26 *renewal.*

27 2. The fees for renewal are:

28 (a) For manicurists, electrologists, aestheticians, hair designers,
29 demonstrators of cosmetics and cosmetologists, not less than \$30
30 and not more than \$50.

31 (b) For instructors, not less than \$40 and not more than \$60.

32 (c) For cosmetological establishments, not less than \$60 and not
33 more than \$100.

34 (d) For schools of cosmetology, not less than \$450 and not more
35 than \$500.

36 3. For each month or fraction thereof after July 1 in which a
37 license is not renewed, there must be assessed and collected at the
38 time of renewal a penalty of \$25 for a school of cosmetology and
39 \$10 for a cosmetological establishment and all persons licensed
40 pursuant to this chapter.

41 4. An application for the renewal of a license as a
42 cosmetologist, hair designer, aesthetician, electrologist, manicurist,
43 demonstrator of cosmetics or instructor must be accompanied by
44 two current photographs of the applicant which are 1 1/2 by 1 1/2



1 inches. The name and address of the applicant must be written on
2 the back of each photograph.

3 **Sec. 146.** NRS 644.330 is hereby amended to read as follows:

4 644.330 1. A manicurist, electrologist, aesthetician, hair
5 designer, cosmetologist, demonstrator of cosmetics or instructor
6 whose license has expired may have his license renewed only upon
7 ~~submission of the statement required pursuant to NRS 644.214 and~~
8 payment of all required fees ~~[.]~~ *and submission of all information*
9 *required to complete the renewal.*

10 2. Any manicurist, electrologist, aesthetician, hair designer,
11 cosmetologist, demonstrator of cosmetics or instructor who retires
12 from practice for more than 1 year may have his license restored
13 only upon ~~submission of the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
14 ~~644.214 and~~ payment of all required fees ~~[.]~~ *and submission of all*
15 *information required to complete the restoration.*

16 3. No manicurist, electrologist, aesthetician, hair designer,
17 cosmetologist, demonstrator of cosmetics or instructor who has
18 retired from practice for more than 4 years may have his license
19 restored without examination and must comply with any additional
20 requirements established in regulations adopted by the Board.

21 **Sec. 147.** NRS 645.330 is hereby amended to read as follows:

22 645.330 1. Except as otherwise provided by specific statute,
23 the Division may approve an application for a license for a person
24 who meets all the following requirements:

25 (a) Has a good reputation for honesty, trustworthiness and
26 integrity and who offers proof of those qualifications satisfactory to
27 the Division.

28 (b) Has not made a false statement of material fact on his
29 application.

30 (c) Is competent to transact the business of a real estate broker,
31 broker-salesman or salesman in a manner which will safeguard the
32 interests of the public.

33 (d) ~~Has submitted the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
34 ~~645.358 if the person is a natural person.~~

35 ~~—(e)~~ Has passed the examination.

36 (e) *Has submitted all information required to complete the*
37 *application.*

38 2. The Division:

39 (a) May deny a license to any person who has been convicted of,
40 or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, forgery,
41 embezzlement, obtaining money under false pretenses, larceny,
42 extortion, conspiracy to defraud, engaging in a real estate business
43 without a license, possessing for the purpose of sale any controlled
44 substance or any crime involving moral turpitude, in any court of
45 competent jurisdiction in the United States or elsewhere; and



(b) Shall not issue a license to such a person until at least 3 years after:

(1) The person pays any fine or restitution ordered by the court; or

(2) The expiration of the period of the person's parole, probation or sentence,
↳ whichever is later.

3. Suspension or revocation of a license pursuant to this chapter or any prior revocation or current suspension in this or any other state, district or territory of the United States or any foreign country within 10 years before the date of the application is grounds for refusal to grant a license.

4. A person may not be licensed as a real estate broker unless he has been actively engaged as a full-time licensed real estate broker-salesman or salesman in this State, or actively engaged as a full-time licensed real estate broker, broker-salesman or salesman in another state or the District of Columbia, for at least 2 of the 4 years immediately preceding the issuance of a broker's license.

Sec. 148. NRS 645.350 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645.350 1. An application for a license as a real estate broker, broker-salesman or salesman must be submitted in writing to the Division upon blanks prepared or furnished by the Division.

2. Every application for a real estate broker's, broker-salesman's or salesman's license must set forth the following information:

(a) The name, age and address of the applicant. If the applicant is a partnership or an association which is applying to do business as a real estate broker, the application must contain the name and address of each member thereof. If the application is for a corporation which is applying to do business as a real estate salesman, real estate broker-salesman or real estate broker, the application must contain the name and address of each officer and director thereof. If the applicant is a limited-liability company which is applying to do business as a real estate broker, the company's articles of organization must designate a manager, and the name and address of the manager and each member must be listed in the application.

(b) In the case of a broker, the name under which the business is to be conducted. The name is a fictitious name if it does not contain the name of the applicant or the names of the members of the applicant's company, firm, partnership or association. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 645.387, a license must not be issued under a fictitious name which includes the name of a real estate salesman or broker-salesman. A license must not be issued under the same fictitious name to more than one licensee within the State. All



licensees doing business under a fictitious name shall comply with other pertinent statutory regulations regarding the use of fictitious names.

(c) In the case of a broker, the place or places, including the street number, city and county, where the business is to be conducted.

~~(d) If the applicant is a natural person, the social security number of the applicant.~~

~~(e)~~ The business or occupation engaged in by the applicant for at least 2 years immediately preceding the date of the application, and the location thereof.

~~(f)~~ (e) The time and place of the applicant's previous experience in the real estate business as a broker or salesman.

~~(g)~~ (f) Whether the applicant has ever been convicted of or is under indictment for a felony or has entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a charge of felony and, if so, the nature of the felony.

~~(h)~~ (g) Whether the applicant has been convicted of or entered a plea of nolo contendere to forgery, embezzlement, obtaining money under false pretenses, larceny, extortion, conspiracy to defraud, engaging in the business of selling real estate without a license or any crime involving moral turpitude.

~~(i)~~ (h) Whether the applicant has been refused a real estate broker's, broker-salesman's or salesman's license in any state, or whether his license as a broker or salesman has been revoked or suspended by any other state, district or territory of the United States or any other country.

~~(j)~~ (i) If the applicant is a member of a limited-liability company, partnership or association, or an officer of a corporation, the name and address of the office of the limited-liability company, partnership, association or corporation of which the applicant is a member or officer.

(j) All information required to complete the application.

3. An applicant for a license as a broker-salesman or salesman shall provide a verified statement from the broker with whom he will be associated, expressing the intent of that broker to associate the applicant with him and to be responsible for the applicant's activities as a licensee.

4. If a limited-liability company, partnership or association is to do business as a real estate broker, the application for a broker's license must be verified by at least two members thereof. If a corporation is to do business as a real estate broker, the application must be verified by the president and the secretary thereof.

Sec. 149. NRS 645.358 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645.358 1. ***In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:***



1 (a) *A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license*
2 *as a real estate broker, broker-salesman or salesman shall include*
3 *the social security number of the applicant in the application*
4 *submitted to the Board.*

5 (b) A natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a
6 license as a real estate broker, broker-salesman or salesman shall
7 submit to the Division the statement prescribed by the Welfare
8 Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS
9 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the
10 applicant.

11 2. The Division shall include the statement required pursuant to
12 subsection 1 in:

13 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
14 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

15 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Division.

16 3. A license as a real estate broker, broker-salesman or
17 salesman may not be issued or renewed by the Division if the
18 applicant is a natural person who:

19 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
20 1; or

21 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
22 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
23 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
24 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
25 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

26 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
27 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
28 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
29 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
30 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the
31 Division shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or
32 other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that
33 the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

34 **Sec. 150.** NRS 645.358 is hereby amended to read as follows:

35 645.358 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
36 this chapter {:

37 ~~—(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license as~~
38 ~~a real estate broker, broker-salesman or salesman shall include the~~
39 ~~social security number of the applicant in the application submitted~~
40 ~~to the Board.~~

41 ~~—(b) A],~~ a natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal
42 of a license as a real estate broker, broker-salesman or salesman
43 shall submit to the Division the statement prescribed by the Welfare
44 Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS



1 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the
2 applicant.

3 2. The Division shall include the statement required pursuant to
4 subsection 1 in:

5 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
6 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

7 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Division.

8 3. A license as a real estate broker, broker-salesman or
9 salesman may not be issued or renewed by the Division if the
10 applicant is a natural person who:

11 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
12 1; or

13 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
14 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
15 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
16 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
17 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

18 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
19 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
20 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
21 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
22 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the
23 Division shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or
24 other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that
25 the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

26 **Sec. 151.** NRS 645.6065 is hereby amended to read as
27 follows:

28 645.6065 1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 645.607, a
29 person shall not act as a qualified intermediary unless he is
30 registered as such with the Division. The Division may adopt such
31 regulations as it deems necessary to carry out the provisions of NRS
32 645.606 to 645.609, inclusive.

33 2. To apply for registration, a person must pay the Division a
34 fee of \$100 and a fee to pay the costs of an investigation of the
35 person's background.

36 3. In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 2, the
37 person must submit to the Division:

38 (a) The following information on a form provided by the
39 Division:

40 (1) The applicant's name, address and telephone number;

41 (2) The name under which the applicant will hold the money
42 or other property of a client;

43 (3) The names, residence and business addresses of all
44 persons having an interest in the business as principals, partners,



1 officers, trustees or directors, specifying the capacity and title of
2 each; *and*

3 (4) ~~If the applicant is a natural person, the social security~~
4 ~~number of the applicant; and~~

5 ~~(5)~~ The length of time the applicant has been engaged in the
6 business of acting as such an intermediary; and

7 (b) ~~If the person is a natural person, the statement required~~
8 ~~pursuant to NRS 645.6068.] All information required to complete~~
9 ~~the application.~~

10 4. Each applicant must, as part of his application and at his
11 own expense:

12 (a) Arrange to have a complete set of his fingerprints taken by a
13 law enforcement agency or other authorized entity acceptable to the
14 Division on a fingerprint card provided by the law enforcement
15 agency or other authorized entity for that purpose; and

16 (b) Submit to the Division the completed fingerprint card and
17 written permission authorizing the Division to submit the
18 applicant's fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada
19 Records of Criminal History for submission to the Federal Bureau
20 of Investigation for a report on the applicant's background and to
21 such other law enforcement agencies as the Division deems
22 necessary.

23 5. The Division may:

24 (a) Submit the applicant's fingerprints to the Central Repository
25 for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation and to such
26 other law enforcement agencies as the Division deems necessary;
27 and

28 (b) Request from each such agency any information regarding
29 the applicant's background as the Division deems necessary.

30 6. Registration pursuant to this section must be renewed each
31 year on or before the date of the original registration by providing
32 the information required by the Division for that purpose and paying
33 a renewal fee of \$75.

34 **Sec. 152.** NRS 645.6068 is hereby amended to read as
35 follows:

36 645.6068 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
37 *in this chapter:*

38 (a) *A natural person who applies for the issuance of his*
39 *registration as a qualified intermediary shall include the social*
40 *security number of the applicant in the application submitted to*
41 *the Board.*

42 (b) A natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of
43 his registration as a qualified intermediary shall submit to the
44 Division the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the



1 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
2 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

3 2. The Division shall include the statement required pursuant to
4 subsection 1 in:

5 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
6 for the issuance or renewal of the registration; or

7 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Division.

8 3. An applicant may not be registered as a qualified
9 intermediary by the Division if the applicant is a natural person
10 who:

11 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
12 1; or

13 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
14 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
15 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
16 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
17 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

18 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
19 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
20 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
21 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
22 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the
23 Division shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or
24 other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that
25 the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

26 **Sec. 153.** NRS 645.6068 is hereby amended to read as
27 follows:

28 645.6068 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
29 this chapter ~~f~~:

30 ~~—(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of his~~
31 ~~registration as a qualified intermediary shall include the social~~
32 ~~security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the~~
33 ~~Board.~~

34 ~~—(b) A~~, a natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal
35 of his registration as a qualified intermediary shall submit to the
36 Division the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the
37 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
38 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

39 2. The Division shall include the statement required pursuant to
40 subsection 1 in:

41 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
42 for the issuance or renewal of the registration; or

43 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Division.



3. An applicant may not be registered as a qualified intermediary by the Division if the applicant is a natural person who:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Division shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 154. NRS 645A.020 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645A.020 1. A person who wishes to be licensed as an escrow agent or agency must file a written application in the Office of the Commissioner.

2. The application must:

(a) Be verified.

(b) Be accompanied by the appropriate fee prescribed in NRS 645A.040.

(c) State the location of the applicant's principal office and branch offices in the State and residence address.

(d) State the name under which the applicant will conduct business.

(e) List the names, residence and business addresses of all persons having an interest in the business as principals, partners, officers, trustees or directors, specifying the capacity and title of each.

~~(f) If the applicant is a natural person, include the social security number of the applicant.~~

~~(g)~~ Indicate the general plan and character of the business.

~~(h)~~ (g) State the length of time the applicant has been engaged in the escrow business.

~~(i)~~ (h) Require a financial statement of the applicant.

~~(j)~~ (i) Require such other information as the Commissioner determines necessary.

~~(k)~~ (j) If for an escrow agency, designate a natural person to receive service of process in this State for the agency.



1 ***(k) Include all information required to complete the***
2 ***application.***

3 3. If the Commissioner determines, after investigation, that the
4 experience, character, financial condition, business reputation and
5 general fitness of the applicant are such as to command the
6 confidence of the public and to warrant the belief that the business
7 conducted will protect and safeguard the public, he shall issue a
8 license to the applicant as an escrow agent or agency.

9 4. The Commissioner may waive the investigation required by
10 subsection 3 if the applicant submits with his application
11 satisfactory proof that he, in good standing, currently holds a
12 license, or held a license, within 1 year before the date he submits
13 his application, which was issued pursuant to the provisions of
14 NRS 692A.103.

15 5. An escrow agent or agency shall immediately notify the
16 Division of any material change in the information contained in the
17 application.

18 6. A person may not be licensed as an escrow agent or agency
19 or be a principal officer, director or trustee of an escrow agency if
20 he is the holder of an active license issued pursuant to chapter 645
21 of NRS.

22 **Sec. 155.** NRS 645A.025 is hereby amended to read as
23 follows:

24 645A.025 1. ***In addition to any other requirements set forth***
25 ***in this chapter:***

26 ***(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license***
27 ***as an escrow agent or escrow agency shall include the social***
28 ***security number of the applicant in the application submitted to***
29 ***the Board.***

30 ***(b) A natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a***
31 ***license as an escrow agent or escrow agency shall submit to the***
32 ***Commissioner the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of***
33 ***the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The***
34 ***statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.***

35 2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required
36 pursuant to subsection 1 in:

37 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
38 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

39 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

40 3. A license as an escrow agent or escrow agency may not be
41 issued or renewed by the Commissioner if the applicant is a natural
42 person who:

43 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
44 1; or



(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 156. NRS 645A.025 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645A.025 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~1~~:

~~—(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license as an escrow agent or escrow agency shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) A~~, a natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a license as an escrow agent or escrow agency shall submit to the Commissioner the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

3. A license as an escrow agent or escrow agency may not be issued or renewed by the Commissioner if the applicant is a natural person who:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the



1 Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the district
2 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the
3 actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

4 **Sec. 157.** NRS 645A.040 is hereby amended to read as
5 follows:

6 645A.040 1. Every license issued pursuant to the provisions
7 of this chapter expires on July 1 of each year if it is not renewed. A
8 license may be renewed by filing an application for renewal, paying
9 the annual fee for the succeeding year and ~~[-if the licensee is a~~
10 ~~natural person, submitting the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
11 ~~645A.025-]~~ *submitting all information required to complete the*
12 *renewal.*

13 2. The fees for the issuance or renewal of a license for an
14 escrow agency are:

15 (a) For filing an application for an initial license, \$500 for the
16 principal office and \$100 for each branch office.

17 (b) If the license is approved for issuance, \$200 for the principal
18 office and \$100 for each branch office. The fee must be paid before
19 issuance of the license.

20 (c) For filing an application for renewal, \$200 for the principal
21 office and \$100 for each branch office.

22 3. The fees for the issuance or renewal of a license for an
23 escrow agent are:

24 (a) For filing an application for an initial license or for the
25 renewal of a license, \$100.

26 (b) If a license is approved for issuance or renewal, \$25. The fee
27 must be paid before the issuance or renewal of the license.

28 4. If a licensee fails to ~~[-submit the statement required pursuant~~
29 ~~to NRS 645A.025-or]~~ pay the fee *or submit all required*
30 *information* for the annual renewal of his license before its
31 expiration, his license may be renewed only upon the payment of a
32 fee one and one-half times the amount otherwise required for
33 renewal. A license may be renewed pursuant to this subsection only
34 if ~~[-the required statement is submitted-and]~~ all the fees are paid *and*
35 *all required information is submitted* within 1 year after the date on
36 which the license expired.

37 5. In addition to the other fees set forth in this section, each
38 applicant or licensee shall pay:

39 (a) For filing an application for a duplicate copy of any license,
40 upon satisfactory showing of its loss, \$10.

41 (b) For filing any change of information contained in the
42 application, \$10.

43 (c) For each change of association with an escrow agency, \$25.



6. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, all fees received pursuant to this chapter must be deposited in the Fund for Mortgage Lending created by NRS 645F.270.

Sec. 158. NRS 645B.020 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645B.020 1. A person who wishes to be licensed as a mortgage broker must file a written application for a license with the Office of the Commissioner and pay the fee required pursuant to NRS 645B.050. An application for a license as a mortgage broker must:

(a) Be verified.

(b) State the name, residence address and business address of the applicant and the location of each principal office and branch office at which the mortgage broker will conduct business within this State.

(c) State the name under which the applicant will conduct business as a mortgage broker.

(d) List the name, residence address and business address of each person who will:

(1) If the applicant is not a natural person, have an interest in the mortgage broker as a principal, partner, officer, director or trustee, specifying the capacity and title of each such person.

(2) Be associated with or employed by the mortgage broker as a mortgage agent.

~~(e) If the applicant is a natural person, include the social security number of the applicant.~~

~~(f)~~ Include a general business plan and a description of the policies and procedures that the mortgage broker and his mortgage agents will follow to arrange and service loans and to conduct business pursuant to this chapter.

~~(g)~~ (f) State the length of time the applicant has been engaged in the business of a broker.

~~(h)~~ (g) Include a financial statement of the applicant and, if applicable, satisfactory proof that the applicant will be able to maintain continuously the net worth required pursuant to NRS 645B.115.

(h) Include all information required to complete the application.

(i) Include any other information required pursuant to the regulations adopted by the Commissioner or an order of the Commissioner.

2. If a mortgage broker will conduct business at one or more branch offices within this State, the mortgage broker must apply for a license for each such branch office.



3. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the Commissioner shall issue a license to an applicant as a mortgage broker if:

(a) The application complies with the requirements of this chapter;

~~[(b) The applicant submits the statement required pursuant to NRS 645B.023, if the applicant is required to do so; and~~

~~—(c)] and~~

(b) The applicant and each general partner, officer or director of the applicant, if the applicant is a partnership, corporation or unincorporated association:

(1) Has a good reputation for honesty, trustworthiness and integrity and displays competence to transact the business of a mortgage broker in a manner which safeguards the interests of the general public. The applicant must submit satisfactory proof of these qualifications to the Commissioner.

(2) Has not been convicted of, or entered a plea of nolo contendere to, a felony relating to the practice of mortgage brokers or any crime involving fraud, misrepresentation or moral turpitude.

(3) Has not made a false statement of material fact on his application.

(4) Has not had a license that was issued pursuant to the provisions of this chapter or chapter 645E of NRS suspended or revoked within the 10 years immediately preceding the date of his application.

(5) Has not had a license that was issued in any other state, district or territory of the United States or any foreign country suspended or revoked within the 10 years immediately preceding the date of his application.

(6) Has not violated any provision of this chapter or chapter 645E of NRS, a regulation adopted pursuant thereto or an order of the Commissioner.

Sec. 159. NRS 645B.023 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645B.023 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) *A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license as a mortgage broker shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

(b) A natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a license as a mortgage broker shall submit to the Commissioner the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.



2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

3. A license as a mortgage broker may not be issued or renewed by the Commissioner if the applicant is a natural person who:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 160. NRS 645B.023 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645B.023 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~f:~~

~~—(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license as a mortgage broker shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) A~~, a natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a license as a mortgage broker shall submit to the Commissioner the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

3. A license as a mortgage broker may not be issued or renewed by the Commissioner if the applicant is a natural person who:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or



(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 161. NRS 645B.050 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645B.050 1. A license as a mortgage broker issued pursuant to this chapter expires each year on June 30, unless it is renewed. To renew such a license, the licensee must submit to the Commissioner on or before May 31 of each year:

(a) An application for renewal;

(b) The fee required to renew the license pursuant to this section;

(c) ~~If the licensee is a natural person, the statement required pursuant to NRS 645B.023; and~~

~~—(d)—~~ The information required pursuant to NRS 645B.051 ~~{};~~ *and*

(d) All information required to complete the renewal.

2. If the licensee fails to submit any item required pursuant to subsection 1 to the Commissioner on or before May 31 of any year, the license is cancelled as of June 30 of that year. The Commissioner may reinstate a cancelled license if the licensee submits to the Commissioner:

(a) An application for renewal;

(b) The fee required to renew the license pursuant to this section;

(c) ~~If the licensee is a natural person, the statement required pursuant to NRS 645B.023;~~

~~—(d)—~~ The information required pursuant to NRS 645B.051; ~~{} and~~

~~—(e)—~~ (d) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a reinstatement fee of \$200 ~~{};~~ *and*

(e) All information required to complete the reinstatement.

3. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 645B.016, a certificate of exemption issued pursuant to this chapter expires each year on December 31, unless it is renewed. To renew a certificate of



1 exemption, a person must submit to the Commissioner on or before
2 November 30 of each year:

3 (a) An application for renewal that includes satisfactory proof
4 that the person meets the requirements for an exemption from the
5 provisions of this chapter; and

6 (b) The fee required to renew the certificate of exemption.

7 4. If the person fails to submit any item required pursuant to
8 subsection 3 to the Commissioner on or before November 30 of any
9 year, the certificate of exemption is cancelled as of December 31 of
10 that year. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 645B.016, the
11 Commissioner may reinstate a cancelled certificate of exemption if
12 the person submits to the Commissioner:

13 (a) An application for renewal that includes satisfactory proof
14 that the person meets the requirements for an exemption from the
15 provisions of this chapter;

16 (b) The fee required to renew the certificate of exemption; and

17 (c) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a reinstatement
18 fee of \$100.

19 5. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a person must
20 pay the following fees to apply for, to be issued or to renew a
21 license as a mortgage broker pursuant to this chapter:

22 (a) To file an original application or a license, \$1,500 for the
23 principal office and \$40 for each branch office. The person must
24 also pay such additional expenses incurred in the process of
25 investigation as the Commissioner deems necessary.

26 (b) To be issued a license, \$1,000 for the principal office and
27 \$60 for each branch office.

28 (c) To renew a license, \$500 for the principal office and \$100
29 for each branch office.

30 6. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a person must
31 pay the following fees to apply for or to renew a certificate of
32 exemption pursuant to this chapter:

33 (a) To file an application for a certificate of exemption, \$200.

34 (b) To renew a certificate of exemption, \$100.

35 7. To be issued a duplicate copy of any license or certificate of
36 exemption, a person must make a satisfactory showing of its loss
37 and pay a fee of \$10.

38 8. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, all fees
39 received pursuant to this chapter must be deposited in the Fund for
40 Mortgage Lending created by NRS 645F.270.

41 9. The Commissioner may, by regulation, increase any fee set
42 forth in this section if the Commissioner determines that such an
43 increase is necessary for the Commissioner to carry out his duties
44 pursuant to this chapter. The amount of any increase in a fee
45 pursuant to this subsection must not exceed the amount determined



1 to be necessary for the Commissioner to carry out his duties
2 pursuant to this chapter.

3 **Sec. 162.** NRS 645B.420 is hereby amended to read as
4 follows:

5 645B.420 1. In addition to any other ~~[requirement for the~~
6 ~~issuance of a license as a mortgage agent pursuant to NRS~~
7 ~~645B.410, an]~~ *requirements set forth in this chapter:*

8 (a) An applicant for the issuance of ~~[the license must include~~
9 ~~his]~~ *a license as a mortgage agent pursuant to this chapter shall*
10 *include the* social security number *of the applicant* in ~~[his~~
11 ~~application.~~

12 ~~2. In addition to any other requirement]~~ *the application*
13 *submitted to the Board.*

14 (b) *An applicant* for the issuance or renewal of a license as a
15 mortgage agent pursuant to ~~[NRS 645B.410 or 645B.430, an~~
16 ~~applicant for the issuance or renewal of the license]~~ *this chapter*
17 shall submit to the Commissioner the statement prescribed by the
18 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
19 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
20 the applicant.

21 ~~[3.]~~ 2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required
22 pursuant to subsection ~~[2.]~~ 1 in:

23 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
24 for the issuance or renewal of a license as a mortgage agent; or

25 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

26 ~~[4.]~~ 3. The license as a mortgage agent may not be issued or
27 renewed by the Commissioner if the applicant:

28 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
29 ~~[2.]~~ 1; or

30 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
31 ~~[2.]~~ 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and
32 is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
33 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
34 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

35 ~~[5.]~~ 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted
36 pursuant to subsection ~~[2.]~~ 1 that he is subject to a court order for the
37 support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan
38 approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing
39 the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the
40 order, the Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the
41 district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to
42 determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the
43 arrearage.



1 **Sec. 163.** NRS 645B.420 is hereby amended to read as
2 follows:

3 645B.420 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
4 this chapter {:

5 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as a mortgage~~
6 ~~agent pursuant to this chapter shall include the social security~~
7 ~~number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

8 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as
9 a mortgage agent pursuant to this chapter shall submit to the
10 Commissioner the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of
11 the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
12 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

13 2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required
14 pursuant to subsection 1 in:

15 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
16 for the issuance or renewal of a license as a mortgage agent; or

17 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

18 3. The license as a mortgage agent may not be issued or
19 renewed by the Commissioner if the applicant:

20 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
21 1; or

22 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
23 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
24 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
25 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
26 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

27 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
28 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
29 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
30 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
31 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the
32 Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the district
33 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the
34 actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

35 **Sec. 164.** NRS 645C.295 is hereby amended to read as
36 follows:

37 645C.295 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
38 *in this chapter:*

39 *(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license, certificate or*
40 *registration card issued pursuant to this chapter shall include the*
41 *social security number of the applicant in the application*
42 *submitted to the Board.*

43 *(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license,*
44 *certificate or registration card issued pursuant to this chapter shall*
45 *submit to the Division the statement prescribed by the Welfare*



1 Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS
2 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the
3 applicant.

4 2. The Division shall include the statement required pursuant to
5 subsection 1 in:

6 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
7 for the issuance or renewal of the license, certificate or registration
8 card; or

9 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Division.

10 3. A license, certificate or registration card may not be issued
11 or renewed by the Division pursuant to this chapter if the applicant:

12 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
13 1; or

14 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
15 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
16 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
17 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
18 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

19 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
20 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
21 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
22 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
23 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the
24 Division shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or
25 other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that
26 the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

27 **Sec. 165.** NRS 645C.295 is hereby amended to read as
28 follows:

29 645C.295 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
30 this chapter ~~f~~:

31 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license, certificate or~~
32 ~~registration card issued pursuant to this chapter shall include the~~
33 ~~social security number of the applicant in the application submitted~~
34 ~~to the Board.~~

35 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license,
36 certificate or registration card issued pursuant to this chapter shall
37 submit to the Division the statement prescribed by the Welfare
38 Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS
39 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the
40 applicant.

41 2. The Division shall include the statement required pursuant to
42 subsection 1 in:

43 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
44 for the issuance or renewal of the license, certificate or registration
45 card; or



(b) A separate form prescribed by the Division.

3. A license, certificate or registration card may not be issued or renewed by the Division pursuant to this chapter if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Division shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 166. NRS 645C.300 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645C.300 1. Each application for a certificate, license or registration card must ~~include the social security number of the applicant and~~ be accompanied by ~~the~~ :

(a) *The* fee for the certificate, license or registration card ~~and the~~ ;

(b) *The* fee to pay the costs of an investigation of the applicant's background ~~;~~ ; *and*

(c) *All information required to complete the application.*

2. Each applicant must, as part of his application and at his own expense:

(a) Arrange to have a complete set of his fingerprints taken by a law enforcement agency or other authorized entity acceptable to the Division on a fingerprint card provided by the law enforcement agency or other authorized entity for that purpose; and

(b) Submit to the Division the completed fingerprint card and written permission authorizing the Division to submit the applicant's fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for a report on the applicant's background and to such other law enforcement agencies as the Division deems necessary.

3. The Division may:

(a) Submit the applicant's fingerprints to the Central Repository for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation and to such



1 other law enforcement agencies as the Division deems necessary;
2 and

3 (b) Request from each such agency any information regarding
4 the applicant's background as the Division deems necessary.

5 **Sec. 167.** NRS 645C.320 is hereby amended to read as
6 follows:

7 645C.320 1. The Administrator shall issue a certificate or
8 license, as appropriate, to any person:

9 (a) Of good moral character, honesty and integrity;

10 (b) Who meets the educational requirements and has the
11 experience prescribed in NRS 645C.330;

12 (c) ~~[Who submits the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
13 ~~645C.295; and~~

14 ~~—(d)]~~ Who, except as otherwise provided in NRS 645C.360, has
15 satisfactorily passed a written examination approved by the
16 Commission ~~[.]~~; and

17 *(d) Who submits all information required to complete an*
18 *application for a certificate or license.*

19 2. The Administrator may deny an application for a certificate
20 or license to any person who:

21 (a) Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo
22 contendere to, forgery, embezzlement, obtaining money under false
23 pretenses, larceny, extortion, conspiracy to defraud or any crime
24 involving moral turpitude;

25 (b) Makes a false statement of a material fact on his application;
26 or

27 (c) Has had a certificate, license or registration card suspended
28 or revoked pursuant to this chapter, or a certificate, license or permit
29 to act as an appraiser suspended or revoked in any other jurisdiction,
30 within the 10 years immediately preceding the date of his
31 application.

32 **Sec. 168.** NRS 645D.170 is hereby amended to read as
33 follows:

34 645D.170 An application for a certificate must be in writing
35 upon a form prepared and furnished by the Division. The application
36 must include the following information:

37 1. The name, age ~~[, address and social security number]~~ and
38 *address* of the applicant.

39 2. The place or places, including the street number, city and
40 county, at which the applicant intends to maintain an office to
41 conduct business as an inspector.

42 3. The business, occupation or other employment of the
43 applicant during the 5 years immediately preceding the date of the
44 application, and the location thereof.



1 4. The applicant's education and experience to qualify for a
2 certificate.

3 5. Whether the applicant has ever been convicted of, is under
4 indictment for, or has entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to:

5 (a) A felony, and if so, the nature of the felony.

6 (b) Forgery, embezzlement, obtaining money under false
7 pretenses, larceny, extortion, conspiracy to defraud or any crime
8 involving moral turpitude.

9 6. If the applicant is a member of a partnership or association
10 or is an officer of a corporation, the name and address of the
11 principal office of the partnership, association or corporation.

12 7. Any other information relating to the qualifications or
13 background of the applicant that the Division requires.

14 ***8. All other information required to complete the application.***

15 **Sec. 169.** NRS 645D.195 is hereby amended to read as
16 follows:

17 645D.195 1. ***In addition to any other requirements set forth***
18 ***in this chapter:***

19 (a) ***A person who applies for the issuance of a certificate shall***
20 ***include the social security number of the applicant in the***
21 ***application submitted to the Board.***

22 (b) A person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a
23 certificate shall submit to the Administrator the statement prescribed
24 by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources
25 pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and
26 signed by the applicant.

27 2. The Administrator shall include the statement required
28 pursuant to subsection 1 in:

29 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
30 for the issuance or renewal of the certificate; or

31 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Administrator.

32 3. A certificate may not be issued or renewed by the
33 Administrator if the applicant:

34 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
35 1; or

36 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
37 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
38 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
39 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
40 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

41 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
42 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
43 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
44 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
45 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the



1 Administrator shall advise the applicant to contact the district
2 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the
3 actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

4 **Sec. 170.** NRS 645D.195 is hereby amended to read as
5 follows:

6 645D.195 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
7 this chapter ~~f:~~

8 ~~—(a) A person who applies for the issuance of a certificate shall~~
9 ~~include the social security number of the applicant in the application~~
10 ~~submitted to the Board.~~

11 ~~—(b) A~~ **a** person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a
12 certificate shall submit to the Administrator the statement prescribed
13 by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources
14 pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and
15 signed by the applicant.

16 2. The Administrator shall include the statement required
17 pursuant to subsection 1 in:

18 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
19 for the issuance or renewal of the certificate; or

20 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Administrator.

21 3. A certificate may not be issued or renewed by the
22 Administrator if the applicant:

23 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
24 1; or

25 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
26 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
27 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
28 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
29 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

30 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
31 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
32 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
33 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
34 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the
35 Administrator shall advise the applicant to contact the district
36 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the
37 actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

38 **Sec. 171.** NRS 645D.200 is hereby amended to read as
39 follows:

40 645D.200 1. The Administrator shall issue a certificate to any
41 person who:

42 (a) Is of good moral character, honesty and integrity;

43 (b) Has the education and experience prescribed in the
44 regulations adopted pursuant to NRS 645D.120;



(c) Has submitted proof that he or his employer holds a policy of insurance that complies with the requirements of subsection 1 of NRS 645D.190; and

(d) Has submitted ~~{the statement required pursuant to NRS 645D.195.}~~ *all information required to complete an application for a certificate.*

2. The Administrator may deny an application for a certificate to any person who:

(a) Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, forgery, embezzlement, obtaining money under false pretenses, larceny, extortion, conspiracy to defraud or any crime involving moral turpitude;

(b) Makes a false statement of a material fact on his application;

(c) Has had a certificate suspended or revoked pursuant to this chapter within the 10 years immediately preceding the date of his application; or

(d) Has not submitted proof that he or his employer holds a policy of insurance that complies with the requirements of subsection 1 of NRS 645D.190.

Sec. 172. NRS 645E.210 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645E.210 1. In addition to ~~{the}~~ *any other* requirements set forth in ~~[NRS 645E.200 and 645E.280, a]~~ *this chapter:*

(a) *A natural person who applies for the issuance {or renewal} of a license as a mortgage banker shall {submit} include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Commissioner. {:*

~~—(a) In any application for issuance of a license, the social security number of the applicant and the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.~~

~~—(b) In any application{}~~

(b) *A natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a license {;} as a mortgage banker shall submit to the Commissioner the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.*

2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

3. The Commissioner shall not issue or renew a license as a mortgage banker if the applicant is a natural person who:



(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 173. NRS 645E.210 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645E.210 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter ~~f:~~

~~—(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license as a mortgage banker shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Commissioner.~~

~~—(b) A~~, a natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a license as a mortgage banker shall submit to the Commissioner the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

3. The Commissioner shall not issue or renew a license as a mortgage banker if the applicant is a natural person who:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for



1 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the
2 Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the district
3 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the
4 actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

5 **Sec. 174.** NRS 648.085 is hereby amended to read as follows:

6 648.085 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
7 *in this chapter:*

8 (a) *A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license*
9 *or work card issued pursuant to this chapter shall include the*
10 *social security number of the applicant in the application*
11 *submitted to the Board.*

12 (b) A natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a
13 license or work card issued pursuant to this chapter shall submit to
14 the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the
15 Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The
16 statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

17 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
18 subsection 1 in:

19 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
20 for the issuance or renewal of the license or work card; or

21 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

22 3. A license or work card may not be issued or renewed by the
23 Board pursuant to this chapter if the applicant is a natural person
24 who:

25 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
26 1; or

27 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
28 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
29 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
30 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
31 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

32 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
33 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
34 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
35 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
36 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
37 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
38 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
39 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

40 **Sec. 175.** NRS 648.085 is hereby amended to read as follows:

41 648.085 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
42 this chapter ~~[-~~:

43 ~~—(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license or~~
44 ~~work card issued pursuant to this chapter shall include the social~~



~~security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) A]~~, a natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a license or work card issued pursuant to this chapter shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license or work card; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license or work card may not be issued or renewed by the Board pursuant to this chapter if the applicant is a natural person who:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 176. NRS 648.144 is hereby amended to read as follows:

648.144 A license issued under the provisions of this chapter and the cards issued pursuant to NRS 648.142 expire on June 30 of each year. A licensee desiring a renewal of his license must file an application for renewal on or before June 30 on a form prescribed by the Board *which is* accompanied by the fee prescribed pursuant to NRS 648.120 and ~~[, if the licensee is a natural person, the statement required pursuant to NRS 648.085.]~~ *all information required to complete the application for renewal.* A renewal license for the next ensuing year must then be issued together with renewal cards for the persons described in subsection 3 of NRS 648.142.

Sec. 177. NRS 648.146 is hereby amended to read as follows:

648.146 If a licensee fails to renew his license within the time fixed by NRS 648.144, his license is automatically forfeited, but may be reinstated within 30 days after the date of the forfeiture upon



1 his compliance with the regulations of the Board, his submission of
2 an application and *all information required to complete the*
3 *application and* payment of a reinstatement fee of \$100. ~~[and, if the~~
4 ~~licensee is a natural person, his submission of the statement required~~
5 ~~pursuant to NRS 648.085.]~~ Reinstatement of a forfeited license does
6 not prohibit the bringing of disciplinary proceedings for any act
7 committed during the period of forfeiture.

8 **Sec. 178.** NRS 649.095 is hereby amended to read as follows:

9 649.095 1. An application for a license must be in writing
10 and filed with the Commissioner on a form provided for that
11 purpose.

12 2. The application must state:

13 (a) The name of the applicant and the name under which the
14 applicant does business or expects to do business.

15 (b) The address of the applicant's business and residence,
16 including street and number.

17 (c) The character of the business sought to be carried on.

18 (d) The locations by street and number where the business will
19 be transacted.

20 (e) ~~[If the applicant is a natural person, the social security~~
21 ~~number of the applicant.~~

22 ~~—(f)]~~ In the case of a firm or partnership, the full names and
23 residential addresses of all members or partners and the name and
24 residential address of the manager.

25 ~~[(g)]~~ (f) In the case of a corporation or voluntary association, the
26 name and residential address of each of the directors and officers
27 and the name and residential address of the manager.

28 ~~[(h)]~~ (g) Any other information reasonably related to the
29 applicant's qualifications for the license which the Commissioner
30 determines to be necessary.

31 (h) *All information required to complete the application.*

32 3. The application must be subscribed by the applicant and
33 acknowledged.

34 4. Every applicant may be examined concerning his
35 competency, experience, character and qualifications by the
36 Commissioner or his authorized agent, and if the examination
37 reveals that the applicant lacks any of the required qualifications,
38 issuance of the license must be denied. Every application must have
39 attached to it a financial statement showing the assets, liabilities and
40 net worth of the applicant.

41 **Sec. 179.** NRS 649.145 is hereby amended to read as follows:

42 649.145 1. If the Commissioner enters an order approving the
43 application in accordance with NRS 649.135 and the applicant
44 passes the required examination, pays the required license fee and ~~f;~~
45 ~~if the applicant is a natural person, submits the statement required~~



1 ~~pursuant to NRS 649.233,]~~ *submits all information required to*
2 *complete the application,* the Commissioner shall grant and issue a
3 license to the applicant.

4 2. The license, when issued, must state:

5 (a) The name of the licensee.

6 (b) The locations by street and number where the licensee is
7 authorized to carry on business.

8 (c) The number and the date of the license.

9 (d) That it is issued pursuant to this chapter, and that the
10 licensee is authorized under this chapter.

11 **Sec. 180.** NRS 649.185 is hereby amended to read as follows:

12 649.185 Each person who is, or desires to become, the
13 manager of a collection agency shall submit an application for a
14 manager's certificate to the Commissioner in accordance with the
15 provisions of this chapter. The application must include ~~{the social~~
16 ~~security number of the applicant.}~~ *all information required to*
17 *complete the application.*

18 **Sec. 181.** NRS 649.233 is hereby amended to read as follows:

19 649.233 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
20 *in this chapter:*

21 (a) *A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license*
22 *as a collection agent or agency or a manager's certificate shall*
23 *include the social security number of the applicant in the*
24 *application submitted to the Board.*

25 (b) A natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a
26 license as a collection agent or agency or a manager's certificate
27 shall submit to the Commissioner the statement prescribed by the
28 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
29 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
30 the applicant.

31 2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required
32 pursuant to subsection 1 in:

33 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
34 for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

35 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

36 3. A license as a collection agent or agency or a manager's
37 certificate may not be issued or renewed by the Commissioner if the
38 applicant is a natural person who:

39 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
40 1; or

41 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
42 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
43 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
44 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
45 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.



4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 182. NRS 649.233 is hereby amended to read as follows:

649.233 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter {:

~~—(a) A natural person who applies for the issuance of a license as a collection agent or agency or a manager's certificate shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

~~—(b) A~~, a natural person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a license as a collection agent or agency or a manager's certificate shall submit to the Commissioner the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Commissioner shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Commissioner.

3. A license as a collection agent or agency or a manager's certificate may not be issued or renewed by the Commissioner if the applicant is a natural person who:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Commissioner shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



1 **Sec. 183.** NRS 649.245 is hereby amended to read as follows:

2 649.245 1. A collection agency or manager desiring a
3 renewal of a license or certificate which will expire shall file in the
4 Office of the Commissioner, on or before June 1 in each year
5 following the year of original issuance, a renewal application,
6 stating in addition to the matters required in the original application
7 the date and number of the license or certificate which will expire.
8 The renewal application must be accompanied by the renewal fee
9 and ~~[, if the licensee is a natural person, the statement required~~
10 ~~pursuant to NRS 649.233.]~~ *all information required to complete the*
11 *renewal application.*

12 2. The Commissioner shall issue a renewal license or
13 certificate to the applicant, which must be dated July 1 next ensuing
14 the date of the application, in form and text like the original except
15 that, in addition, the renewal must include the date and number of
16 the earliest license or certificate issued.

17 3. All requirements of this chapter with respect to original
18 certificates, licenses and bonds apply with like force to all renewal
19 certificates, licenses and bonds except as otherwise specified in this
20 section.

21 4. The Commissioner shall refuse to renew a certificate or
22 license if at the time of application a proceeding to revoke or
23 suspend the certificate or license is pending.

24 **Sec. 184.** NRS 652.095 is hereby amended to read as follows:

25 652.095 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
26 *in this chapter:*

27 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license or certificate*
28 *issued pursuant to NRS 652.125 shall include the social security*
29 *number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

30 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license or
31 certificate issued pursuant to NRS 652.125 shall submit to the Board
32 the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department
33 of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must
34 be completed and signed by the applicant.

35 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
36 subsection 1 in:

37 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
38 for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

39 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

40 3. A license or certificate may not be issued or renewed by the
41 Board pursuant to NRS 652.125 if the applicant:

42 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
43 1; or

44 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
45 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is



1 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
2 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
3 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
5 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
6 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
7 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
8 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
9 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
10 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
11 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

12 **Sec. 185.** NRS 652.095 is hereby amended to read as follows:

13 652.095 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
14 this chapter ~~f:~~

15 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license or certificate issued~~
16 ~~pursuant to NRS 652.125 shall include the social security number of~~
17 ~~the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.~~

18 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license or
19 certificate issued pursuant to NRS 652.125 shall submit to the Board
20 the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department
21 of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must
22 be completed and signed by the applicant.

23 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
24 subsection 1 in:

25 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
26 for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

27 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

28 3. A license or certificate may not be issued or renewed by the
29 Board pursuant to NRS 652.125 if the applicant:

30 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
31 1; or

32 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
33 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
34 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
35 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
36 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

37 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
38 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
39 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
40 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
41 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
42 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
43 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
44 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.



1 **Sec. 186.** NRS 654.140 is hereby amended to read as follows:

2 654.140 1. The Board shall prescribe and furnish an
3 application form for the use of all persons who desire to be licensed
4 pursuant to this chapter.

5 2. All applications filed with the Board must ~~[include the social~~
6 ~~security number of the applicant and]~~ be accompanied by *all*
7 *information required to complete the application and* the required
8 fee fixed by the Board in an amount not to exceed:

9 (a) For an administrator of a residential facility for groups, \$150.

10 (b) For a nursing facility administrator, \$250.

11 3. The Board may fix and charge an additional fee to cover the
12 cost of administering the examinations if the Board determines that
13 there is not sufficient money from other sources to cover such costs.

14 **Sec. 187.** NRS 654.145 is hereby amended to read as follows:

15 654.145 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth*
16 *in this chapter:*

17 (a) *An applicant for the issuance of a license as a nursing*
18 *facility administrator or an administrator of a residential facility*
19 *for groups shall include the social security number of the*
20 *applicant in the application submitted to the Board.*

21 (b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as a
22 nursing facility administrator or an administrator of a residential
23 facility for groups shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed
24 by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources
25 pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and
26 signed by the applicant.

27 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
28 subsection 1 in:

29 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
30 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

31 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

32 3. A license as a nursing facility administrator or an
33 administrator of a residential facility for groups may not be issued or
34 renewed by the Board if the applicant:

35 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
36 1; or

37 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
38 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
39 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
40 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
41 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

42 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
43 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
44 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
45 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for



1 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
2 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
3 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
4 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

5 **Sec. 188.** NRS 654.145 is hereby amended to read as follows:

6 654.145 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
7 this chapter ~~f:~~

8 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license as a nursing facility~~
9 ~~administrator or an administrator of a residential facility for groups~~
10 ~~shall include the social security number of the applicant in the~~
11 ~~application submitted to the Board.~~

12 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license as
13 a nursing facility administrator or an administrator of a residential
14 facility for groups shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed
15 by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources
16 pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and
17 signed by the applicant.

18 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
19 subsection 1 in:

20 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
21 for the issuance or renewal of the license; or

22 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

23 3. A license as a nursing facility administrator or an
24 administrator of a residential facility for groups may not be issued or
25 renewed by the Board if the applicant:

26 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
27 1; or

28 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
29 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
30 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
31 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
32 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

33 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
34 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
35 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
36 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
37 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
38 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
39 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
40 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

41 **Sec. 189.** NRS 654.150 is hereby amended to read as follows:

42 654.150 Each applicant for licensure as a nursing facility
43 administrator pursuant to this chapter must:



1 1. Be of good moral character and physically and emotionally
2 capable of administering a facility for skilled nursing or facility for
3 intermediate care.

4 2. Have satisfactorily completed a course of instruction and
5 training prescribed or approved by the Board, including the study of:

6 (a) The needs which are to be properly served by a facility for
7 skilled nursing or facility for intermediate care;

8 (b) The laws governing the operation of a facility and the
9 protection of the patients' interests; and

10 (c) The elements of good administration of a facility.

11 ➡ In lieu of the specific requirements of this subsection, the
12 applicant may present other evidence satisfactory to the Board of
13 sufficient education, training or experience by which he would be
14 qualified to administer, supervise and manage a facility.

15 3. Pass an examination conducted and prescribed by the Board
16 pursuant to the provisions of this chapter.

17 4. Submit with his application:

18 (a) A complete set of his fingerprints and written permission
19 authorizing the Board to forward the fingerprints to the Central
20 Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History for submission
21 to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for its report; and

22 (b) A fee to cover the actual cost of obtaining the report from the
23 Federal Bureau of Investigation.

24 5. ~~Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 654.145.~~

25 ~~6.]~~ Meet such other standards and qualifications as the Board
26 may from time to time establish.

27 *6. Submit all information required to complete the*
28 *application.*

29 **Sec. 190.** NRS 654.155 is hereby amended to read as follows:

30 654.155 Each applicant for licensure as an administrator of a
31 residential facility for groups pursuant to this chapter must:

32 1. Be at least 21 years of age;

33 2. Be a citizen of the United States or lawfully entitled to
34 remain and work in the United States;

35 3. Be of good moral character and physically and emotionally
36 capable of administering a residential facility for groups;

37 4. Have satisfactorily completed a course of instruction and
38 training prescribed or approved by the Board or be qualified by
39 reason of his education, training or experience to administer,
40 supervise and manage a residential facility for groups;

41 5. Pass an examination conducted and prescribed by the Board;

42 6. Submit with his application:

43 (a) A complete set of his fingerprints and written permission
44 authorizing the Board to forward the fingerprints to the Central



Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for its report; *and*

(b) A fee to cover the actual cost of obtaining the report from the Federal Bureau of Investigation; ~~and~~

~~—(c) The statement required pursuant to NRS 654.145; and~~

7. Comply with such other standards and qualifications as the Board prescribes ~~[-]; and~~

8. Submit all information required to complete the application.

Sec. 191. NRS 654.170 is hereby amended to read as follows:

654.170 1. The Board shall issue a numbered license, in such form as it may prescribe, to each applicant who meets the requirements of NRS 654.150 or 654.155 and shall affix its official seal to the license.

2. Each license issued by the Board pursuant to this chapter expires 2 years after the last day of the calendar month in which it was issued and may be renewed on or before that date biennially.

3. Any licensed nursing facility administrator or administrator of a residential facility for groups may renew his license by applying for renewal in the manner prescribed by the Board, ~~submitting the statement required pursuant to NRS 654.145 and~~ paying the renewal fee fixed by the Board ~~[-] and submitting all information required to complete the renewal.~~

4. The Board shall, as a prerequisite for the renewal of a license, require each holder to comply with:

(a) The requirements for continuing education adopted by the Board; and

(b) The duties of the administrator set forth in NRS 449.0357.

Sec. 192. NRS 655.075 is hereby amended to read as follows:

655.075 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) An applicant for the issuance of a permit shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the sheriff of the county in which the principal place of business of the applicant is located.

(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a permit shall submit to the sheriff of the county in which the principal place of business of the applicant is located the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The sheriff of a county shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the permit; or



1 (b) A separate form prescribed by the sheriff.
2 3. A permit may not be issued or renewed by the sheriff of a
3 county if the applicant:

4 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
5 1; or

6 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
7 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
8 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
9 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
10 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

11 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
12 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
13 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
14 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
15 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the sheriff
16 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
17 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
18 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

19 **Sec. 193.** NRS 655.075 is hereby amended to read as follows:

20 655.075 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
21 this chapter f:

22 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a permit shall include the~~
23 ~~social security number of the applicant in the application submitted~~
24 ~~to the sheriff of the county in which the principal place of business~~
25 ~~of the applicant is located.~~

26 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a permit
27 shall submit to the sheriff of the county in which the principal place
28 of business of the applicant is located the statement prescribed by
29 the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources
30 pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and
31 signed by the applicant.

32 2. The sheriff of a county shall include the statement required
33 pursuant to subsection 1 in:

34 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
35 for the issuance or renewal of the permit; or

36 (b) A separate form prescribed by the sheriff.

37 3. A permit may not be issued or renewed by the sheriff of a
38 county if the applicant:

39 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
40 1; or

41 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
42 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
43 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
44 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
45 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.



4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the sheriff shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

Sec. 194. NRS 656.150 is hereby amended to read as follows:

656.150 1. Each applicant for a certificate must file an application with the Executive Secretary of the Board at least 30 days before the date fixed for examination. The application must ~~include the social security number of the applicant and~~ be accompanied by the required fee ~~[]~~ *and all information required to complete the application.*

2. No certificate may be issued until the applicant has passed the examination prescribed by the Board and paid the fee as provided in NRS 656.220.

Sec. 195. NRS 656.155 is hereby amended to read as follows:

656.155 1. *In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter:*

(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license or certificate shall include the social security number of the applicant in the application submitted to the Board.

(b) An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license or certificate shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by the applicant.

2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

(a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

(b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

3. A license or certificate may not be issued or renewed by the Board if the applicant:

(a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection 1; or

(b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a



1 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
2 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
3 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
4 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
5 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
6 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

7 **Sec. 196.** NRS 656.155 is hereby amended to read as follows:

8 656.155 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in
9 this chapter ~~f~~:

10 ~~—(a) An applicant for the issuance of a license or certificate shall~~
11 ~~include the social security number of the applicant in the application~~
12 ~~submitted to the Board.~~

13 ~~—(b) An~~, *an* applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license or
14 certificate shall submit to the Board the statement prescribed by the
15 Welfare Division of the Department of Human Resources pursuant
16 to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and signed by
17 the applicant.

18 2. The Board shall include the statement required pursuant to
19 subsection 1 in:

20 (a) The application or any other forms that must be submitted
21 for the issuance or renewal of the license or certificate; or

22 (b) A separate form prescribed by the Board.

23 3. A license or certificate may not be issued or renewed by the
24 Board if the applicant:

25 (a) Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection
26 1; or

27 (b) Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection
28 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is
29 not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by the district
30 attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
31 repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

32 4. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant
33 to subsection 1 that he is subject to a court order for the support of a
34 child and is not in compliance with the order or a plan approved by
35 the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
36 the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the Board
37 shall advise the applicant to contact the district attorney or other
38 public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions that the
39 applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

40 **Sec. 197.** NRS 656.180 is hereby amended to read as follows:

41 656.180 An applicant for a certificate of registration as a
42 certified court reporter is entitled to a certificate if he:

43 1. Is a citizen of the United States or lawfully entitled to
44 remain and work in the United States;

45 2. Is at least 18 years of age;



1 3. Is of good moral character;
2 4. Has a high school education or its equivalent;
3 5. ~~{Submits the statement required pursuant to NRS 656.155;~~
4 ~~—6.}~~ Satisfactorily passes an examination administered by the
5 Board; ~~and~~

6 ~~—7.}~~ 6. Pays the requisite fees ~~{.}~~; and
7 7. *Submits all information required to complete an*
8 *application for a certificate of registration.*

9 **Sec. 198.** NRS 656.185 is hereby amended to read as follows:
10 656.185 1. It is unlawful for any person to conduct business
11 as a court reporting firm or to advertise or put out any sign or card
12 or other device which may indicate to members of the public that he
13 is entitled to conduct such a business without first obtaining a
14 license from the Board.

15 2. Each applicant for a license as a court reporting firm must
16 file an application with the Executive Secretary of the Board on a
17 form prescribed by the Board.

18 3. The application must:

19 (a) Include the ~~{social—security—number—and}~~ federal
20 identification number of the applicant;

21 (b) ~~{Be accompanied by the statement required pursuant to NRS~~
22 ~~656.155; and~~

23 ~~—(e)}~~ Be accompanied by the required fee ~~{.}~~; and

24 (c) *Include all information required to complete the*
25 *application.*

26 4. To obtain a license pursuant to this section, an applicant
27 need not hold a certificate of registration as a certified court
28 reporter.

29 **Sec. 199.** NRS 656.187 is hereby amended to read as follows:

30 656.187 1. A license as a court reporting firm expires on
31 June 30 of each year and may be renewed if, before that date, the
32 licensee submits to the Board:

33 (a) An application for renewal on a form prescribed by the
34 Board;

35 (b) ~~{The statement required pursuant to NRS 656.155; and~~

36 ~~—(e)}~~ The required fee for renewal ~~{.}~~; and

37 (c) *All information required to complete the renewal.*

38 2. A license that expires pursuant to the provisions of this
39 section may be reinstated if the applicant:

40 (a) Complies with the provisions of subsection 1; and

41 (b) Submits to the Board the required fee for reinstatement.

42 **Sec. 200.** NRS 656.200 is hereby amended to read as follows:

43 656.200 1. To renew a certificate of registration a court
44 reporter must:

45 (a) Apply to the Board for renewal;



(b) ~~Submit the statement required pursuant to NRS 656.155;~~
~~—(e)—~~ Pay the annual renewal fee prescribed by the Board; ~~and~~
~~—(d)—~~ (c) Submit evidence to the Board of his completion of the
requirements for continuing education established by the Board ~~[-]~~ ;
and

(d) *Submit all information required to complete the renewal.*

2. The Board shall adopt regulations requiring court reporters to participate in continuing education or training as a prerequisite to the renewal or restoration of a certificate. If a court reporter fails to comply with the requirements, the Board may suspend or revoke his certificate.

3. The failure of any court reporter to submit ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 656.155~~ *all information required to complete the renewal* or pay in advance the annual renewal fee which may be fixed by the Board as necessary to defray the expense of administering the provisions of this chapter results in the suspension of the reporter's right to engage in the practice of court reporting. The suspension must not be terminated until ~~the statement~~ *all required information* has been submitted and all delinquent fees have been paid.

4. A court reporter whose certificate of registration has been suspended because of his failure to submit ~~the statement~~ *all required information* or pay the renewal fee:

(a) May within 2 years thereafter have his certificate reinstated without examination upon submission of ~~the statement~~ *all required information* and payment of the fees set forth in paragraph (e) of subsection 1 of NRS 656.220.

(b) While he was on active military duty or in training before induction, may have his certificate renewed without payment of any fee if he files an application for renewal, ~~the statement required pursuant to NRS 656.155 and~~ an affidavit of such service with the Board within 2 years after the termination of the service ~~[-]~~ and *all information required to complete the renewal.*

Sec. 201. NRS 425.500 is hereby amended to read as follows:

425.500 As used in NRS 425.500 to 425.560, inclusive, unless the context otherwise requires, "agency that issues a professional ~~[-]~~ *occupational or recreational* or *occupational* license, certificate or permit ~~[-]~~ means the Department of Wildlife and *pursuant to title 54 of NRS*" means any officer, agency, board or commission of this State *which has the authority to regulate a profession or occupation pursuant to title 54 of NRS and* which is prohibited by specific statute from issuing or renewing a license, certificate or permit unless the applicant for the issuance or renewal of that license, certificate or permit submits to the officer, agency, board or



1 commission the statement prescribed by the Division pursuant to
2 NRS 425.520.

3 **Sec. 202.** NRS 425.520 is hereby amended to read as follows:

4 425.520 1. The Division shall prescribe, by regulation, a
5 statement which must be submitted to an agency that issues a
6 professional ~~[, occupational or recreational]~~ *or occupational* license,
7 certificate or permit ~~[, other than the Department of Wildlife,]~~
8 *pursuant to title 54 of NRS* by an applicant for the issuance or
9 renewal of such a license, certificate or permit.

10 2. The statement prescribed pursuant to subsection 1 must:

11 (a) Provide the applicant with an opportunity to indicate that:

12 (1) He is not subject to a court order for the support of a
13 child;

14 (2) He is subject to a court order for the support of one or
15 more children and is in compliance with the order or is in
16 compliance with a plan approved by the district attorney or other
17 public agency enforcing the order for the repayment of the amount
18 owed pursuant to the order; or

19 (3) He is subject to a court order for the support of one or
20 more children and is not in compliance with the order or a plan
21 approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing
22 the order for the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the
23 order;

24 (b) Include a statement that the application for the issuance or
25 renewal of the license, certificate or permit will be denied if the
26 applicant does not indicate on the statement which of the provisions
27 of paragraph (a) applies to the applicant; and

28 (c) Include a space for the signature of the applicant.

29 **Sec. 203.** NRS 425.530 is hereby amended to read as follows:

30 425.530 1. Each district attorney or other public agency
31 collecting support for children shall send a notice by certified mail,
32 restricted delivery, with return receipt requested to each person who
33 ~~[i]~~ *is issued a professional or occupational license, certificate or*
34 *permit pursuant to title 54 of NRS and:*

35 (a) Has failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a
36 proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish,
37 modify or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

38 (b) Is in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more
39 children.

40 ➔ The notice must include the information set forth in subsections 2
41 and 3 and a copy of the subpoena or warrant or a statement of the
42 amount of the arrearage.

43 2. If the person does not, within 30 days after he receives the
44 notice required by subsection 1:

45 (a) Comply with the subpoena or warrant;



(b) Satisfy the arrearage pursuant to NRS 425.560; or

(c) Submit to the district attorney or other public agency a written request for a hearing,

↳ the district attorney or other public agency shall request in writing that the master suspend ~~[all professional, occupational and recreational licenses, certificates and permits]~~ *any professional or occupational license, certificate or permit* issued *pursuant to title 54 of NRS* to that person.

3. If the master receives from a district attorney or other public agency a request to suspend ~~[the professional, occupational and recreational licenses, certificates and permits]~~ *any professional or occupational license, certificate or permit* issued *pursuant to title 54 of NRS* to a person, the master shall enter a recommendation determining whether the person:

(a) Has failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish, modify or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Is in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children.

↳ As soon as practicable after the master enters his recommendation, the district attorney or other public agency shall notify the person by first-class mail of the recommendation of the master.

4. If a person requests a hearing within the period prescribed in subsection 2, a hearing must be held pursuant to NRS 425.3832. The master shall notify the person of his recommendation at the conclusion of the hearing or as soon thereafter as is practicable.

Sec. 204. NRS 425.540 is hereby amended to read as follows:

425.540 1. If a master enters a recommendation determining that a person ~~[:]~~ *who is issued a professional or occupational license, certificate or permit pursuant to title 54 of NRS:*

(a) Has failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Is in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↳ and the district court issues an order approving the recommendation of the master, the court shall provide a copy of the order to all agencies that issue professional ~~[, occupational or recreational]~~ *or occupational* licenses, certificates or permits ~~[:]~~ *pursuant to title 54 of NRS.*

2. A court order issued pursuant to subsection 1 must provide that if the person named in the order does not, within 30 days after the date on which the order is issued, submit to any agency that has issued a professional ~~[, occupational or recreational]~~ *or*



1 *occupational* license, certificate or permit *pursuant to title 54 of*
2 *NRS* to that person a letter from the district attorney or other public
3 agency stating that the person has complied with the subpoena or
4 warrant or has satisfied the arrearage pursuant to NRS 425.560, ~~[the~~
5 ~~professional, occupational or recreational licenses]~~ *any professional*
6 *or occupational license, certificate or permit* issued *pursuant to*
7 *title 54 of NRS* to the person by that agency will be automatically
8 suspended. ~~[Such an order must not apply to a license, certificate or~~
9 ~~permit issued by the Department of Wildlife or the State Land~~
10 ~~Registrar if that license, certificate or permit expires less than 6~~
11 ~~months after it is issued.]~~

12 3. If a court issues an order pursuant to subsection 1, the
13 district attorney or other public agency shall send a notice by first-
14 class mail to the person who is subject to the order. The notice must
15 include:

16 (a) If the person has failed to comply with a subpoena or
17 warrant, a copy of the court order and a copy of the subpoena or
18 warrant; or

19 (b) If the person is in arrears in the payment for the support of
20 one or more children:

21 (1) A copy of the court order;

22 (2) A statement of the amount of the arrearage; and

23 (3) A statement of the action that the person may take to
24 satisfy the arrearage pursuant to NRS 425.560.

25 **Sec. 205.** NRS 425.550 is hereby amended to read as follows:

26 425.550 The district attorney or other public agency shall,
27 within 5 days after a person who *is issued a professional or*
28 *occupational license, certificate or permit pursuant to title 54 of*
29 *NRS and* is subject to a court order issued pursuant to NRS 425.540
30 complies with the subpoena or warrant or satisfies the arrearage
31 pursuant to NRS 425.560, provide to the person who is subject to
32 the order a letter stating that the person has complied with the
33 subpoena or warrant or has satisfied the arrearage. The district
34 attorney or other public agency shall also mail a copy of that letter
35 to all of the agencies to which a copy of the order was provided
36 pursuant to NRS 425.540.

37 **Sec. 206.** NRS 425.560 is hereby amended to read as follows:

38 425.560 For the purposes of NRS ~~[425.500]~~ *425.520* to
39 425.560, inclusive:

40 1. A person *who is issued a professional or occupational*
41 *license, certificate or permit pursuant to title 54 of NRS* is in
42 arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children if:

43 (a) He:

44 (1) Owes a total of more than \$1,000 for the support of one
45 or more children for which payment is past due; and



(2) Is delinquent for not less than 2 months in payments for the support of one or more children or any payments ordered by a court for arrearages in such payments; or

(b) He has failed to provide medical insurance for a child as required by a court order.

2. A person who is in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children *pursuant to subsection 1* may satisfy the arrearage by:

(a) Paying all of the past due payments;

(b) If he is unable to pay all past due payments:

(1) Paying the amounts of the overdue payments for the preceding 12 months which a court has determined are in arrears; or

(2) Entering into and complying with a plan for the repayment of the arrearages which is approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order; or

(c) If the arrearage is for a failure to provide and maintain medical insurance, providing proof that the child is covered under a policy, contract or plan of medical insurance.

Sec. 207. Section 518 of chapter 483, Statutes of Nevada 1997, as amended by section 57 of chapter 105, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 520, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 518. ~~[The amendatory provisions of sections 1 to 4.5, inclusive,]~~

1. Sections 4, 4.5, 6 to 16, inclusive, 17 to 21, inclusive, 22 to 167, inclusive, 168 to 172, inclusive, 173 to 193, inclusive, 194 to 212, inclusive, 462 to 507, inclusive, 508, 509 to 509.3, inclusive, [and] 509.4 to 514, inclusive, 516 and 516.1 [inclusive,] of this act expire by limitation on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

~~[(a)]~~ (a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

~~[(b)]~~ (b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

2. Sections 1 to 3.8, inclusive, 214, 215, 222, 223, 228, 229, 234, 235, 239, 240, 244, 245, 247, 249, 250, 258, 259, 266, 267, 272, 273, 279, 280, 287, 288, 294, 295, 300, 301, 308, 309, 314, 316, 317, 322, 323, 329, 330, 335, 336, 344, 345, 349, 350, 356, 357, 360, 361, 366, 367, 371, 372, 376,



378, 379, 386, 387, 393, 394, 401 to 404, inclusive, 407, 410, 411, 416, 417, 422, 423, 426, 428, 429, 434, 435, 441, 442, 445, 446, 451, 453, 454, 457 and 458 of this act expire by limitation on the date 2 years after the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 208. Section 5 of chapter 74, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 170, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 5. 1. This act becomes effective on July 1, 1999.

2. Section 3 of this act expires by limitation on the date 2 years after the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 209. Section 18 of chapter 272, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 1157, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 18. ~~[The amendatory provisions of sections 10,]~~ Sections 11 and 16 of this act expire by limitation on the date 2 years after the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational or recreational licenses of persons who:

1. Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or



2. Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 210. Section 19 of chapter 291, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 1221, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 19. ~~[The amendatory provisions of sections 15 to 18, inclusive,]~~ *Sections 15 and 16* of this act expire by limitation on the date *2 years after the date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

1. Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

2. Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 211. Section 38 of chapter 502, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2587, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 38. 1. This section and sections 1 to 29, inclusive, and sections 31 to 37, inclusive, of this act become effective on October 1, 1999.

2. ~~[Section 30]~~ *Sections 12 and 33* of this act ~~[becomes effective]~~ *expire by limitation* on the date *2 years after the date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 212. Section 84 of chapter 574, Statutes of Nevada 1999, as amended by section 111 of chapter 10, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 210, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 84. 1. This section and sections 1 to 55, inclusive, 57, 59 to 72, inclusive, and 78 to 83, inclusive, of this act become effective on October 1, 1999.



2. Section 77.5 of this act becomes effective on January 1, 2000.

3. Sections 57.5 to 58.6, inclusive, of this act become effective on July 1, 2001.

4. Sections ~~[73 to 77, inclusive, of this act become effective on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~are repealed by the Congress of the United States.~~

~~5. Sections 21,]~~ 22 and 43 of this act expire by limitation on the date *2 years after the date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 213. Section 139 of chapter 646, Statutes of Nevada 1999, as last amended by section 18 of chapter 511, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2476, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 139. 1. This section and section 130.5 of this act become effective upon passage and approval for the purpose of adopting any regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this act, and on September 30, 1999, for all other purposes.

2. Sections 1 to 101, inclusive, 103, 105 to 117, inclusive, 119 to 130, inclusive, and 131 to 138, inclusive, of this act become effective upon passage and approval for the purpose of adopting any regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this act, and on October 1, 1999, for all other purposes.



3. Sections 102, 104 and 118 of this act become effective upon passage and approval for the purpose of adopting any regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this act, and at 12:01 a.m. on October 1, 1999, for all other purposes.

4. Sections 15, ~~and~~ 33, 87 and 96 of this act expire by limitation on the date *2 years after the date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 214. Section 56 of chapter 69, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 515, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 56. 1. This section and sections 1 to 53, inclusive, 55 and 57 of this act become effective on July 1, 2001.

2. ~~[Section 54]~~ Sections 34 and 45 of this act ~~[becomes effective]~~ *expire by limitation* on the date *2 years after the date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 215. Section 94 of chapter 152, Statutes of Nevada 2001, as amended by section 14 of chapter 2, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 16, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 94. 1. This section becomes effective upon passage and approval.

2. Sections 1 to 90, inclusive, subsection 1 of section 91 and sections 92, 93 and 95 of this act become effective upon passage and approval for the purpose of adopting regulations



1 and taking such other actions as necessary to regulate
2 practitioners of respiratory care, and on July 1, 2001, for all
3 other purposes.

4 3. Subsection 2 of section 91 of this act becomes
5 effective at 12:01 a.m. on July 1, 2001.

6 4. ~~[The amendatory provisions of sections 8,]~~ *Sections*
7 19 and 41 of this act expire by limitation on the date *2 years*
8 *after the date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666
9 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the
10 state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the
11 use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of
12 persons who:

13 (a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant
14 relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child
15 or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a
16 child; or

17 (b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or
18 more children,

19 ~~are repealed by the Congress of the United States.~~

20 **Sec. 216.** Section 23 of chapter 227, Statutes of Nevada 2001,
21 at page 1013, is hereby amended to read as follows:

22 Sec. 23. 1. This section and sections 1 to 18,
23 inclusive, 21 and 22 of this act become effective on July 1,
24 2001.

25 2. Sections ~~[19 and 20]~~ *10 and 13* of this act ~~[become~~
26 ~~effective]~~ *expire by limitation* on the date *2 years after the*
27 *date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring
28 each state to establish procedures under which the state has
29 authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of
30 professional, occupational and recreational licenses of
31 persons who:

32 (a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant
33 relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or
34 to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child;
35 or

36 (b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or
37 more children,

38 ~~are repealed by the Congress of the United States.~~

39 **Sec. 217.** Chapter 265, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 1196,
40 is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to be designated
41 as section 25, immediately following section 24, to read as follows:

42 Sec. 25. Sections 12 and 23 of this act expire by
43 limitation on the date 2 years after the date on which the
44 provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish
45 procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or



suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

~~[(a)]~~ 1. Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

~~[(b)]~~ 2. Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 218. Section 3 of chapter 327, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 1521, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 3. 1. This section becomes effective upon passage and approval.

2. Sections 1 and 2 of this act become effective upon passage and approval for the purposes of adopting regulations and taking such other actions as are necessary to carry out the provisions of this act, and on January 1, 2002, for all other purposes.

3. Section 2 of this act expires by limitation on the date *2 years after the date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 219. Section 12 of chapter 340, Statutes of Nevada 2001, as amended by section 43 of chapter 2, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 66, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 12. 1. This section and sections 1 to 5, inclusive, 7, 7.5 and 8 of this act become effective on October 1, 2001.

2. Section 6 of this act becomes effective on October 1, 2005.

3. ~~[Sections 10 and 11 of this act become effective on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~



~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.~~

~~—4.] Section 2 of this act expires by limitation on September 30, 2005.~~

~~[5.—Section 9 of this act becomes effective on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States only if that date occurs before September 30, 2005. If section 9 of this act becomes effective, that section expires by limitation on September 30, 2005.]~~

Sec. 220. Section 34 of chapter 89, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 522, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 34. 1. This section and sections 1 to 30, inclusive, and 33 of this act become effective on October 1, 2003.

2. Section 2 of this act expires by limitation on September 30, 2005 . ~~[, or on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States, whichever occurs first.~~

~~—3.—Section 31 of this act becomes effective on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state~~



~~to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States, and expires by limitation on September 30, 2005.~~

~~—4.] 3. Section 32 of this act becomes effective on October 1, 2005.~~

Sec. 221. Section 3 of chapter 130, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 673, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 3. ~~[1-]~~ This act becomes effective upon passage and approval.

~~[2.—Section 2 of this act expires by limitation on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.]~~

Sec. 222. Section 9 of chapter 162, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 860, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 9. ~~[1-]~~ This act becomes effective on July 1, 2003.

~~[2.—Section 5 of this act expires by limitation on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~



~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.~~

~~—3. Section 6 of this act becomes effective on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.]~~

Sec. 223. Section 56 of chapter 173, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 913, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 56. Sections 28 and 29 of this act expire by limitation on the date *2 years after the date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

1. Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

2. Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 224. Section 65 of chapter 243, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 1313, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 65. 1. This act becomes effective on July 1, 2003.

2. Sections 11, ~~[17, 25,]~~ 53, 54 and 56 of this act expire by limitation on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or



(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 225. Section 28 of chapter 277, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 1424, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 28. 1. This section becomes effective upon passage and approval.

2. Sections 18 and 19 of this act become effective upon passage and approval for the purpose of adopting regulations and on January 1, 2004, for all other purposes.

3. Sections 1 to 17, inclusive, 20 to 23, inclusive, 26 and 27 of this act become effective on January 1, 2004.

~~[4. Sections 24 and 25 of this act become effective on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.~~

~~—5. Sections 7, 9 and 20 of this act expire by limitation on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.]~~

Sec. 226. Section 72 of chapter 284, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 1506, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 72. 1. This section and sections 1 to 23, inclusive, 24, 26 to ~~[61,]~~ **62**, inclusive, 64, 65, **66** and 68 to 71, inclusive, of this act become effective on July 1, 2003.



2. Section 23.5 of this act becomes effective on July 1, 2003, for the purpose of adopting regulations and on July 1, 2004, for all other purposes.

~~3. [Sections 62 and 66 of this act become effective on July 1, 2003, and expire by limitation on the date of the repeal of the federal law requiring each state to establish procedures for withholding, suspending and restricting the professional, occupational and recreational licenses for child support arrearages and for noncompliance with certain processes relating to paternity or child support proceedings.]~~

~~—4.]~~ Sections 24.5 and 25.5 of this act become effective on July 1, 2004.

~~[5. Sections 63 and 67 of this act become effective on the date of the repeal of the federal law requiring each state to establish procedures for withholding, suspending and restricting the professional, occupational and recreational licenses for child support arrearages and for noncompliance with certain processes relating to paternity or child support proceedings.]~~

Sec. 227. Section 174 of chapter 292, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 1584, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 174. **1.** This act becomes effective on July 1, 2003.

2. Sections 124, 125 and 126 of this act expire by limitation on the date 2 years after the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 228. Section 20 of chapter 359, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 2108, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20. **1.** This section and sections 1, 3, 4, 5, 5.5, 7, 9, 11, 12, 14, 16, 17 and 19 and subsection 1 of section 18 of this act become effective upon passage and approval.

2. Sections 2, 6, 8, 10, 13 and 15 and subsection 2 of section 18 of this act become effective on February 1, 2004.

3. Section 9 of this act expires by limitation on the date **2 years after the date** on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §



666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 229. Chapter 392, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 2302, is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to be designated as section 51, immediately following section 50, to read as follows:

Sec. 51. Section 14 of this act expires by limitation on the date 2 years after the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

1. Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

2. Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

Sec. 230. Section 73 of chapter 447, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 2735, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 73. ~~[1.]~~ This section and sections 1 to 53, inclusive, and 55 to 72, inclusive, of this act become effective on July 1, 2003.

~~[2. Section 53 of this act expires by limitation on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

~~→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.~~



1 3. ~~Section 54 of this act becomes effective on the date on~~
2 ~~which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state~~
3 ~~to establish procedures under which the state has authority to~~
4 ~~withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional,~~
5 ~~occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

6 ~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant~~
7 ~~relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child~~
8 ~~or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a~~
9 ~~child; or~~

10 ~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for support of one or~~
11 ~~more children;~~

12 ~~→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.]~~

13 **Sec. 231.** Section 184 of chapter 508, Statutes of Nevada
14 2003, at page 3483, is hereby amended to read as follows:

15 Sec. 184. 1. This section becomes effective on
16 passage and approval.

17 2. Sections 1 to 182, inclusive, of this act become
18 effective upon passage and approval for the purpose of
19 adopting regulations and on July 1, 2003, for all other
20 purposes.

21 3. Section 183 of this act becomes effective on July 1,
22 2003.

23 ~~[4. Sections 79.7 and 99 of this act expire by limitation~~
24 ~~on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C., § 666~~
25 ~~requiring each state to establish procedures under which the~~
26 ~~state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the~~
27 ~~use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of~~
28 ~~persons who:~~

29 ~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant~~
30 ~~relating to a procedure to determine the paternity of a child or~~
31 ~~to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child;~~
32 ~~or~~

33 ~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or~~
34 ~~more children;~~

35 ~~→ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.]~~

36 **Sec. 232.** Section 89 of chapter 516, Statutes of Nevada 2003,
37 at page 3580, is hereby amended to read as follows:

38 Sec. 89. 1. This section becomes effective upon
39 passage and approval.

40 2. Sections 1 to 20, inclusive, 21.5 to 39, inclusive, and
41 41 to 88, inclusive, of this act become effective upon passage
42 and approval for the purposes of adopting regulations and
43 performing any other preparatory administrative tasks that are
44 necessary to carry out the provisions of this act, and:



(a) Sections 1 to 20, inclusive, 21.5 to 25, inclusive, 31, 32, 33, 35, 36, 38, 39, 41, 42, 42.5, 45 and 48.5 to 88, inclusive, of this act become effective July 1, 2003, for all other purposes.

(b) Sections 26 to 30, inclusive, 34, 37, 43, 44, 46, 47 and 48 of this act become effective on July 1, 2004, for all other purposes.

3. Sections ~~[20, 29, 39,]~~ 29, 46, 57 and 74 of this act expire by limitation on the date *2 years after the date* on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

~~[4. Sections 21 and 40 of this act become effective on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the State has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:~~

~~—(a) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or~~

~~—(b) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children;~~

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.]

Sec. 233. 1. NRS 623.183, 628.034, 630.278, 630A.243, 632.3443, 635.053, 636.157, 637B.163, 639.128, 641B.203, 641C.270, 642.0193, 644.212, 648.083, 652.093 and 655.073 are hereby repealed.

2. Section 30 of chapter 502, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2585, sections 73, 74, 75, 76 and 77 of chapter 574, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at pages 3075 and 3076, section 54 of chapter 69, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 514, sections 19 and 20 of chapter 227, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 1013, sections 9, 10 and 11 of chapter 340, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at pages 1611, 1612 and 1613, respectively, section 31 of chapter 89, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 521, section 6 of chapter 162, Statutes of Nevada



2003, at page 859, sections 24 and 25 of chapter 277, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at pages 1422 and 1423, respectively, sections 63 and 67 of chapter 284, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at pages 1501 and 1504, respectively, section 54 of chapter 447, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 2722, and sections 21 and 40 of chapter 516, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at pages 3541 and 3550, respectively, are hereby repealed.

Sec. 234. 1. This section and sections 1 to 9, inclusive, 11 to 14, inclusive, 16 to 19, inclusive, 21, 22, 24 to 27, inclusive, 29, 30, 32, 33, 35, 36, 37, 39, 40, 41, 43 to 50, inclusive, 52, 53, 54, 56 to 59, inclusive, 61 to 64, inclusive, 66 to 69, inclusive, 71, 72, 73, 75 to 78, inclusive, 80, 81, 82, 84 to 87, inclusive, 89, 90, 91, 93 to 96, inclusive, 98, 99, 100, 102 to 106, inclusive, 108, 110, 111, 113, 114, 115, 117, 118, 120, 121, 122, 124 to 132, inclusive, 134 to 138, inclusive, 140 to 143, inclusive, 145 to 149, inclusive, 151, 152, 154, 155, 157, 158, 159, 161, 162, 164, 166 to 169, inclusive, 171, 172, 174, 176 to 181, inclusive, 183, 184, 186, 187, 189 to 192, inclusive, 194, 195, 197 to 200, inclusive, and 207 to 233, inclusive, of this act become effective on July 1, 2005.

2. Sections 10, 15, 20, 23, 28, 31, 34, 38, 42, 51, 55, 60, 65, 70, 74, 79, 83, 88, 92, 97, 101, 107, 109, 112, 116, 119, 123, 133, 139, 144, 150, 153, 156, 160, 163, 165, 170, 173, 175, 182, 185, 188, 193, 196 and 201 to 206, inclusive, of this act:

(a) Become effective on the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(1) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(2) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States; and

(b) Expire by limitation on the date 2 years after the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(1) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(2) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.



3. Sections 9, 14, 19, 22, 27, 30, 33, 37, 41, 50, 54, 59, 64, 69, 73, 78, 82, 87, 91, 96, 100, 106, 108, 111, 115, 118, 122, 132, 138, 143, 149, 152, 155, 159, 162, 164, 169, 172, 174, 181, 184, 187, 192 and 195 of this act expire by limitation on the date 2 years after the date on which the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 666 requiring each state to establish procedures under which the state has authority to withhold or suspend, or to restrict the use of professional, occupational and recreational licenses of persons who:

(1) Have failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant relating to a proceeding to determine the paternity of a child or to establish or enforce an obligation for the support of a child; or

(2) Are in arrears in the payment for the support of one or more children,

↪ are repealed by the Congress of the United States.

4. Sections 44 and 45 of this act expire by limitation on September 30, 2005.

LEADLINES OF REPEALED SECTIONS

623.183 Application to include social security number of applicant.

628.034 Application for certificate, registration, license or permit must include social security number of applicant.

630.278 Application for license to include social security number.

630A.243 Application to include social security number of applicant.

632.3443 Application for license or certificate to include social security number of applicant.

635.053 Application to include social security number of applicant.

636.157 Application to include social security number of applicant.

637B.163 Application to include social security number of applicant.

639.128 Application to include social security number of applicant.

641B.203 Application to include social security number of applicant.

641C.270 Application must include social security number of applicant.



- 642.0193 Application to include social security number of applicant.
644.212 Application to include social security number of applicant.
648.083 Application to include social security number of applicant.
652.093 Application to include social security number of applicant.
655.073 Application to include social security number of applicant.
-
-

TEXT OF REPEALED SECTIONS

Section 30 of chapter 502, Statutes of Nevada 1999:

Sec. 30. NRS 643.1775 is hereby amended to read as follows:

643.1775 The board shall license any person as an instructor who:

1. Has applied to the board in writing on the form prescribed by the board;

2. Holds a high school diploma or its equivalent;

3. Has paid the applicable fees;

4. Holds a license as a barber issued by the board;

5. ~~Submits the statement required pursuant to NRS 643.095;~~

~~6.]~~ Has practiced not less than 5 years as a full-time licensed barber in this state, the District of Columbia or in any other state or country whose requirements for licensing barbers are substantially equivalent to those in this state;

~~7.]~~ 6. Has successfully completed a training program for instructors conducted by a licensed barber school which consists of not less than 600 hours of instruction within a 6-month period; and

~~8.]~~ 7. Has passed an examination for instructors administered by the board.

Section 73 of chapter 574, Statutes of Nevada 1999:

Sec. 73. Section 23 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows

Sec. 23. The board shall issue a license as an alcohol and drug abuse counselor to:

1. A person who:



- (a) Is not less than 21 years of age;
- (b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;
- (c) Has received a master's degree or a doctoral degree from an accredited college or university in a field of social science approved by the board;
- (d) Has completed 4,000 hours of supervised counseling of alcohol and drug abusers;
- (e) Passes the written and oral examinations prescribed by the board pursuant to section 28 of this act; *and*
- (f) Pays the fees required pursuant to section 34 of this act. ~~}; and~~
- ~~—(g) Submits the statement required pursuant to section 22 of this act.}]~~

2. A person who:

- (a) Is not less than 21 years of age;
- (b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;
- (c) Is:
 - (1) Licensed as a clinical social worker pursuant to chapter 641B of NRS;
 - (2) Licensed as a marriage and family therapist pursuant to chapter 641A of NRS; or
 - (3) A nurse who is licensed pursuant to chapter 632 of NRS and has received a master's degree or a doctoral degree from an accredited college or university;
- (d) Has completed at least 6 months of supervised counseling of alcohol and drug abusers approved by the board;
- (e) Passes the written and oral examinations prescribed by the board pursuant to section 28 of this act; *and*
- (f) Pays the fees required pursuant to section 34 of this act. ~~}; and~~
- ~~—(g) Submits the statement required pursuant to section 22 of this act.}]~~

Section 74 of chapter 574, Statutes of Nevada 1999:

Sec. 74. Section 25 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

- Sec. 25. 1. The board shall issue a certificate as an alcohol and drug abuse counselor to a person who:
- (a) Is not less than 21 years of age;
 - (b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;



(c) Has received a bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university in a field of social science approved by the board;

(d) Has completed 4,000 hours of supervised counseling of alcohol and drug abusers;

(e) Passes the written and oral examinations prescribed by the board pursuant to section 28 of this act; *and*

(f) Pays the fees required pursuant to section 34 of this act. ~~}; and~~

~~—(g) Submits the statement required pursuant to section 22 of this act.]~~

2. A certificate as an alcohol and drug abuse counselor is valid for 2 years and may be renewed.

3. A certified alcohol and drug abuse counselor may:

(a) Engage in the practice of counseling alcohol and drug abusers; and

(b) Diagnose or classify a person as an alcoholic or abuser of drugs.

Section 75 of chapter 574, Statutes of Nevada 1999:

Sec. 75. Section 26 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 26. 1. The board shall issue a certificate as an alcohol and drug abuse counselor intern to a person who:

(a) Is not less than 21 years of age;

(b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;

(c) Has a high school diploma or a general equivalency diploma;

(d) Pays the fees required pursuant to section 34 of this act; *and*

(e) Submits proof to the board that he:

(1) Is enrolled in a program from which he will receive an associate's degree, bachelor's degree, master's degree or doctoral degree in a field of social science approved by the board; or

(2) Has received an associate's degree, bachelor's degree, master's degree or doctoral degree in a field of social science approved by the board. ~~}; and~~

~~—(f) Submits the statement required pursuant to section 22 of this act.]~~

2. A certificate as an alcohol and drug abuse counselor intern is valid for 1 year and may be renewed.

3. A certified intern may, under the supervision of a licensed counselor:



- (a) Engage in the practice of counseling alcohol and drug abusers; and
- (b) Diagnose or classify a person as an alcoholic or drug abuser.

Section 76 of chapter 574, Statutes of Nevada 1999:

Sec. 76. Section 32 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 32. Except as otherwise provided in section 31 of this act, a person may renew his license or certificate by submitting to the board:

1. An application for the renewal of his license or certificate;

2. The fee for the renewal of a license or certificate prescribed in section 34 of this act;

3. Evidence of his completion of the continuing education required by the board; *and*

4. If the applicant is a certified intern, the name of the licensed counselor who supervises him. ~~}; and~~

~~—5. The statement required pursuant to section 22 of this act.}~~

Section 77 of chapter 574, Statutes of Nevada 1999:

Sec. 77. Section 33 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 33. 1. A license or certificate that is not renewed on or before the date on which it expires is delinquent. The board shall, within 30 days after the license or certificate becomes delinquent, send a notice to the licensed or certified counselor or certified intern by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address of the counselor or intern as indicated in the records of the board.

2. A licensed or certified counselor or certified intern may renew a delinquent license or certificate within 60 days after the license or certificate becomes delinquent by complying with the requirements of section 32 of this act and paying, in addition to the fee for the renewal of the license or certificate, the fee for the renewal of a delinquent license or certificate prescribed in section 34 of this act.

3. A license or certificate expires 60 days after it becomes delinquent if it is not renewed within period.

4. A license or certificate that has expired may be restored if the applicant:



(a) Submits to the board an application to restore the license or certificate;

(b) ~~Submits to the board the statement required pursuant to section 22 of this act;~~

~~(c)~~ Pays the renewal fees for the period during which the license or certificate was expired and the fee for the resotation of a license or certificate prescribed in section 34 of this act;

~~(d)~~ (c) Passes the oral and written examinations prescribed by the board; and

~~(e)~~ (d) Submits to the board evidence of his completion of the continuing education required by the board.

Section 54 of chapter 69, Statutes of Nevada 2001:

Sec. 54. Section 12 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 12. 1. Any person who:

(a) Is at least 21 years of age;

(b) Is of good moral character;

(c) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States; and

(d) Has graduated from a school approved by the board or has completed at least 4 years of work experience in the practice of landscape architecture in accordance with regulations adopted by the board, may submit an application to the board for a certificate to practice as a landscape architect intern.

2. The application must be submitted on a form furnished by the board and include ~~f:~~

~~(a) The statement required by NRS 623A.185;~~

~~(b) The social security number of the applicant; and~~

~~(c) The~~ *the* applicable fees prescribed by the board pursuant to the provisions of NRS 623A.240.

Section 19 of chapter 227, Statutes of Nevada 2001:

Sec. 19. Section 2 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 2. 1. It is unlawful for any person to conduct business as a court reporting firm or to advertise or put out any sign or card or other device which might indicate to members of the public that he is entitled to conduct such a business without first obtaining a license from the board.

2. Each applicant for a license as a court reporting firm shall file an application with the executive secretary



or chairman of the board on a form prescribed by the board.

3. The application must:

(a) Include the ~~[social security number and]~~ federal identification number of the applicant; *and*

(b) ~~[Be accompanied by the statement required pursuant to NRS 656.155; and~~

~~—(c)]~~ Be accompanied by the required fee.

4. To obtain a license pursuant to this section, an applicant need not hold a certificate of registration as a certified court reporter.

Section 20 of chapter 227, Statutes of Nevada 2001:

Sec. 20. Section 3 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 3. 1. A license as a court reporting firm expires on June 30 of each year and may be renewed if, before that date, the licensee submits to the board:

(a) An application for renewal on a form prescribed by the board; *and*

(b) ~~[The statement required by NRS 656.155; and~~

~~—(c)]~~ The required fee for renewal.

2. A license that expires pursuant to the provisions of this section may be reinstated if the applicant:

(a) Complies with the provisions of subsection 1; and

(b) Submits to the board the required fee for reinstatement.

Section 9 of chapter 340, Statutes of Nevada 2001:

Sec. 9. Section 2 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 2. 1. The board shall, without a clinical demonstration required by NRS 631.240, issue a temporary license to practice dentistry to a person who:

(a) Has a license to practice dentistry issued pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia;

(b) Has practiced dentistry pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia for a minimum of 5 years;

(c) Has not had his license to practice dentistry revoked or suspended in this state, another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia;



(d) Has not been refused a license to practice dentistry in this state, another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia;

(e) Is not involved in or does not have pending a disciplinary action concerning his license to practice dentistry in this state, another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia; *and*

(f) Pays the application, examination and renewal fees in the same manner as a person licensed pursuant to NRS 631.240. ~~}; and~~

~~—(g) Submits the statement required by NRS 631.225.]~~

2. A person to whom a temporary license is issued pursuant to subsection 1 may:

(a) Practice dentistry for the duration of the temporary license; and

(b) Apply for a permanent license to practice dentistry without a clinical demonstration required by NRS 631.240 if:

(1) The person has held a temporary license to practice dentistry pursuant to subsection 1 for a minimum of 2 years; and

(2) The person has not been involved in any disciplinary action during the time he has held a temporary license pursuant to subsection 1.

3. The board shall examine each applicant in writing on the contents and interpretation of this chapter and the regulations of the board.

Section 10 of chapter 340, Statutes of Nevada 2001:

Sec. 10. Section 3 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 3. 1. The board may, without a clinical demonstration required by NRS 631.240, issue a specialist's license to a person who:

(a) Presents a current certification as a diplomate from a certifying board approved by the Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association;

(b) Has an active license to practice dentistry pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia;

(c) Is a specialist as identified by the board; *and*

(d) Pays the application, examination and renewal fees in the same manner as a person licensed pursuant to NRS 631.240. ~~}; and~~

~~—(e) Submits the statement required by NRS 631.225.]~~



2. The board shall not issue a specialist's license to a person:

(a) Whose license to practice dentistry has been revoked or suspended;

(b) Who has been refused a license to practice dentistry; or

(c) Who is involved in or has pending a disciplinary action concerning his license to practice dentistry, in this state, another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia.

3. The board shall examine each applicant in writing on the contents and interpretation of this chapter and the regulations of the board.

4. A person to whom a specialist's license is issued pursuant to this section shall limit his practice to the specialty.

5. The board shall revoke a specialist's license at any time upon proof satisfactory to the board that the holder of the license violated any provision of this section or the regulations of the board.

Section 11 of chapter 340, Statutes of Nevada 2001:

Sec. 11. Section 4 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 4. 1. The board shall, without a clinical demonstration required by NRS 631.240 or a practical examination required by NRS 631.300, issue a restricted geographical license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene to a person if he meets the requirements of subsection 2 and:

(a) A board of county commissioners submits a request that the board of dental examiners of Nevada waive the requirements of NRS 631.240 or 631.300 for any applicant intending to practice dentistry or dental hygiene in a rural area of a county in which dental or dental hygiene needs are underserved as that term is defined by the officer of rural health of the University of Nevada School of Medicine; or

(b) The director of a federally qualified health center or a nonprofit clinic submits a request that the board waive the requirements of NRS 631.240 or 631.300 for any applicant who has entered into a contract with a federally qualified health center or nonprofit clinic which treats underserved populations in Washoe County or Clark County.



2. A person may apply for a restricted geographical license if he:

(a) Has a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene issued pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia;

(b) Is otherwise qualified for a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene in this state; *and*

(c) Pays the application, examination and renewal fees in the same manner as a person licensed pursuant to NRS 631.240 or 631.300. ~~[- and~~

~~—(d) Submits the statement required by NRS 631.225.]~~

3. The board shall not issue a restricted geographical license to a person:

(a) Whose license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene as been revoked or suspended;

(b) Who has been refused a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene; or

(c) Who is involved in or has pending a disciplinary action concerning his license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene,

in this state, another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia.

4. The board shall examine each applicant in writing on the contents and interpretation of this chapter and the regulations of the board.

5. A person to whom a restricted geographical license is issued pursuant to this section:

(a) May practice dentistry or dental hygiene only in the county which has requested the restricted geographical licensure pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 1.

(b) Shall not, for the duration of the restricted geographical license, engage in the private practice of dentistry or dental hygiene in this state or accept compensation for the practice of dentistry or dental hygiene except such compensation as may be paid to him by a federally qualified health center or nonprofit clinic pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1.

6. Within 7 days after the termination of his contract pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1, the holder of a restricted geographical license shall notify the board of the termination, in writing, and surrender the restricted geographical license.

7. A person to whom a restricted geographical license was issued pursuant to this section may petition the board for an unrestricted license without a clinical demonstration



required by NRS 631.240 or a practical examination required by NRS 631.300 if the person:

(a) Has not had his license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene revoked or suspended in this state, another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia;

(b) Has not been refused a license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene in this state, another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia;

(c) Is not involved in or does not have pending a disciplinary action concerning his license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene in this state, another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia; and

(d) Has:

(1) Actively practiced dentistry or dental hygiene for 3 years at a minimum of 30 hours per week in the restricted geographical area; or

(2) Been under contract with a federally qualified health center or nonprofit clinic for a minimum of 3 years.

8. The board shall revoke a restricted geographical license at any time upon proof satisfactory to the board that the holder of the license violated any provision of this section or the regulations of the board.

Section 31 of chapter 89, Statutes of Nevada 2003:

Sec. 31. Section 2 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 2. 1. The Board shall, without a practical examination required by NRS 631.300, issue a temporary license to practice dental hygiene to a person who:

(a) Has a license to practice dental hygiene pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(b) Satisfies the requirements of NRS 631.290;

(c) Has practiced dental hygiene pursuant to the laws of another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia, for at least 5 years immediately preceding the date that he applies for a temporary license;

(d) Has not had his license to practice dental hygiene revoked or suspended in this state, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;

(e) Has not been denied a license to practice dental hygiene in this state, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia;



(f) Is not involved in or does not have pending a disciplinary action concerning his license to practice dental hygiene in this state, another state or territory of the United States, or the District of Columbia; ~~and~~

(g) Pays the application, examination and renewal fees in the same manner as a person licensed pursuant to NRS 631.300. ~~}; and~~

~~—(h) Submits the statement required by NRS 631.225.]~~

2. A person to whom a temporary license is issued pursuant to this section may:

(a) Practice dental hygiene for the duration of the temporary license; and

(b) Apply for a permanent license to practice dental hygiene without a practical examination required by NRS 631.300 if:

(1) The person has held a temporary license to practice dental hygiene issued pursuant to this section for at least 2 years; and

(2) The person has not been involved in any disciplinary action during the time he has held a temporary license issued pursuant to this section.

3. The Board shall examine each applicant in writing concerning the contents and interpretation of this chapter and the regulations of the Board.

Section 6 of chapter 162, Statutes of Nevada 2003:

Sec. 6. NRS 654.170 is hereby amended to read as follows:

654.170 1. The Board shall issue a numbered license, in such form as it may prescribe, to each applicant who meets the requirements of NRS 654.150 or 654.155 and shall affix its official seal to the license.

2. Each license issued by the Board pursuant to this chapter expires 2 years after the last day of the calendar month in which it was issued and may be renewed on or before that date biennially.

3. Any licensed nursing facility administrator or administrator of a residential facility for groups may renew his license by applying for renewal in the manner prescribed by the Board and paying the renewal fee fixed by the Board.

4. The Board shall, as a prerequisite for the renewal of a license, require each holder to comply with ~~[the]~~ :

(a) ~~The~~ requirements for continuing education adopted by the Board ~~}; and~~



(b) The duties of the administrator set forth in section 1 of this act.

Section 24 of chapter 277, Statutes of Nevada 2003:

Sec. 24. Section 7 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 7. The Board may issue a certificate as a problem gambling counselor to:

1. A person who:

(a) Is not less than 21 years of age;

(b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;

(c) Has received a bachelor's degree, master's degree or a doctoral degree from an accredited college or university in a field of social science approved by the Board;

(d) Has completed not less than 60 hours of training specific to problem gambling approved by the Board;

(e) Has completed at least 2,000 hours of supervised counseling of problem gamblers in a setting approved by the Board;

(f) Passes the written examination prescribed by the Board pursuant to NRS 641C.290;

(g) Presents himself when scheduled for an interview at a meeting of the Board; *and*

(h) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470 .

~~[- and~~

~~— (i) Submits the statement required by NRS 641C.280.]~~

2. A person who:

(a) Is not less than 21 years of age;

(b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;

(c) Is licensed as:

(1) A clinical social worker pursuant to chapter 641B of NRS;

(2) A marriage and family therapist pursuant to chapter 641A of NRS;

(3) A physician pursuant to chapter 630 of NRS;

(4) A nurse pursuant to chapter 632 of NRS and has received a master's degree or a doctoral degree from an accredited college or university;

(5) A psychologist pursuant to chapter 641 of NRS;
or

(6) An alcohol and drug abuse counselor pursuant to this chapter;



(d) Has completed not less than 60 hours of training specific to problem gambling approved by the Board;

(e) Has completed at least 1,000 hours of supervised counseling of problem gamblers in a setting approved by the Board;

(f) Passes the written examination prescribed by the Board pursuant to NRS 641C.290; *and*

(g) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470 .

~~[- and~~

~~—(h) Submits the statement required by NRS 641C.280.]~~

Section 25 of chapter 277, Statutes of Nevada 2003:

Sec. 25. Section 9 of this act is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 9. 1. The Board may issue a certificate as a problem gambling counselor to a person who:

(a) Is not less than 21 years of age;

(b) Is a citizen of the United States or is lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States;

(c) Submits proof to the Board that he:

(1) Has received a bachelor's degree, master's degree or a doctoral degree from an accredited college or university in a field of social science approved by the Board; or

(2) Is enrolled in a program at an accredited college or university from which he will receive a bachelor's degree, master's degree or a doctoral degree in a field of social science approved by the Board;

(d) Has completed not less than 30 hours of training specific to problem gambling approved by the Board;

(e) Demonstrates that a certified problem gambling counselor approved by the Board has agreed to supervise him in a setting approved by the Board; *and*

(f) Pays the fees required pursuant to NRS 641C.470 .

~~[- and~~

~~—(g) Submits the statement required by NRS 641C.280.]~~

2. A certificate as a problem gambling counselor is valid for 1 year and, except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, may be renewed.

3. A certificate as a problem gambling counselor intern issued to a person on the basis that he is enrolled in a program at an accredited college or university from which he will receive a bachelor's degree, master's degree or a doctoral degree in a field of social science approved by the Board may be renewed not more than nine times.



4. A certified problem gambling counselor intern may, under the supervision of a certified problem gambling counselor:

(a) Engage in the practice of counseling problem gamblers; and

(b) Assess and evaluate a person as a problem gambler.

Section 63 of chapter 284, Statutes of Nevada 2003:

Sec. 63. NRS 645.350 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645.350 1. Application for license as a real estate broker, broker-salesman or salesman must be made in writing to the Division upon blanks prepared or furnished by the Division.

2. Every application for a real estate broker's, broker-salesman's or salesman's license must set forth the following information:

(a) The name, age and address of the applicant. If the applicant is a partnership or an association which is applying to do business as a real estate broker, the application must contain the name and address of each member thereof. If the application is for a corporation which is applying to do business as a real estate salesman, real estate broker-salesman or real estate broker, the application must contain the name and address of each officer and director thereof. If the applicant is a limited-liability company which is applying to do business as a real estate broker, the company's articles of organization must designate a manager, and the name and address of the manager and each member must be listed in the application.

(b) In the case of a broker, the name under which the business is to be conducted. The name is a fictitious name if it does not contain the name of the applicant or the names of the members of the applicant's company, firm, partnership or association. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 645.387, a license must not be issued under a fictitious name which includes the name of a real estate salesman or broker-salesman. A license must not be issued under the same fictitious name to more than one licensee within the State. All licensees doing business under a fictitious name shall comply with other pertinent statutory regulations regarding the use of fictitious names.



(c) In the case of a broker, the place or places, including the street number, city and county, where the business is to be conducted.

(d) The business or occupation engaged in by the applicant for at least 2 years immediately preceding the date of the application, and the location thereof.

(e) The time and place of the applicant's previous experience in the real estate business as a broker or salesman.

(f) Whether the applicant has ever been convicted of or is under indictment for a felony or has entered a plea of guilty ~~to~~ ~~guilty but mentally ill~~ or nolo contendere to a charge of felony, and if so, the nature of the felony.

(g) Whether the applicant has been convicted of or entered a plea of nolo contendere to forgery, embezzlement, obtaining money under false pretenses, larceny, extortion, conspiracy to defraud, engaging in the business of selling real estate without a license or any crime involving moral turpitude.

(h) Whether the applicant has been refused a real estate broker's, broker-salesman's or salesman's license in any state, or whether his license as a broker or salesman has been revoked or suspended by any other state, district or territory of the United States or any other country.

(i) If the applicant is a member of a limited-liability company, partnership or association, or an officer of a corporation, the name and address of the office of the limited-liability company, partnership, association or corporation of which the applicant is a member or officer.

3. An applicant for a license as a broker-salesman or salesman shall provide a verified statement from the broker with whom he will be associated, expressing the intent of that broker to associate the applicant with him and to be responsible for the applicant's activities as a licensee.

4. If a limited-liability company, partnership or association is to do business as a real estate broker, the application for a broker's license must be verified by at least two members thereof. If a corporation is to do business as a real estate broker, the application must be verified by the president and the secretary thereof.

Section 67 of chapter 284, Statutes of Nevada 2003:

Sec. 67. NRS 645C.320 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645C.320 1. The Administrator shall issue a certificate or license, as appropriate, to any person:



- (a) Of good moral character, honesty and integrity;
- (b) Who meets the educational requirements and has the experience prescribed in NRS 645C.330; and
- (c) Who, except as otherwise provided in NRS 645C.360, has satisfactorily passed a written examination approved by the Commission.

2. The Administrator may deny an application for a certificate or license to any person who:

(a) Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty ~~to~~ ~~guilty but mentally ill~~ or nolo contendere to, forgery, embezzlement, obtaining money under false pretenses, larceny, extortion, conspiracy to defraud or any crime involving moral turpitude;

(b) Makes a false statement of a material fact on his application; or

(c) Has had a certificate, license or registration card suspended or revoked pursuant to this chapter, or a certificate, license or permit to act as an appraiser suspended or revoked in any other jurisdiction, within the 10 years immediately preceding the date of his application.

Section 54 of chapter 447, Statutes of Nevada 2003:

Sec. 54. NRS 645B.020 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645B.020 1. A person who wishes to be licensed as a mortgage broker must file a written application for a license with the office of the Commissioner and pay the fee required pursuant to NRS 645B.050. An application for a license as a mortgage broker must:

(a) Be verified.

(b) State the name, residence address and business address of the applicant and the location of each principal office and branch office at which the mortgage broker will conduct business within this state.

(c) State the name under which the applicant will conduct business as a mortgage broker.

(d) List the name, residence address and business address of each person who will:

(1) If the applicant is not a natural person, have an interest in the mortgage broker as a principal, partner, officer, director or trustee, specifying the capacity and title of each such person.

(2) Be associated with or employed by the mortgage broker as a mortgage agent.



(e) Include a general business plan and a description of the policies and procedures that the mortgage broker and his mortgage agents will follow to arrange and service loans and to conduct business pursuant to this chapter.

(f) State the length of time the applicant has been engaged in the business of a mortgage broker.

(g) Include a financial statement of the applicant and, if applicable, satisfactory proof that the applicant will be able to maintain continuously the net worth required pursuant to NRS 645B.115.

(h) Include any other information required pursuant to the regulations adopted by the Commissioner or an order of the Commissioner.

2. If a mortgage broker will conduct business at one or more branch offices within this state, the mortgage broker must apply for a license for each such branch office.

3. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the Commissioner shall issue a license to an applicant as a mortgage broker if:

(a) The application complies with the requirements of this chapter; and

(b) The applicant and each general partner, officer or director of the applicant, if the applicant is a partnership, corporation or unincorporated association:

(1) Has a good reputation for honesty, trustworthiness and integrity and displays competence to transact the business of a mortgage broker in a manner which safeguards the interests of the general public. The applicant must submit satisfactory proof of these qualifications to the Commissioner.

(2) Has not been convicted of, or entered a plea of nolo contendere to, a felony *relating to the practice of mortgage brokers* or any crime involving fraud, misrepresentation or moral turpitude.

(3) Has not made a false statement of material fact on his application.

(4) Has not had a license that was issued pursuant to the provisions of this chapter or chapter 645E of NRS suspended or revoked within the 10 years immediately preceding the date of his application.

(5) Has not had a license that was issued in any other state, district or territory of the United States or any foreign country suspended or revoked within the 10 years immediately preceding the date of his application.



(6) Has not violated any provision of this chapter or chapter 645E of NRS, a regulation adopted pursuant thereto or an order of the Commissioner.

Section 21 of chapter 516, Statutes of Nevada 2003:

Sec. 21. NRS 645A.040 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645A.040 1. Every license issued pursuant to the provisions of this chapter expires on July 1 of each year if it is not renewed. A license may be renewed by filing an application for renewal and paying the annual fee for the succeeding year.

2. The fees for the issuance or renewal of a license for an escrow agency are:

(a) For filing an application for an initial license, \$500 for the principal office and \$100 for each branch office. ~~{All money received by the Commissioner pursuant to this paragraph must be placed in the Investigative Account created by NRS 232.545.}~~

(b) If the license is approved for issuance, \$200 for the principal office and \$100 for each branch office. The fee must be paid before issuance of the license.

(c) For filing an application for renewal, \$200 for the principal office and \$100 for each branch office.

3. The fees for the issuance or renewal of a license for an escrow agent are:

(a) For filing an application for an initial license or for the renewal of a license, \$100.

(b) If a license is approved for issuance or renewal, \$25. The fee must be paid before the issuance or renewal of the license.

4. If a licensee fails to pay the fee for the annual renewal of his license before its expiration, his license may be renewed only upon the payment of a fee one and one-half times the amount otherwise required for renewal. A license may be renewed pursuant to this subsection only if all the fees are paid within 1 year after the date on which the license expired.

5. In addition to the other fees set forth in this section, each applicant or licensee shall pay:

(a) For filing an application for a duplicate copy of any license, upon satisfactory showing of its loss, \$10.



(b) For filing any change of information contained in the application, \$10.

(c) For each change of association with an escrow agency, \$25.

6. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, all fees received pursuant to this chapter must be deposited in the ~~[State Treasury for credit to the State General Fund.]~~ *Fund for Mortgage Lending created by section 17 of this act.*

Section 40 of chapter 516, Statutes of Nevada 2003:

Sec. 40. NRS 645B.050 is hereby amended to read as follows:

645B.050 1. A license *as a mortgage broker* issued pursuant to this chapter expires each year on June 30, unless it is renewed. To renew *such* a license, the licensee must submit to the Commissioner on or before ~~[June 30]~~ *May 31* of each year:

(a) An application for renewal;

(b) The fee required to renew the license pursuant to this section; and

(c) The information required pursuant to NRS 645B.051.

2. If the licensee fails to submit any item required pursuant to subsection 1 to the Commissioner on or before ~~[June 30]~~ *May 31* of any year, the license is cancelled ~~[]~~ *as of June 30 of that year*. The Commissioner may reinstate a cancelled license if the licensee submits to the Commissioner:

(a) An application for renewal;

(b) The fee required to renew the license pursuant to this section;

(c) The information required pursuant to NRS 645B.051; and

(d) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a reinstatement fee of \$200.

3. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 645B.016, a certificate of exemption issued pursuant to this chapter expires each year on December 31, unless it is renewed. To renew a certificate of exemption, a person must submit to the Commissioner on or before ~~[December 31]~~ *November 30* of each year:

(a) An application for renewal that includes satisfactory proof that the person meets the requirements for an exemption from the provisions of this chapter; and

(b) The fee required to renew the certificate of exemption.

4. If the person fails to submit any item required pursuant to subsection 3 to the Commissioner on or before



~~[December 31]~~ *November 30* of any year, the certificate of exemption is cancelled ~~[]~~ *as of December 31 of that year.* Except as otherwise provided in NRS 645B.016, the Commissioner may reinstate a cancelled certificate of exemption if the person submits to the Commissioner:

(a) An application for renewal that includes satisfactory proof that the person meets the requirements for an exemption from the provisions of this chapter;

(b) The fee required to renew the certificate of exemption; and

(c) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a reinstatement fee of \$100.

5. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a person must pay the following fees to apply for, to be issued or to renew a license as a mortgage broker pursuant to this chapter:

(a) To file an original application for a license, \$1,500 for the principal office and \$40 for each branch office. The person must also pay such additional expenses incurred in the process of investigation as the Commissioner deems necessary. ~~[All money received by the Commissioner pursuant to this paragraph must be placed in the Investigative Account created by NRS 232.545.]~~

(b) To be issued a license, \$1,000 for the principal office and \$60 for each branch office.

(c) To renew a license, \$500 for the principal office and \$100 for each branch office.

6. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a person must pay the following fees to apply for or to renew a certificate of exemption pursuant to this chapter:

(a) To file an application for a certificate of exemption, \$200.

(b) To renew a certificate of exemption, \$100.

7. To be issued a duplicate copy of any license or certificate of exemption, a person must make a satisfactory showing of its loss and pay a fee of \$10.

8. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, all fees received pursuant to this chapter must be deposited in the ~~[State Treasury for credit to the State General Fund.]~~ *Fund for Mortgage Lending created by section 17 of this act.*

9. The Commissioner may, by regulation, increase any fee set forth in this section if the Commissioner determines that such an increase is necessary for the Commissioner to carry out his duties pursuant to this chapter. The amount of any increase in a fee pursuant to this subsection must not



exceed the amount determined to be necessary for the Commissioner to carry out his duties pursuant to this chapter.

③



* S B 1 6 3 *

